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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present the 2016/2017 annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 30th June 2017 (the “Year”).

The Group is principally engaged in securities brokerage
and margin financing, money lending, leasing of investment
properties and securities investment, video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products,
watches and jewellery products.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$114.5
million for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
19.3% as compared to the net loss of approximately HK$141.9
million for the same period last year, which was mainly due
to the net effect of (i) a fair value gain arising from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$12.7 million for the Year compared to a fair value loss
arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$143.6 million for the same period last year; (ii)
total impairment losses on the available-for-sale-financial assets
of approximately HK$89.6 million (2016: Nil); (iii) impairment
losses on the goodwill attributable to the trading, wholesaling
and retailing of optical products, watches and jewellery products
business of approximately HK$23.0 million (2016: approximately
HK$24.4 million); and (iv) the increase of the segmental profit
from video distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights from approximately HK$8.6
million for the year ended 30th June 2016 to approximately
HK$31.3 million for the Year.
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The Group’s results were affected by the volatile investment
market and persistent slowdown in economic growth in Hong
Kong and China during the Year. Looking forward, despite the
volatile global financial markets, the recent unstable political
environment in the Asian region, uncertain monetary and interest
rates policy of United States and the expected continuing
slowdown of the China economy, the Group is prudently
optimistic about its principal operating environment in Hong
Kong and China as China’s economy is still on track to grow by
approximately 6.7% in 2016 based on the official gross domestic
product measure.

Nevertheless, the Group will continue to identify and capture
different investment opportunities in other business sectors
with enormous potential to further diversify its businesses and
broaden the income sources of the Group.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors
and our staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to
the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank all our
customers and shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$114.5
million for the year ended 30th June 2017 (“Year”), representing
a decrease of approximately 19.3% as compared to the net loss
of approximately HK$141.9 million for the same period last year,
which was mainly due to the net effect of (i) a fair value gain
arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$12.7 million for the Year compared to a fair
value loss arising from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$143.6 million for the same period
last year; (ii) total impairment losses on the available-for-sale-
financial assets of approximately HK$89.6 million (2016: Nil); (iii)
impairment losses on the goodwill attributable to the trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products, watches and
jewellery products business of approximately HK$23.0 million
(2016: approximately HK$24.4 million); and (iv) the increase
of the segmental profit from video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights from
approximately HK$8.6 million for the year ended 30th June 2016
to approximately HK$31.3 million for the Year.

The Group’s audited consolidated revenue for the Year was
approximately HK$231.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 53.4% as compared to the revenue of
approximately HK$151.0 million for the same period last year.
The increase in revenue was mainly due to the net effect of (i)
the increase in revenue of approximately HK$19.8 million from
the securities brokerage and margin financing business; (i) the
decrease in revenue of approximately HK$15.1 million from
trading, wholesale and retail of optical products, watches and
jewellery products; (iii) the increase in income of approximately
HK$82.6 million from films distribution and exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights; (iv) the decrease in revenue
(excluded inter-segment sales) of approximately HK$2.6 million
from money lending business; and (v) the decrease in revenue of
approximately HK$4.2 million from entertainment business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$138.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately 147.0% as compared to approximately
HK$56.2 million in the same period last year. It accounted
for approximately 59.9% (2016: approximately 37.2%) of the
Group’s revenue during the Year. The increase in revenue was
mainly due to satisfactory box office figures for the new films
released during the Year, in particular the film titled “Shock
Wave” (fFEHXK).

Segmental profit from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$31.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 264.0% as compared to approximately HK$8.6
million in the same period last year. The increase in segmental
profit was mainly due to the encouraging results of Shock Wave
(#FFEE ). Despite the satisfactory results of Shock Wave (#f
B E ), films are produced on a project basis and the revenue
generated thereunder are not stable, thus causing the fluctuation
of the revenue and also the profitability of this business segment
in the coming years. As reported by the State Administration of
Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), the total box office revenue of PRC
in 2016 was approximately RMB45.71 billion, representing
an increase of approximately 3.73% as compared to the
corresponding period in 2015. The film exhibition industry in
China continues to grow but in a slow pace and the competition
is very keen. In such challenging environment, the Group will
continue to adopt a cautious approach towards in producing
and investment in new films in the future.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 9th
January 2017 and the Company’s circular dated 24th February
2017, Universe Films Distribution Company Limited (“UFD”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“Film Library Disposal Agreement”) to
dispose of 202 feature films (“Film Library”) conditionally at
a consideration of approximately RMB178,895,000, subject
to possible adjustment as set out in the Film Library Disposal
Agreement (the “Disposal”). The cost of the Film Library had
almost been fully amortised in previous years and the carrying
value of the Film Library was approximately HK$3.7 million as
at 30th June 2017. The Company considered that the Disposal,
if materialised, and after deducting other related expenses,
would allow the Group to realise a one-off gain of approximately
HK$173.77 million from the Disposal and provide the Group with
the opportunity to capture the residual value of the old films.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

The Film Library Disposal Agreement was completed on 21st
September 2017 ("Completion date”). The remaining portion
of the consideration of approximately RMB17,890,000 will be
settled no later than 60th day after the Completion date. The
Company estimates the gain on disposal of the Film Library will
be approximately HK$180.47 million after taking into account
of all relevant expenses and the exchange differences of
approximately HK$5.25 million.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical products,
watches and jewellery products

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$46.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 24.5% as compared to approximately HK$61.7
million in the same period in last year. Revenue from this
business segment included the revenue of approximately
HK$6.9 million (2016: approximately HK$7.4 million) from
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products from
2 (2016: 2) optical retail shops under the name of “ /% & R 2
Hong Kong Optical” in Hong Kong (“Optical Business”) and the
revenue of approximately HK$39.7 million (2016: approximately
HK$54.3 million) from Winston Asia Limited (“Winston”), which
are principally engaged in trading, wholesaling and retailing of
watches and jewellery products and are operating 13 (2016:
17) retail shops in Hong Kong and the PRC. It accounted for
approximately 20.1% (2016: approximately 40.9%) of the
Group’s revenue during the Year.

During the Year, performance of this business segment was
affected by the following key factors:

()  persistent slowdown in economic growth in Hong Kong
and PRC
The gross domestic product of the PRC has been
growing at a slower pace, from a year-on-year growth of
approximately 7.7% in 2013 to that of approximately 6.7%
in 2016. This reflects the decreased growth in income of
consumers in the PRC and implies that the retail market in
the PRC is following a slowing growth trend in 2017.

8 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, with reference to the Reports on Monthly
Survey of Retail Sales released by the Census and Statistics
Department of Hong Kong, the average value index of retail
sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts
was approximately 78.6 for the year ended 31st December
2016, representing a decrease of approximately 17.2%
as compared with the same index for the year ended 31st
December 2015. This reflected a decreasing trend in the
retail sales of those of jewellery products, watches and
optical products in Hong Kong in 2016. However, the
market showed a sign of stabilisation in the first half of
2017 in Hong Kong. The average value index of retail sales
of jewellery products, watches and clocks, and valuable
gifts in the first half of 2017 was approximately 77.4 and
increased by approximately 0.8% as compared to the same
index in the first half of 2016.

keen competition from online sales

Technological changes that impact the operating
environment, consumer behavior of the retail industry
in Hong Kong and China. The online sales amounts are
increasing and more and more shoppers are now preferring
to research and purchase online. The keen competition
from online sales is affecting the growth of the sales
amount and the profitability of the offline shops operated by
the Group in Hong Kong and China.

continued slowdown in growth of spending by Mainland
Chinese tourists in Hong Kong

The retail sales of optical products, watches and jewellery
products in Hong Kong have been a major beneficiary
of the Individual Traveller Scheme first launched in 20083.
The one-trip-per-week restriction imposed in 2015 on
Shenzhen residents for Hong Kong travel and Hong Kong’s
strong currency has also made it difficult to attract tourists
for shopping during the Year. These factors impacted the
performance of this business segment as the demand of
our key products — optical products, watches and jewellery
products is elastic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Consequently, segmental loss from this business segment
during the Year was approximately HK$27.8 million, representing
an increase of approximately 11.6% as compared to segmental
loss of approximately HK$24.9 million in the same period last
year. The increase in segmental loss was mainly due to (i) the
decrease in revenue by approximately 24.5% as compared
to the same period in last year; (i) the decrease in gross profit
margin from approximately 47.7% for the year ended 30th June
2016 to approximately 39.5% for the year ended 30th June
2017; and (iii) impairment losses on the goodwill attributable to
Winston and the Optical Business of approximately HK$21.7
million (2016: approximately HK$24.4 million) and HK$1.3 million
(2016: Nil) respectively was recorded during the Year.

The impairment loss of Winston was made with reference to
the valuation report of Winston as at 30th June 2017 prepared
by an independent professional qualified valuer not connected
with the Group, for the purpose of assessing the value in use
of Winston. The methodology used in the valuation report was
income approach using discounted cash flow method, which
was consistently applied to the valuations as at 30th June 2016
and 30th June 2017. The calculation used cash flow projections
based on latest financial budgets approved by the management
of the Group covering a period of 5 years and at a post-tax
discount rate. The cash flow projections during the budget
period were based on the expected profits margins during the
budget period, and were extrapolated using a 3% (2016: 3%)
growth rate beyond the 5-year period, which were the same
for both valuations as at 30th June 2016 and 30th June 2017.
The pre-tax discount rate had changed from approximately
17.7% as at 30th June 2016 to approximately 19.9% as at 30th
June 2017, which was mainly attributable to changes in market
conditions, such as long-term risk free rates in Hong Kong and
market equity risk premium.

Due to the aforesaid unfavored factors and the actual business
performance of Winston during the Year, the management of
the Company is prudent on Winston’s future performance and
lowers its expectation on the gross profit margin of this business
segment, from approximately 42% as at the 30th June 2016 to
around approximately 39% as at 30th June 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Based on the above, the valuation of Winston as at 30th
June 2017 was lowered, resulting in the impairment loss on
the goodwill of approximately HK$21.7 million attributable to
Winston during the Year.

The impairment loss of Optical Business was made with
reference to the valuation report of Optical Business as at 30th
June 2017 prepared by an independent professional qualified
valuer not connected with the Group, for the purpose of
assessing the value in use of Optical Business. The methodology
used in the valuation report was income approach using
discounted cash flow method, which was consistently applied
to the valuations as at 30th June 2016 and 30th June 2017. The
calculation used cash flow projections based on latest financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
a period of 5 years and at a post-tax discount rate. The cash
flow projections during the budget period were based on the
expected profits margins during the budget period, and were
extrapolated using a 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate beyond the
5-year period, which was the same for both valuations as at
30th June 2016 and 30th June 2017. The pre-tax discount rate
had changed from approximately 17.4% as at 30th June 2016
to approximately 19.8% as at 30th June 2017, which was mainly
attributable to changes in market conditions, such as long-term
risk free rates in Hong Kong and market equity risk premium.

Due to the aforesaid unfavored factors and the actual
business performance of Optical Business during the Year,
the management of the Company is prudent on the Optical
Business’ future performance and lowers its expectation on the
gross profit margin of this business segment, from approximately
55% as at the 30th June 2016 to approximately 52% as at 30th
June 2017.

Based on the above, the valuation of Optical Business as at 30th
June 2017 was lowered, resulting in the impairment loss on the
goodwill of approximately HK$1.3 million (2016: Nil) attributable
to Optical Business during the Year.

Apart from the Optical Business, the Group also owned a 28%
(2016: 28%) equity interest of Hong Kong Optical Company
Limited (“HK Optical”) which is principally engaged in trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products and operated 11
(2016: 9) retail shops in Hong Kong as at 30th June 2017.
Impairment loss on the interests in associate of approximately
HK$3.2 million (2016: Nil) attributable to HK Optical was
recognised during the Year.

o o

BEEN WK D

BIE E it - WinstonR —ZZE—+ %N A
=+ HAHERIEK - &R A EE Winston fE
MR EREBEN21.7TaEB T -

WEE T REEIE 2 E BRI EREE
2B BEAERGEM AT G NBEL 2 F
REEMRRE 2 LBEBRNR _T—+tF A
= +tHZHEREER - FERESMERN S
EAERTRBESREEAMWAE - BR =
E—RENA=ZF+HEZZE—+FEA=T
AEERBEETE R - sFE A FERE
PASEEE R B &N R BUEE R IRH
BN REHMSF RS RETEA - RFEE
HEMIR S RETEATRIETEE BN BEHF
BERED  SFLUBAFERI%(ZE—RF :
3% )MERERIEE - ZH R —BERNR=-Z
—RERNA=SHAR-ZZE—+EXA=1THEY
HE- - BHAMBEEER S —AR"FAZT
BN17.4% 8 A-F—+EA=+HHY
10.8% @ TEHARNEERHERBFEERNS
BERBRGEESTRES -

BN BN FAZRRNFENRBEE 2 BRE
BRIB - ARREEEH N BEBIRKRKE
BEEEBEVSELEBHENE 2 TBHE
RZZB—RERNAZTHZE55%EEBRZ
T+ ERXA=ZTHZH52% °

RIBE LA - ABRBR_F—EFXA
= tHZEERE  ERAFEAEXGEMNG
ZEBEREBRMNIABETL(ZT—RF
&)

BREEZI R-F—tFRNA=TH K
SENREAEEBXKERRARAR([KER
1) 228%( —F—/NF : 28%) kg - HX &
HEEH  MELRTEXBERINEBLE
1ME(ZZE—XRF o) TEIE - AFEHER
KA REREL 2B E DA 2 R ERRL
B2ABBIL(ZT—RF  H\)-

—T— R ErERemERaRAF 11

e e 0000000000000 0000000000000

e oo 00



e e ce 000000000000 00

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

The impairment loss of HK Optical was made with reference
to the valuation of HK Optical as at 30th June 2017 prepared
by an independent professional qualified valuer not connected
with the Group, for the purpose of assessing the value in use
of HK Optical. The methodology used in the valuation report of
HK Optical was income approach using discounted cash flow
method, which was consistently applied to the valuations as at
30th June 2016 and 30th June 2017. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on latest financial budgets approved
by the management of the Group covering a period of 5 years
and at a post-tax discount rate. The cash flow projections
during the budget period were based on the expected profits
margins during the budget period, and were extrapolated using
a 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate beyond the 5-year period, which
was the same for both valuations as at 30th June 2016 and
30th June 2017. The pre-tax discount rate had changed from
approximately 15% as at 30th June 2016 to approximately
16.4% as at 30th June 2017, which was mainly attributable
to changes in market conditions, such as long-term risk free
rates in Hong Kong and market equity risk premium. Due to
the aforesaid unfavorable factors and the actual business
performance of the HK Optical during the Year, the management
of the Company is prudent on the HK Optical future performance
and lowers its expectation on the gross profit margin of HK
Optical, from approximately 55% as at the 30th June 2016 to
approximately 54% as at 30th June 2017.

The business outlook of this segment as a whole is very
challenging and the Group will adopt tight cost controls,
continue to close non-performing retail shops, negotiate better
leasing terms, rearrange the product mix and introduce a new
line of products to improve the profitability of this business
segment.

Securities brokerage and margin financing

The Company engages in securities brokerage and margin
financing through its wholly owned subsidiary China Jianxin
Financial Services Limited (“China Jianxin”). China Jianxin is a
company licensed under the Securities and Future Ordinance to
carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on
securities) regulated activities, the principal activities of which are
provision of brokerage services and securities margin financing
to clients.

1 2 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue from this business segment recorded a remarkable
growth during the Year. The revenue increased by approximately
123.0% from approximately HK$16.1 million for the year ended
30th June 2016 to HK$35.9 million for the Year. It accounted
for approximately 15.5% (2016: approximately 10.6%) of the
Group’s revenue during the Year. The segment profit of this
business segment was approximately HK$11.6 million (2016:
approximately HK$4.0 million) during the Year. The increase in
revenue and profit were mainly due to (i) only around 7 months
of the operational results of China Jianxin was included in the
Group’s consolidated result for the year ended 30th June 2016
as China Jianxin was acquired by the Group in November 2015
while full year operation results of China Jianxin was included in
the Group’s consolidated result for the Year; (i) the increase of
the revenue derived from placing and underwriting services from
approximately HK$2.5 million for the year ended 30th June 2016
to approximately HK$10.2 million for the Year, representing an
increase of approximately 4.08 times. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in the number of placing and underwriting
engagements that China Jianxin has participated during the
Year; (iii) the increase of the interest income from the margin
financing business from approximately HK$5.2 million for the
year ended 30th June 2016 to approximately HK$18.3 million for
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 3.52 times.
Such increase was attributable to the keen demand for margin
financing from customers and the expansion of funds available
for margin financing business from the fund raising activities of
the Group conducted during the Year; and (iv) the increase of
the commission from securities dealing and brokerage services
from approximately HK$3.0 million for the year ended 30th June
2016 to approximately HK$7.4 million for the Year, representing
an increase of approximately 2.47 times. Such increase was
due to the increase in the transaction amount of customers’
securities trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

However, in late June 2017, there was a sharp decline in the
share price of certain stocks held by China Jianxin as collateral
security for its margin clients, with the percentage declines in
share price of such stocks ranging from 35% to approximately
89% (“June Incident”). As a result of the June Incident, a number
of China Jianxin’s accounts receivable arising from securities
brokerage and margin financing business became under-
collateralised and its excess liquid capital has also decreased.
China Jianxin thus made margin calls with its margin loan
clients. As a result of June Incident, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$9.0 million (2016: Nil) was provided for the
accounts receivable from cash clients and margin clients arising
from securities brokerage and margin financing business of
approximately HK$266.8 million (2016: approximately HK$204.4
million) as at 30th June 2017.

Following the June Incident and the deterioration of China
Jianxin’s margin loans during and after the June Incident and
the related significant drop in its liquid capital, China Jianxin
received a letter from the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”), wherein the SFC, among other things, had identified
certain deficiencies of China Jianxin’s margin loan operations
and its failure to comply with certain requirements under the
Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission (“Code of Conduct”).

In such connection, the SFC had instructed China Jianxin to
refrain from providing further margin lending or other form of
financial accommodation to clients until it has fully complied with
the applicable Code of Conduct requirements. The SFC had also
instructed China Jianxin to prevent further deterioration of its
financial position, including maintaining sufficient cash reserves
to maintain its business operations for a reasonable amount of
time, cease to apply imprudent margin lending practices, and
tighten and formalise its margin lending policy. China Jianxin had
undertaken to the SFC to implement the measures required by
the SFC to address the identified deficiencies and risk concerns
satisfactorily within a reasonable period of time, failure of which
would result in the SFC taking further action which may include
the imposition of conditions on China Jianxin’s licence.

1 4 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WK D

The management of China Jianxin is currently working towards — fF B2z 2 & 12 IR IE BN R A @R fA &
addressing such deficiencies and concerns. & o

Following the launch of the Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Z—Z—WF R - —XF o 5l#HESB LR
Stock Connect Program in 2014 and 2016, respectively, it was 8@ aT 2112 - HMEBFT BN RURSE B THi1%
believed that the financial services industry of Hong Kong would & ° AN E #5380 E R P46 M B IE SR
continue to grow. The Group will strengthen its internal control  FEH&L R TEMEEYS  UBREXETER
policy and take a prudent approach to develop the securites FHIEERE -

brokerage and margin financing business to reduce the credit

risk from the margin clients.

Securities investments BHEE
Below is the list of the financial assets at fair value through profit A TRAEBR -_Z—+FA=+HHEE
or loss which the Directors consider as material held by the ZRABEAZAEBIBFEAFEARZS R
Group as at 30th June 2017: BEIK :
Percentage of Percentage to
total issued the Group’s
share capital total financial
of the investee Percentageto  Percentageto  assets at fair Unrealised
company as the Group's the Group’s  value through  gain/(loss) on
Numberof ~ at30thJune  Marketvalue totalassetsas  netassetsas  profitor loss changein Dividend
Place of shares held 17 asat30thdune  at30thJune  at30thJune asat30thJune  fairvalue for income
Name of investee company Notes  incorporation by the Group (Note 1) 017 2017 017 2017 the Year for the Year
e
ERRENT Hog-tf
H-B-tf ~A=ZTH
#A=TH 258 A58 et il
ZB&f HoE-tE  RoB-tE BAVE

A8E BemEz  RoR-tE 0 ARZTR RAZTE GR2ER KEELAVE
i Bt ABEtA BEEL FEEZ BE4E 29583 KER

BRENTEE (iRt Rt8e (HsH) P Aalt Agle ZEA  WE/(BE) REMA

(approximate ~ (approximate  (epproximate  (approximale  (@pproimate  (approximate  (approximate

%) HK$000) %) HKS'000) %) HK§'000) HK$'000)

(%) (BoTRT) (%) (HaTiEn) (fa%) (ot ([EHTER)

First Credt Finance Group Limted 2~ Bermuda 150,000,000 413 88,5000 6.1% 87% 38.0% 52,2000 -

E-RALRREARLA BRE

Leap Holdings Group Ltd. 3 Cayman Islands 173,600,000 330 369768 25% 3.7% 16.9% (26,387.2) -
HERRETERAT AEHs

Xinhua News Media Holdings Ltd. 4 Gayman Islands 67,502,000 468 32,7385 2.2% 3.2% 14.1% 18,633.1 -
TERAARERARAA mEEe

Jiu Rong Holdings Lid. 5 Caymanlslands 163,000,000 2.98 314590 2.2% 3.1% 135% 6,194.0 -
ARBERERAR mEHE

189,674.3 13.0% 18.7% 81.5% 50,8309 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W& D

Notes:

16

The percentage is calculated with reference to the then latest
monthly return as at 30th June 2017 of the investee company
publicly available on the website of the Stock Exchange (where
applicable).

First Credit Finance Group Limited (“First Credit”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in money lending business and
securities trading business. The shares of First Credit (stock code:
8215) are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM”). As disclosed in the latest annual report of
First Credit, First Credit recorded an audited consolidated profit
attributable to the owners of First Credit of approximately HK$33.6
million for the year ended 31st December 2016.

As disclosed in the latest interim report of First Credit for the six
months period ended 30th June 2017, in view of the competitive
money lending market in Hong Kong, First Credit actively pursued
other opportunities in other industries in order to broaden the
source of revenue and diversify business risk with the aim to
enhance its shareholder value. First Credit has acquired an indirect
equity interest in Asia Wealth Securities Limited, which holds the
licence to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”). It is expected that the development
of the securities related business would enhance the potential
return of business of First Credit. First Credit is proactively
exploring further potential investment opportunities, including but
not limited to investments in bonds, debt instruments, listed equity
securities or project-based investments, subject to the prevailing
market condition and taking into account the interest of First Credit
and its shareholders as a whole.

In connection with the re-focusing of the Group’s business
operations as announced on 25th May 2016, the Company
decided to change the purpose of holding First Credit from
short-term trading to long-term investments. For the purpose of
complying with the applicable accounting standards, the securities
investments of First Credit are included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as current assets in the consolidated
balance sheet for the accounting purpose despite the purpose of
holding is long-term investment.

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Leap Holdings Group Ltd. (“Leap”) and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of foundation works and ancillary
services; and construction wastes handling services in Hong
Kong. The shares of Leap (stock code: 1499) are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”). As
disclosed in the latest annual report of Leap, Leap recorded an
audited consolidated profit attributable to the owners of Leap of
approximately HK$8.4 million for the year ended 31st March 2017.

As disclosed in the latest annual report of Leap for the year ended
31st March 2017, the construction industry in Hong Kong is
facing keen market competition with the increase in the number of
competitors leading to the dilution in the profit margin of awarded
contracts. Furthermore, the number of capital works projects
dropped due to the filibustering in the Legislative Council causing
delay in funding approval for public works. Despite the fact that the
construction industry in Hong Kong is facing such uncertainties,
Leap expects that the construction industry is under temporary
adjustment and looks forward to the rebound from the downturn
of the market. Leap’s outlook still remains positive towards the
construction industry and will proactively look for opportunities to
create maximum returns to the shareholders of Leap. Leap will
also seek investment opportunities in listed securities and other
financial products in Hong Kong and other recognised financial
markets in the overseas with a view to generate additional income
and enhance the capital use of Leap.

Xinhua News Media Holdings Ltd. (“Xinhua”) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of cleaning and related
services, medical waste treatment service, waste treatment
service and television screen broadcast business. The shares
of Xinhua (stock code: 309) are listed on the Main Board. As
disclosed in the latest annual report of Xinhua, Xinhua recorded
an audited consolidated loss attributable to the owners of Xinhua
of approximately HK$18.0 million for the year ended 31st March
2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W& D
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As disclosed in the latest annual report of Xinhua for the year
ended 31st March 2017, for the television screen broadcast
business, Xinhua will hold the exclusive broadcasting news rights
by Xinhua News Agency Asia Pacific Bureau for another four years.
Xinhua is also still under contract with Hong Kong MTR for the
rights of Hung Hom Train Station and the KTT train. This is still a
solid foundation to which the Xinhua can build upon. In the coming
year, Xinhua plans to grow through mergers and acquisition
channel rather than organically. The mergers and acquisitions
route will not only enable Xinhua to grow at a faster rate, but also
acquire sought after LED locations as well as talent expertise. As
always, Xinhua will take a prudent but opportunistic approach
when considering potential investments. For the cleaning and
related services, most of the cleaning service contracts are for
periods of two to three years, which is a general practice in Hong
Kong. Some of Xinhua’s contracts will experience renewal cycles
within the second half of the year and will be offered for open
tender again by the customers. With cautious confidence Xinhua
shall strive to bid for and win the contracts. However, there can be
no assurance that the contracts can be regained. Should Xinhua
be unsuccessful in any one of them, Xinhua’s service revenue may
inevitably be adversely affected.

Jiu Rong Holdings Ltd. (“Jiu Rong”) and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of digital television,
high definition liquid crystal display digital television and set-top box
as well as provision of application of solutions regarding integration
of telecommunication digital television and internet in the digital
video industry (“Digital Video Business”); and the construction,
application and management of new energy vehicles and related
products, charging facilities and intelligent management systems
(“New Energy Vehicles Business”). The shares of Jiu Rong (stock
code: 2358) are listed on the Main Board. As disclosed in the
latest annual report of Jiu Rong, Jiu Rong recorded an audited
consolidated loss attributable to the owners of Jiu Rong of
approximately HK$35.3 million for the year ended 31st December
2016.

As disclosed in the latest interim report of Jiu Rong for the
six months period ended 30th June 2017, the Digital Video
Business is still facing a lot of challenges. For the New Energy
Vehicles Business, Jiu Rong has already established 10 electric
vehicles charging facilities stations in Hangzhou with a total of
approximately 1,300 electric vehicles charging piles in operation,
and intelligent parking of approximately 10,000 m2 with new
energy vehicles charging facilities and intelligent management
system in Shangcheng District, Hangzhou. Jiu Rong will continue
to invest in the new energy vehicles business with the aim to be
one of the largest new energy vehicles charging facilities operator
in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jiu Rong also has commenced the cloud data business, the
management of Jiu Rong believes that the co-operation with the
local authorities of West Lake District and Yungi Cloud Town as
well as famous cloud computing enterprises such as Aliyun (Fi £E)
and West Lake Electric (78415 F) to establish big data industrial
park is with substantial growth potential. Jiu Rong will continue
to (1) closely evaluate the performance of the above mentioned
businesses; (2) actively explore new businesses or investments;
and (3) consider fund raising opportunities which can strengthen
the financial position of Jiu Rong in order to enhance the value
of Jiu Rong which will be in the interests of Jiu Rong and its
shareholders as a whole.

The Group had recorded a fair value gain arising from the
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$12.7 million for the Year while
the Group recorded a fair value loss arising from the change
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$143.6 million for the same period
in last year. Such improvement was mainly attributable to the
good performance of certain investments during the Year. In
particular, the investments in the shares of First Credit, Xinhua
and Jiu Rong recorded fair value gain of approximately HK$52.2
million, HK$18.8 million and HK$6.2 million, respectively, and
is partially offset by the fair value loss arising from investments
in the share of Leap and Convoy Global Holdings Ltd., (the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board with stock code
1019) of approximately HK$34.5 million (the sum of unrealised
loss of approximately HK$26.4 million and realised loss of
approximately HK$8.1 million) and HK$31.8 million respectively
during the Year.

As a result, the overall segment profit of the securities
investment segment was approximately HK$12.0 million (2016:
segment loss of approximately HK$143.6 million) during the
Year. The Group will continue reviewing its investment portfolios,
so as to achieve a better return to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W& D

Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE

Below is the list of the available-for-sale financial assets which A TERAEBR - —+FA=+HFE
the Directors consider as material held by the Group as at 30th SZRABEAZAJHEESREESE

June 2017:
Percentage of
total issued Percentage to Change in
share capital of the Group’s fair value
the investee Percentageto  Percentageto total available- recognised
company as Market/Fair the Group’s the Group’s for-sale in other
Numberof ~ at 30th June valueasat fotalassetsas  netassetsas financial assets — comprehensive Dividend
Place of shares held 017 30thJune  at30thJune  at30thJune asat30thJune  income/(loss) income
Name of investee company Notes  incorporation by the Group (Note 1) 2017 2017 017 2017 for the Year for the Year
ERREMN HA%E
H=g-t% Hog-t%
RA=TH (] e #A=TH
ZBEf HoB-tE  RoB-tF itLE KEER
BAfE2  W-E-tF RASHR AAZTR SHEE  HA2ENE/
558 Al AAZtA feEy FEEZ ] (B8)ER 534
RRELRER it EREIed  fERGEA (W) 2mle/ATE BAl Aal AR Z0TE%E REHA
(approximate (approximate (approximate (approximate (approximate (approximate (approximate
%) HK$000) %) %) %) HK$'000) HKS$'000)
() (BATER) (Bi1%) (#i47%) (Faw)  (BafER)  (B6TEr)
Cassia Investment Limited 2 Cayman Islands NA N/A 57,3338 3.9% 5.7% 36.8% (2,5745) -
Partnership Il
(Cassia lnvestment Limited FEHE TR TER
Partnership I
GET Holdings Limited 3 Bermuda 74,074,500 16.67 42,9832 30% 42% 21.6% 44904 -
EFBRERAA BRE
China New Economy Fund Limted 4 Caymen Islands 182,400,000 17.00 238320 16% 2.4% 16.3% (14,4819 -
HEREERERRAT REHE
1241290 8.5% 12.3% 79.7% (12,566.0) -
Notes: BsE

1. The percentage is calculated with reference to the then latest 1. FZED KR ERILE R RN FH £

monthly return as at 30th June 2017 of the investee company AR -_ZE—tFNAZTANERENAE
publicly available on the website of the Stock Exchange (where FsRRmaTE(wE/A) -
applicable).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cassia Investment Limited Partnership Il (“Cassia II”) is an
exempted limited partnership established in accordance with the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law of Cayman lIslands offering
limited partnership interests for the purpose of obtaining capital
appreciation through making private equity investments mainly in
the consumer sector across Greater China and South East Asia,
as well as in non-Asian enterprises that have a strong exposure
to Asian consumers market. Cassia Il intends to target companies
that it believes will benefit from the growing disposable income of
the Asian middle class and can capture the behavioural consumer
trends that follow such growing household wealth and structured
equity transactions primarily in Greater China, Thailand, Indonesia,
Vietnam and the Philippines. Cassia Il will have a target size of
US$60,000,000 (approximately HK$465.0 million) and the Group
has committed to subscribe the limited partnership interest of
Cassia Il of US$9,000,000 (approximately HK$69.7 million). Up
to 30th June 2017, the Group has subscribed for the limited
partnership interest of Cassia Il of approximately US$7.9 million
(approximately HK$61.2 million).

GET Holdings Limited (“GET”) and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in research, development, distribution of personal
computer performance software, anti-virus software, mobile
phone applications & toolbar advertisement (“Software Business”);
investment in securities; money lending; provision of corporate
management solutions and I.T. contract services. The shares of
GET (stock code: 8100) are listed on GEM. As disclosed in the
latest annual report of GET, GET recorded an audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of GET of approximately HK$17.1
million for the year ended 31st December 2016.

As disclosed in the latest interim report of GET for the six
months period ended 30th June 2017, GET considers that the
Software Business will continue to become one of the principal
sources of income of GET in the future. In the face of the ever-
changing I.T. environment, GET will closely monitor the I.T. trend
and continuously upgrade its existing products and enhance its
product mix to suit the market needs and customers’ expectation.
Besides, market diversification is the GET’s key marketing strategy
in the second half of 2017. Under the strategy, GET will continue
to maintain its market presence in the U.S. and Europe markets
and try to expand its sales channels and strengthen its presence
in Asian countries by introducing products to potential customers.
Looking forward, the market is expected to remain volatile and
competitive. In response to the challenging environment, GET will
continue to strive on its diverse business territories and further
advance the development of all business segments to further
diversify its business portfolio by adhering to prudent business
development strategies. GET will also continue to maintain a
healthy and conservative level of liquidity and closely monitor
the market situation and keep an eye on opportunities in the
increasingly competitive operating environment to enhance GET’s
profitability and its shareholders’ value in the long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

4. China New Economy Fund Limited (“CNEF”) is principally engaged
in investing globally in both private and publicly listed enterprises
that have demonstrated the ability to manufacture a product or
deliver a service that is supported by the economies of mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. The shares of CNEF (stock
code: 80) are listed on the Main Board. As disclosed in the latest
annual report of CNEF, CNEF recorded an audited consolidated
profit attributable to the owners of CNEF of approximately HK$47.9
million for the year ended 31st December 2016. As disclosed in
the latest interim report of CNEF for the six months period ended
30th June 2017, CNEF invested two new private equities and
one bond fund, making a total of seven unlisted investments in
its diversified portfolio during six months period ended 30th June
2017. CNEF believed they would bring a potential return alongside
with listed investments in the long-run. CNEF would explore
more investment opportunities toward private equities and other
unlisted investments. As global economy and politics are facing
more risk, CNEF expected that the US Federal Reserve would
be more cautious to raise interest rate and possibly one more
hike by the end of 2017. In addition, the PRC Government has
lowered its GDP growth target, focusing on quality over quantity
as it overhauls its growth model. Therefore, CNEF remained
cautiously optimistic on the prospects of securities market in China
and Hong Kong. CNEF would continue to deploy an investment
strategy focusing on Greater China and closely monitor changes
in the global markets. With its professional investment and risk
management team, CNEF was confident to capture valuable
investment opportunities to maximize profit for its shareholders. As
disclosed in the announcement of CNEF dated 13th September
2017, the unaudited net asset value per share of CNEF was
approximately HK$0.41.

The Group recorded a decrease of the carrying value of the
available-for-sale financial assets of approximately HK$88.6
million (2016: decrease of the carrying value of approximately
HK$12.3 million) in the other comprehensive loss during the
Year. The decrease was mainly attributed by the decrease
in the fair value of the investment in “Hydra Capital SPC —
Class A #1 Share” (“Hydra Capital”), Interactive Entertainment
China Cultural Technology Inv Ltd. (“IE China”) and CNEF by
approximately HK$53.7 million, HK$25.6 million and HK$14.5
million respectively during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hydra Capital is an exempted company incorporated with limited
liability and registered as a segregated portfolio company under
the laws of the Cayman Islands established for the purpose of
making investments on behalf of its portfolios where its principal
investments are internet related and mobile application in Asia.
As at 30th June 2017, the Group held 5,500 shares (30th June
2016: same) in Hydra Capital, representing approximately 24.6%
of the total issued shares of Hydra Capital of 22,400 shares.

One of the significant investments of Hydra Capital is the
holding of approximately 20.2% equity interest in a company,
which is carrying on the business to publish self-developed
mobile games, mobile games licensed from third-party game
distributors and/or developers in PRC as well as overseas
locations including Hong Kong, Taiwan, Malaysia, Singapore,
Japan and Republic of Korea (the “Mobile Game Company”).
In view of the negative trend of the business outlook of Mobile
Game Company, including factors such as lower customers
loyalty, high turnover rate of customers, decrease in revenue and
increase in research and development expenses, the fair value
of the investment in Hydra Capital decreased by approximately
HK$53.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

IE China and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in mobile
internet cultural business and provision of IT services; provision
of hospitality and related services in Australia; provision of
medical diagnostic and health check services; money lending
business; and assets investments business. The shares IE China
(stock code: 8081) are listed on GEM. As at 30th June 2017,
the Group held 303,000,000 shares of IE China, representing
approximately 5.7% of the total issued shares of IE China of
5,336,235,108 shares as disclosed in its monthly return for the
month ended 30th June 2017. As disclosed in the latest annual
report of IE China, IE China recorded an audited consolidated
loss attributable to the owners of IE China of approximately
HK$344.6 million for the year ended 31st December 2016.
As disclosed in the latest interim report of IE China for the six
months ended 30th June 2017, IE China has been dedicating its
focus on the development of its hospitality business. Riding on
the growing popularity in spending holidays and joining cultural
immersion activities in Australia, IE China will continue to boost
its overall operational capacity and enhance its competitiveness
to further improve the attractiveness of the hospitality and related
services it provides in Australia through the Resort and the
Grange Group. Meanwhile, given that IE China has established
proprietary software development and operation infrastructures
and is much experienced in providing professional tailor-made
information technology services to sizeable corporate clients, it is
expected that the IE China’s provision of IT services will continue
to perform well.

Total impairment loss of approximately HK$89.6 million
were recognised during the Year (2016:Nil), which was
mainly due to the significant decrease in the fair value of the
investment in Hydra Capital, IE China and CNEF. Impairment
losses attributable to IE China, CNEF and Hydra Capital are
approximately HK$25.6 million, HK$14.5 million and HK$48.0
million respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and the available-for-sale investments of the Group were
affected by the volatile investment market during the Year.
Looking forward, the global financial markets is expected to
be volatile and overshadowed by the recent unstable poalitical
environment in the Asian region, uncertain monetary and interest
rates policy of United States, and the expected continuing
slowdown of the China economy. The Directors expect that the
stock market in Hong Kong will continue to be volatile in the
coming year and such investment environment may affect the
value of both financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale investments of the Group. The Group
will closely monitor the market/fair value and trading volume of
these financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and the
available-for-sale investments held by the Group as well as its
fundamentals and will adjust our position to respond to market
changes in order to optimise our return.

Money lending business

The Group engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
during the Year. As at 30th June 2017, the Group had (i) loans
receivable of approximately HK$75.9 million, and (i) loan to an
associate of HK$5.0 million; approximately HK$80.9 million in
loans receivable under the money lending business (as at 30th
June 2016: approximately HK$48.2 million) and recognised
interest income (excluded inter-segment sales) of approximately
HK$5.9 million (2016: approximately HK$8.5 million). The
decrease in interest income was mainly due to the decrease in
the average loan portfolio amount during the Year. It accounted
for approximately 2.5% (2016: approximately 5.6%) of the
Group’s revenue during the Year. Loans receivable are interest-
bearing at rates ranging from 7% to 20% per annum (2016:
7% to 12% per annum). The segment profit of this business
segment was approximately HK$322,000 (2016: approximately
HK$745,000) during the Year. The decrease in segmental profit
was mainly due to the increase in operating expenses to expand
potential customers base during the Year. No default event
happened in respect of the Group’s loans receivable during the
Year (2016: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

It is expected the money lending market in Hong Kong will be
stable and continue to grow in the near future. The Group will
continue to expand the money lending business to effectively
utilise the Group’s cash resources and to diversify the sources
of the Group’s income.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.0 million (2016: approximately
HK$1.0 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted for
approximately 0.5% (2016: approximately 0.7%) of the Group’s
revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was approximately
HK$877,000 (2016: approximately HK$812,000) during the
Year.

There were no additions of disposals of the investment
properties during the Year.

Entertainment business

This segment primarily relates to the artiste and model
management and organisation of concerts. Revenue from this
business segment during the Year was approximately HK$3.4
million (2016: approximately HK$7.6 million). It accounted for
approximately 1.5% (2016: approximately 5.0%) of the Group’s
revenue during the Year. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to the keen competition and the decrease in investment
amount in the organisation of concert during the Year.
Segmental loss of approximately of HK$2.0 million was recorded
during the Year (2016: segmental profit of approximately
HK$834,000). The increase in loss from this segment was due
to the decrease in turnover and decrease in gross profit during
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 63.1% (2016: approximately
44.5%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year decreased by approximately
24.6% to approximately HK$13.8 million as compared to
approximately HK$18.3 million in the same period last year. The
decrease in selling expenses was mainly due to the decrease of
the selling activities and expenses of trade, wholesale and retails
of watches and jewellery products by approximately HK$3.8
million during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by approximately
54.2% to approximately HK$111.3 million as compared to
approximately HK$72.2 million in the same period last year. The
increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to (i) the
provision of director and staff bonus of HK$22.0 million (2016:
Nil) to the management of the films distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights business segment for
the encouraging performance during the Year; (ii) the increase
of the administrative expense of China Jianxin by approximately
HK$7.6 million for the expansion of the securities brokerage and
margin financing business during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Update on the adjustment to the consideration
of Glory International Entertainment Limited

On 27th August 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as varied and supplemented by the
supplemental agreement dated 5th May 2016 and entered into
by the same parties) with an independent third party vendor
(the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the Group acquired 49%
equity interest in Glory International Entertainment Limited
(“Glory International”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability and, together with its
subsidiaries, was principally engaged in advertising, promotion,
provision of public relations services, holding and sponsoring
stage performance, concerts, film production and other cultural
events, at an initial cash consideration of HK$36,750,000 (the
“Initial Consideration”) (the “Glory Acquisition”).

The final amount of the consideration (the “Final Consideration”)
for the Glory Acquisition was determined in accordance with the
following revised formula:

FC =NP x (12/15) x 7.5 x 49%
Where:

“FC” meant the amount of the Final Consideration subject to a
cap of HK$36,750,000;

“NP” meant the net profit of Glory International for the
Relevant Period (as defined below) (the “Relevant Period Net
Profit”), being the audited consolidated profit after tax of Glory
International attributable to owners of Glory International for the
period from 1st July 2015 to 30th September 2016 (“Relevant
Period”) as shown in the audited consolidated financial
statements of Glory International (“Relevant Period Audited
Accounts”) for the Relevant Period (which would only include
income or gain generated by activities in the ordinary and usual
course of business of Glory International).

Where the Relevant Period Net Profit was a negative figure, “NP”
should be deemed to be zero.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group and the Vendor shall, in good faith, determine the
Final Consideration in accordance with the above formula
within 75 days after the Relevant Period Audited Accounts were
available. Within 10 Business Days after the Final Consideration
is determined, where the Final Consideration was less than the
amount of the Initial Consideration, the Vendor should pay in
cash (or by way of cheque) to the Group a sum equal to such
difference.

For the avoidance of doubt, where the Final Consideration was
equal to or more than the Initial Consideration, neither the Group
was required to pay any additional sum to the Vendor nor was
the Vendor required to refund any part of the initial consideration
to the Group.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27th
August 2015 and 5th May 2016 for the details of the Glory
Acquisition.

According to the Relevant Period Audited Accounts delivered to
the Group on 22nd February 2017, net profit of the Glory Group
(NP) was approximately HK$12.9 million. In accordance with the
above formula, the Final Consideration (FC) was approximately
HK$37.9 million. As the Final Consideration was capped at
HK$36,750,000 (which is equal to the amount of the Initial
Consideration which had already been paid), the Group was not
required to pay any additional sum to the Vendor and the Vendor
was not required to refund any part of the Initial Consideration to
the Group.

The Group recorded the share of profit of the associates from
Glory International of approximately HK$1,294,000 for the Year
(2016: approximately HK$4.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Discontinued operation — disposal of AP Group
Investment Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with two independent third party vendors
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners to acquire
51% equity interest of AP Group Investment Holdings. Limited
(“AP Group”) at a consideration of HK$20,400,000 (subject
to downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed profit
as described in the sale and purchase agreement) (the “AP
Acquisition”). AP Group and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in provision of education and training programs in
relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The AP Acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.

On 13th June 2016, the Group and Lucky Famous Limited (the
“Purchaser”), an independent third party entered into a disposal
agreement (the “AP Disposal Agreement”) pursuant to which
the Group had sold to the Purchaser the 51% of the equity
interest of AP Group at the consideration of HK$20,400,000 (the
“Consideration”) subject to downward adjustments as described
below (the “AP Disposal”). Completion of the AP Disposal took
place on 1st July 2016.

In the event that the audited consolidated profit after tax of the
AP Group attributable to owners of the AP Group for the period
from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017 (“FY 2016 &
2017”) (which would only include income or gain generated by
activities in the ordinary and usual course of business of AP
Group and its subsidiaries) (the “FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit”) is
less than HK$16,000,000, the Group shall pay to the Purchaser
(or to its order) the Adjustment Amount (as defined below)
in cash within fourteen (14) Business Days after the audited
consolidated financial statements of AP Group for the period
of FY 2016 & 2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts”) are
available.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount” or the
“Contingent Consideration Payable”) will be determined in
accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000.00 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and “NP”
means the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit. Where the FY 2016 &
2017 Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP” shall be deemed to be
zero.

The FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts will be prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and audited, at the cost of AP Group, by an accounting firm
as approved by the Purchaser, adjusted for any non-recurring
items. Further announcement will be made by the Company in
relation to the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the Adjustment
Amount when the Adjustment Amount is ascertained.

Such adjustment mechanism is the same with the adjustment
mechanism in respect of the AP Acquisition from the original
owners. Details of such acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 12th October 2015.

It is the intention of the Group to re-focus the Group’s business
operations, leverage on the expertise of the management in the
China Jianxin to further develop the securities brokerage and
margin financing and money lending business of the Group,
and to dispose of other non-core business for better resources
management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Notwithstanding the downward adjustment mechanism of the
Consideration depending on the actual performance of the AP
Group for FY 2016 & 2017, with reference to the announcement
of the Company dated 12th October 2015 in relation to the
AP Acquisition, the consideration for the AP Acquisition and
the adjustment mechanism for such consideration are the
same as those under the Disposal Agreement. In the event
there is a shortfall between the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit
and the target profit of the AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017
of HK$16,000,000, the adjustment amount (“Contingent
Consideration Receivable”) is required to be paid by Very Easy
Limited and City Link Consultancy Limited, being the vendors
under the AP Acquisition, to the Group within seven (7) Business
Days after the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts are available,
and by the Group to the Purchaser within 14 Business Days
after the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts are available. The
original vendors’ obligations to pay such adjustment amount to
the Group are guaranteed by their respective beneficial owners.
Accordingly, theoretically, the financial consequence from
such adjustment to consideration would not have any material
adverse influence on the financial position of the Group and
return of the AP Disposal is protected in this regard.

As at 30th June 2017, the fair value of the Contingent
Consideration Receivable and Contingent Consideration
Payable, are of approximately HK$15.7 million and
approximately HK$19.6 million respectively, which is based on
the best estimation of the directors of the Company taking into
account the operation result of AP Group in 2016 and first half
of 2017.

Further announcement in this regard will be made by the
Company as and when appropriate.

OUTLOOK

Due to the keen competition in PRC and Hong Kong market,
it is expected the business prospect of the films distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights and the
trade, wholesale and retail of optical products, watches and
jewellery products will be very challenging and the Group will
continue to adopt a cautious and prudent approach in operating
these two business segments in the coming years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the recent unstable political environment in the Asian
region, uncertain monetary and interest rates policy of the
United States, and the expected continuing slowdown of the
China economy, the Group remains cautiously optimistic on
the prospects of the securities brokerage and margin financing,
money lending and other financial services business following
the launch of the Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect Program.

Nevertheless, the Group will continue to identify and capture
different investment opportunities in other business sectors
with enormous potentials to further diversify its businesses and
broaden the income sources of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s financial position remained healthy. As at 30th June
2017, the Group had cash balances of approximately HK$228.2
million (2016: approximately HK$101.2 million).

As at 30th June 2017, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,456.9 million (2016: approximately
HK$1,150.7 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2017 is approximately
5.2% (2016: approximately 1.8%), which was calculated on the
basis of the total debt (including borrowings, obligations under
finance lease and bank overdraft) divided by total equity of the
Group.

Finance cost for the Year is approximately HK$6.1 million (2016:
approximately HK$2.3 million). The significant increase of finance
cost was mainly due to the increase of the Group’s borrowing
outstanding during the Year for the acquisition and development
of new and current business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive measures
and monitor its exposure to the movements of these currencies
closely.

As at 30th June 2017, the Group had shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$8.5 million (30th June 2016: approximately
HK$1.8 million). The shareholders’ capital of the Company
is constituted of 853,302,276 shares (30th June 2016:
177,774,092 shares).

The Group conducted a rights issue, a placing of new shares
under general mandate and a placing of new shares under
specific mandate to increase the shareholders’ base and capital
during the Year, the details of which are as follows:

Rights issue

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12th
July 2016, the Company’s circular dated 12th August 2016
and Company’s prospectus dated 9th September 2016,
the Company proposed to raise not less than approximately
HK$213.3 million and not more than approximately HK$221.8
million before expenses by issuing not less than 355,548,184
and not more than 369,594,576 new shares (“Rights Shares”)
at the subscription price of HK$0.60 per Rights Shares on the
basis of two (2) Rights Shares for every one (1) share in issue
held on the 8th September 2016 (“Rights Issue”).

The subscription price of HK$0.60 per Rights Share
represented: (i) a discount of 25.00% to the closing price of
HK$0.8 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 12th
July 2016, being the last trading day before the publication of
the announcement of Rights Issue (“Last Trading Day”); and
(i) a discount of approximately 24.24% to the average closing
price of approximately HK$0.792 per Share for the last five
consecutive trading days immediately prior to the Last Trading
Day.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group intended to strengthen its existing businesses and
continued to identify different investment opportunities in various
business sectors with enormous potentials to further diversify
its business and broaden the income sources to maximise the
return to the shareholders. It was the intention of the Group
to expand its revenue and income stream through further
development of securities brokerage and margin financing and
money lending business of the Group. In view of the above, the
Board considered that the Rights Issue would enable the Group
to strengthen its capital base for future expansion of its existing
business and enhanced its financial position. Furthermore,
the Rights Issue would offer the qualifying shareholders the
opportunity to maintain their respective pro-rata shareholding
interests in the Company and participate in the growth and
development of the Company. As such, the Directors considered
that the terms of the Rights Issue were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

The Rights Issue was completed on 5th October 2016 and
an aggregate of 355,548,184 Rights Shares were issued at
the subscription price of HK$0.60 per Rights Shares. The net
proceeds from the Rights Issue were approximately HK$204.9
million. Up to the date of this annual report, the Group has
applied:

()  approximately HK$9.2 million for the repayment of the
unsecured loan notes with principal amount of HK$9.2
million issued on 8th April 2015;

(i)  approximately HK$150.0 million for the expansion of margin
financing business; and

(i) approximately HK$45.7 million for the expansion of money
lending business.

The above use of proceeds was in line with the proposed use
as set out in the public documents of the Company issued in
connection with the Rights Issue.

BEEN WK D

AEERNSEREEBREEMEABERX
BN Z BRI TRRERE - AE—
FLEITACEEF RIBFARANIR - 1M AR
wREAER - ARE 2 BRAEBE P
RAEE 2 EHELNARBEARNE X
BAH MR MR ARR - R EXFt - B
GRE - HEBSAEE R NREEARER

DA R R IEAH IR A 58 R SR T H A AR

AN - B RABERRRERBERFRSE
EBARARE Z BRI R 2 ,\ZIS”ATZi'

NER Bt EFRE HRERBAFES
B RFE AR T RARE 2 BB -
HBEERZZZE—"FE+ARHEHTK @ B1%

FRERRH060B T2 REEEITA K
355,548,184 X (IR A% 10 - HARFT1S IR F 8
BH2040EBETL - BHEAFRAH A%
EE# -

() #92BEBBTANEEN _ZT—A%FN
ANBEZEITZASEI2EE BT ER
RERRE

iy #1500EEBTHARERITRAME
%Rk

(i) WA 7TEBEBTARBRBIERE

HIRFTRFEREN A AR
B FElET &R -

N AL A

—T— LR ETERSRIERARAF 35

e e 0000000000000

e e e 000000000000 00

.

.

.



e e ce 000000000000 00

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Placing of new shares under general mandate

As announced on 18th January 2017, the Company entered into
a placing agreement (the “GM Placing Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company appointed a placing agent to procure, on a
best effort basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for up to
106,660,000 new Shares of the Company (“GM Placing Shares”)
at a price of HK$0.519 per GM Placing Share (“GM Placing”)
under the general mandate of the Company.

GM Placing price of HK$0.519 per GM Placing Share
represented:

() a discount of approximately 13.5% to the closing price
of HK$0.6 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 18th January 2017, being the date of the GM Placing
Agreement; and

(i) a discount of approximately 17.9% to the average closing
price of HK$0.632 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days of the
Shares immediately prior to 18th January 2017.

The GM Placing Price was determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and the placing agent with
reference to, among other matters, the then prevailing market
prices of the Shares.

The Directors were of the view that the GM Placing could
strengthen the financial position of the Group and provide
working capital to the Group to meet any future development
and obligations. The GM Placing also represented a good
opportunity to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital
base of the Company. The Directors considered that the GM
Placing was in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

The GM Placing Agreement was completed on 7th February
2017 and an aggregate of 106,660,000 GM Placing Shares
have been successfully placed to not less than six placees. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the GM Placing Shares were
approximately HK$53.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The net issue price of each GM Placing Share was HK$0.499.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the GM Placing Shares
were approximately HK$53.2 million. The Group intended to
utilized the net proceeds from issuance of the GM Placing
Shares (“Proceeds Allocated for the Margin Financing Business”)
for developing the margin financing business of the Group.

The Group has applied and lent out all the Proceeds Allocated
for the Margin Financing Business during the period from
May 2017 to June 2017 to its margin clients. However, due
to the aforesaid June Incident, the Proceeds Allocated for the
Margin Financing Business which were previously advanced to
margin clients were repaid by such margin clients to the Group
from July 2017 to September 2017 and the demand for the
Group’s margin financing facilities subsequently decreased. The
sum repaid to the Group was deposited in the Group’s bank
accounts as at the date of this annual report.

Having considered the expected decrease in demand for the
funding requirement in connection with the Group’s margin
financing business for the year ending 30th June 2018, the
Board has resolved to re-allocate the Proceeds Allocated for
the Margin Financing Business which have been repaid to the
Group as (i) general working capital and/or (i) funds for financing
future potential investment opportunities of the Group, as a
measure in response to the recent sudden change in market
conditions. The Board believes that such re-allocation enables
the Group to increase the efficiency in the use of the Group’s
cash resources so as to maximise its return. On such basis, the
Board considers that such re-allocation is in the best interest of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

BEEN WK D

A}

ff — IR & 0 2 FBE1T(E B0.49978

o

=l

BT REERERND ZABERBFENRD
532B&EBT - AREREHIT REELE
B ZRERBEARNERAEE 2 FRBEE
B OERRNFRRERS ZFAEFHE]) -

RZZB—+FRAZ_Z—tFAHME - K&
SECERESAENEARFRBERSZ
PSR HREFRER « A - AR LN
AEH  AEAREFER-_ZT—tFLAZE
“EtFNAARARKEERLENRNTER
FREFZOEBNITRBE RS 2B
H - HEUARETRBEZFKRDED - 1
AEHFAHY  CEEFAEENSRTRAEE
ZIRTTHRP ~

KREBBE_T—)\FRA=+THILFEEH
AEBHFRBEEXF cESTRBEHRERD
EFECRABERAAREEE 2 DEERART
REBEXB MEFRAEHOE)AIE—RE
BEER/R()RAEEZ AR ETIRERS
RHEES  FRRRIHTmRREZEE - &
ZEHE BRSO RAISAERENAEER
TERERZURE - eSS ERHREAL 1
BREE BEFRR - EHEHIENA
RAINEBR 2 BEREN

—T— LR ETERSRERARAR 37

e e 0000000000000

e e e 000000000000 00



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

Placing of new shares under specific mandate

As announced on 18th January 2017, the Company entered into
a placing agreement (the “SM Placing Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company appointed a placing agent to procure, on a
best effort basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for up to
213,320,000 new Shares of the Company (“SM Placing Shares”)
at a price of HK$0.519 per SM Placing Share (“SM Placing”)
under the special mandate of the Company.

SM Placing price of HK$0.519 per SM Placing Share
represented:

() a discount of approximately 13.5% to the closing price
of HK$0.6 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 18th January 2017, being the date of the SM Placing
Agreement; and

(i) a discount of approximately 17.9% to the average closing
price of HK$0.632 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days of the
Shares immediately prior to 18th January 2017.

The SM Placing Price was determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and the placing agent with
reference to, among other matters, the then prevailing market
prices of the Shares.

The Directors were of the view that the SM Placing could
strengthen the financial position of the Group and provide
working capital to the Group to meet any future development
and obligations. The SM Placing also represented a good
opportunity to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital
base of the Company. The Directors considered that the SM
Placing was in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The SM Placing Agreement was completed on 29th March
2017 and an aggregate of 213,320,000 SM Placing Shares
have been successfully placed to not less than six placees. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the SM Placing Shares were
approximately HK$106.1 million.

The net issue price of each SM Placing Share was HK$0.497.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the SM Placing Shares
were approximately HK$106.1 million and the Group has
applied (i) approximately HK$9.5 million for the acquisition of
membership of The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society;
and (i) approximately HK$86.1 million for developing the margin
financing business of the Group as intended. The remaining
unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$10.5 million will be
utilised as intended for developing the related business following
the acquisition of the membership of The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

At 30th June 2017, bank balances — (general accounts) with an
aggregate value of approximately HK$Nil (2016: HK$3,000) were
pledged as collaterals for bank overdrafts and bank borrowings
of a subsidiary.

As at 30th June 2017 the margin loans payable are secured by
the Group’s listed equity investments recognised in available-for-
sale investment and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss in the fair value of HK$73,461,000 and HK$59,566,000
respectively.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Business and
Operation Review” in this annual report, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of assets during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board passed the resolutions on 29th September 2017
(i) to appoint Mr. Hung Cho Sing as executive Director and (ii)
to appoint Mr. Tang Yiu Wing as independent non-executive
Director. Both appointments will take effect on 1st October
2017. Mr. Hung’s and Mr. Tang’s appointments will be subject
to the retirement and rotation requirements in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30th June 2017, the Group employed 117 staff (2016:
167). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staffs
are entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff
benefits included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and mandatory provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Listing Rules.
Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Particulars of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
outstanding during the Year and as at 30th June 2017 were as
follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WK D

Adjustment
on the number
of share
Number of options
share options afterright ~ Number of
Priceper  outstanding ~ Number of issue  share options  Market value
Period during share on atthe share options completedon  outstanding  per share on
Date of which share options exerciseof  beginning of lapsed during  5th October  at the end of grant of
Participants grant are exercisable options the Year the Year 2016 the Year  share options
RZB-RE
+AEA
TRERE REQ AEE fRRAA RER it
REMZ  HAEZ B4R BREEE  HAGREz  BRERZ
28A RILRH BRETES SRER BRERE  RREHE ZH%  BhEHE R
HKS HKS
BT v
Executive directors
HrEs
Mr. Lam ShiuMing, ~ 21st July 2014 21st July 2014 to
Daneil 20th July 2016 10.77 334,367 (334,367) - - 940
WAL E ZB2-MECAZT-B ZE-MELA-T-EE
ZE-EEACTH
Mr. Lam Kt Sun 21st July 2014 21st July 2014 to
20th July 2016 10.77 334,367 (334,367) - - 940
e Sk ZE-MELEZt-A ZE-BFtAT-HE
ZE-EEACTH
4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to
3rd March 2018 081" 1481400 - 199,103 1,680,503 068"
ZE-EZRRA Z5-RFZRAmRE
“Z-\§=A=H
Qther ligible 21st July 2014 21st July 2014 to
participants 20th July 2016 10.77 1431775 (1,431,779) - - 940
ApAERSEN  -F-BEtA-t-B —F-IELA-Tt-BZ
ZE-EEACTH
30th September 2015 30th September 2015 to
29th September 2017 1489 2,072,088 - 279,711 2,351,799 147
“E-RFARSHE ZE-RFARZTRE
ZE-tENAZTAR
4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to
3rd March 2018 081" 8297900 - 1,115,264 9,413,154 068"
ZE-EZRRA Z5-RFZRAmRE
“Z-\§=A=H
13951897 (2,100,509) 1,594,068 13,445,456

The price per share on exercise of options and market value per  *
share on grant of options have been adjusted after taking into
account of the effect of the rights issue completed on 5th October

2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERSREBEASEHN

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 55, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has 35 years of experience
in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 40, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 2013, he has over 10 years’ experience in the field
of financial reporting, financial management and audit experience
in the PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration in Accounting. Mr. Lam is
a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam was an executive
director and a non-executive director of Kiu Hung International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kiu Hung Energy Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 381) for the period from October 2009 to
July 2013 and for the period from August 2013 to April 2016
respectively, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam was an independent non-
executive director of DX.com Holdings Limited (“DX”) (stock
code: 8086) from August 2013 to January 2015, an independent
non-executive director of GET Holdings Limited (“GET”) (stock
code: 8100) from October 2013 to April 2015 and was also the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Finsoft Financial
Investment Holdings Limited (“Finsoft”) (formerly known as
Finsoft Corporation) (stock code: 8018) from September 2013 to
February 2015. The shares of each of DX, GET and Finsoft are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM”). He joined the Group in August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 40, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Global Energy Resources
International Group Limited (stock code: 8192), the shares of
which are listed on GEM. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s degree
of business administration in accounting awarded by the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr. Choi
also obtained a master degree of business administration
awarded by the University of Hong Kong in 2014. Mr. Choi is
a fellow of the ACCA and a member of the HKICPA. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial field. Mr. Choi was an independent non-executive
director of Zhidao International (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
1220) from January 2012 to September 2014 and the financial
controller and company secretary of Taung Gold International
Limited (stock code: 621) from September 2010 to April 2013,
shares of both of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was also the independent non-executive
director of G Neptune Berhad, a company listed on the ACE
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad from May 2014 to
May 2017. He joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 47, was the chief
executive officer and an executive director of Co-Prosperity
Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) from May 2016 to March
2017 and acted as its chief financial officer from September
2015 to May 2016; and an executive director of Sino Haijing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1106) from August 2015 to
November 2016, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1019) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from March 2014 to June 2016. He was also
the group financial controller and company secretary of Ngai
Shun Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246) from January 2014
to October 2014, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. CK Lam holds a bachelor’s degree of
science in accounting awarded by Brigham Young University-
Hawaii in 1996. Mr. CK Lam also obtained a master’s degree
of science in e-Commerce from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a fellow of the HKICPA
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. CK Lam has around 20 years of experience
in accounting and corporate finance. He joined the Group in
December 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EERSREBEASEHN

Ms. Cheng Lo Yee (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 62, was employed
by the Hong Kong Government as an Executive Officer from
1978 to 1992 and worked in various government departments
including the Home Affairs Department, Social Welfare
Department, Government Secretariat, and Office of Members
of the Executive and Legislative Council (now called Legislative
Council of the HKSAR). Her last rank was Senior Executive
Officer. Ms. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business
and Finance with Honours from the University of Portsmouth in
England in 2003. Ms. Cheng is currently an independent non-
executive director of China Demeter Investments Limited (stock
code: 8120), the shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange. She joined
the Group in November 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental to safeguarding
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing
shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company has adopted
and applied corporate governance principles that emphasise
a quality board of Directors (the “Board”), effective risk
management and internal control systems, stringent disclosure
practices, transparency and accountability save as specifically
disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provision as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Continuous
efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s internal
controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the Code for the separation of the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and (ii) code
provision A2.7 of the Code requiring the Chairman to meet with
the non-executive Directors as described below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERHRE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code sets out that the roles of the
Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group’s strategies.

Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daniel, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group’s prevailing
circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@)

(©

any matter determined by the Board to be material involving
any conflict of interest for a substantial Shareholder or a
Director;

any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

0)

(i)

policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.

financial controls, compliance and risk management:

(i

(it

)

(iv)

the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

the approval of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and published reports;

the establishment and review of the effectiveness of
the Company’s systems of internal control and risk
management process; and

the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

TRERHRE

TIER(BREAERFTRAZES)RETE
=S

(@)

HAEESRERERL S RETZRR

HEFEZEMF

BmERCER

EHEARRHERBRTRNEBZE

I8

)

(i)

B

HEARANBBEBREML S mRERME
AHEIBRZBUR

BARREEXH LY B EIEAM
LI

HE KR EAMIBER © &
FIVEZERRBERL Y R

BoRE HEBEENMEFNERE
AZHEEH

PRS- R MERERE

(M

(i

)

(v)

WEARRFREZZEREAX
BH

HEARRZEZRAMBHRER XM
ZHE

B MBI ARE Z WERE IR R AR
KEBERIEF AR K&

R EARARENBLRRZ
SRR FZEMNERES) -

—T— LR ETEReRERaRAR 47

oo 0 00

e e e o000 00

e e e 000000000000 00



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERHRE

(d) changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

(e) major appointments and removals:

(i)  appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i) recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”); and

(iv) the appointment or removal of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).

()  delegation of authority:

(i)  changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board;

(i)  changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to the
Chairman and the senior management.

(9) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 42 to 44 of this annual report.
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The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications. Their mix of professional skills and experience
is beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters of
the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.
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All Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr. Lam Kit
Sun, Mr. Lam Chi Keung, Mr. Choi Wing Koon and Ms. Cheng
Lo Yee, had participated in continuous professional development
with respect to directors’ duties, relevant programmes and
seminars or had perused reading materials and updated
information in relation to business and industrial development.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time
to time to ensure that he/she is fully aware of his/her roles,
functions, duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision
A4.1 of the Code. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provision of the Listing Rules
and the bye-law(s) of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). At least
one-third of Directors shall retire from office every year at the
Company’s annual general meeting.
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Mr. Choi Wing Koon and Mr. Lam Chi Keung will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws
and Mr. Choi Wing Koon and Mr. Lam Chi Keung being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
despatched.

BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board meetings
at approximately half year interval. Ten board meetings were
convened during the Year and the attendances of each Director
at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 9/10
Mr. Hung Cho Sing
(resigned on 2nd June 2017) 8/10

Ms. Cheng Hei Yu
(resigned on 7th October 2016) 1/5

Mr. Lam Kit Sun 10/10
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong, Stephen

(retired on 30th November 2016) 3/5
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai

(retired on 30th November 2016) 3/5
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 7/10
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 8/10
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(appointed on 30th November 2016) 3/5
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TEERRE

GENERAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL BRRBERIFHAS
MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue EE& &8 EBRERFFEYE 28R

with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with them — B K& o Hith iR 845 5l A & ERRR B 83 -
in annual general meetings or other special general meetings  WEEIARER 20 »
and encourages their participation.

One annual general meeting and three special general meeting RAFER - ARFEAM—ABREEF AL
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each M= XRRERIAE  SEENLEZREAS

Director at these general meetings are set out as follows: Z SRS T
Annual Special BE BRX
General General BE 455
Meeting Meeting g K§
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 1/1 3/8  MNBRSEAE(ERE) 11 3/3
Mr. Hung Cho Sing R 2 AE
(resigned on 2nd June 2017) 0/1 3/3 (R—Z—+tFA-B&T) 01 3/3
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu =2+
(resigned on 7th October 2016) 0/0 0/1 (RZZ—X"F+AtBEE) 00 0/
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 11 3/3 MR EAE 171 3/3
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen PRAB S
(retired on 30th November 2016) 0/1 0/ (RZZE—RF
+—A=THRME) 0/1 0/
Independent non-executive BUHHTESE
Directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai MK A&
(retired on 30th November 2016) 1/1 0/1 (RZZT—RF
+T—A=1+HRE) 11 0/
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 1/1 3/3  MZ|EA /1 3/3
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 1/1 2/3  BKWRAE 11 2/3
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee HEELT
(appointed on 30th November 2016) 0/0 2/2 (RZE—RF
T—A=1+HEZE) 00 2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung
and Ms. Cheng Lo Yee and an executive Director, namely,
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@ no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b) remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;
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(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Wing Tai

(retired on 30th November 2016) 0/0
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 11
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(appointed on 30th November 2016) 0/1
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 1/1

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Choi Wing Koon and
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee and an executive Director, namely, Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the
Group. In view of the new amendments of the Code in respect
of diversity of board members that has come into effect on
1st September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for the
benefits of diversity. During the year, the Nomination Committee
conducted a review of the Board’s composition. The Nomination
Committee reviewed the Board structure, size and diversity
annually and recommends any proposed changes to the Board
to complement Company’s corporate strategies.
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1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 1/1
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(appointed on 30th November 2016) 0/0
Mr. Lam Wing Tai

(retired on 30th November 2016) 11
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th
February 2012), which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance
with the Code. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing
Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Ms. Cheng Lo Yee.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the audit
or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial and accounting practices, internal control and
risk management. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

2 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 2/2

Ms. Cheng Lo Yee
(appointed on 30th November 2016) 11
Mr. Lam Wing Tai

(retired on 30th November 2016) 11

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31st December 2016 and annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year. Based on its review and discussions
with management and the external auditor, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the annual consolidated financial statements
for the Year were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and fairly present the Group’s financial
position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to the
commencement of and after the completion of the audit. For
details about the internal control review, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” in this
report below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the Codes
and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and assets of the Company. The internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis through identifying
and grading risk components, perceiving control impact and
facilitating remediation plan. The development of our risk
management and internal control systems are largely based on
the framework as set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The risk
management framework, coupled with our internal controls,
ensures the risks associated with our different business units
are effectively monitored, and are in line with the Group’s risk
appetite.
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The Group adopts both the top-down and bottom-up approach
to monitor the principal risks affecting the business as follows:

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its division on a quarterly basis and
establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

3. The Board reviews and approves the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on a regular basis.

In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit department
in the Group, the Group review annually on whether there is a
need for such functional department. Given the possibility to
engage external professional assistance, the board opposed
to divert resources to establish a separate internal audit
department.

During the Year, an external consultant was engaged to conduct
a review on the internal control systems, which covers certain
procedures on the provision of securities trading and margin
financing services, and makes recommendations for improving
and strengthening the internal control systems. In addition,
reviews on the human resources function (including staff
qualifications, experience and training programs) and accounting
and financial reporting mechanism were conducted. The Board
will continue to work with the external consultant to discuss and
follow-up on the status of remediation of the internal control
weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in the coming
years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of
inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding
by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure
obligation of the inside information.
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Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls
and reports to the Board on such reviews. For the Year, the
Board considered that a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
and save for the events as disclosed on pages 14 and 15 in the
sub-section headed “BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW-
securities brokerage and margin financing” in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” contained in the annual report for the
Year, considered that the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report from pages 99 to 111 of
this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:

TRERHRE

BT B <=

FEMBBRROKHBEEEE(EFE) STAD
EBMARRDREZ - LB R ESRTT
ZRFBFREG LRE - REEERLBERS
BB - NAFE - EAZEE 22510
T

Fees payable

Services rendered FriR AR 7% ESER

HK$°000

F#&xT

Audit services ErT RS 4,081
Non-audit services IEEEH RS

e Circular of rights issue o {HAGIE K 100

e Interim results o HHHERZEAS 200

e Annual results announcement o FEEENH 50

4,431

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of Directors and Senior Management Profile on
page 42 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

DNEMWE

MEEREERRRBZ RAWE » RZBERF
BHENAFREWLENEENENEEAER
MO EERERERABRBEFB|—&A -

ERETRESRZNEESTH

RAFEER - NABIDERA TR BIM 8+
B EMBETAESFETESFIHNIEETRI
(MEESTR ) REZETARBESFX HHIT
A EFHABEWNR  MAEFERANASF
EABETIRETA -

—T— LR ETERSRIERARAF 61

© 0000000000000 0000000000000000 00



e e ce 000000000000 00

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERHRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks fit
convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, to require a special general
meeting to be convened by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the
Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the
“Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

e At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

e At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in
a special general meeting.

e At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by a shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election as a director and also a
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
(including that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) shall be lodged with the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days’ notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of the
Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted by a show of hands.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of
the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member
of the Board, committees or an appointed representative,
will attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
questions of the Shareholders. The Company will also invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to answer the Shareholders’ questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEREXH

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-  ZRA &) 2 48452 52 A48 N 2 )40 B 8] 23 Bl Bk
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and X FTRANA R 2 #uh AR -
the Company respectively.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

As a company that aims to provide the best entertainment,
services and products in Hong Kong, UNIVERSE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED and its
subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or “We”) are committed to
sustain a stable corporate development growth, while protecting
our environment, being socially responsible and adhering to
the highest standards of corporate governance. Pursuant to
the newly released requirement of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting guide (“Environmental, Social and
Governance Guide”) in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities from the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, we have prepared the 2017 Environmental Social and
Governance Report (thereafter “ESG Report”), covering the
whole range of our business, including securities brokerage
and margin financing, money lending, leasing of investment
properties and securities investment, video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products,
watches and jewellery products. The scope of this report will
cover the Group’s initiatives on introducing the concept of ESG
to our employees and clients, putting them into practices in our
daily operations and disclosing results as a year-end summary
over this covered period.

It is also the intention of our management to provide an
overview of our Group’s direction in managing ESG related
matters, driving for ESG initiatives throughout the group,
and communicating our ESG performance result with our
stakeholders.

The reporting period of this report shall cover the period from
1st July 2016 to 30th June 2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products while
generating revenue for our shareholders, and recognising the
importance and contributing to both the environment and local
community have always been one of our guiding principles.
ESG, is thus considered a high priority within the group, and is
especially championed by our senior management. The culture
of environmental protection is widely adopted throughout the
Group, and our management is fully committed to minimizing
impacts to the environment arising from our operations.

Due to the nature and the wide scope of our business, it
is important for us to identify and manage impacts to the
environment attributable to our operational activities in order
to minimise these impacts if possible. It is also our intention
to promote environment protection internally throughout our
operation, and we advocate environmental protection to our
clients as well.

AIR AND GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS

The Group is primary engaged in film production, retail and
securities trading services, and as such do not involve any direct
activity in the emission of air and greenhouse gases. We took
the initiative to examine the issue of such emissions across
our operations, and the results indicated no significant impact
could be reported. Our overall operation does not involve any
combustion process, industrial, or heavy transportation activities,
and thus can be concluded that no major impact can be found
in this aspect. As such we do not have any policies in relation to
air or greenhouse gas emissions nor are we aware of any need
for complying with any laws and regulations regarding such
matters. We will continue monitoring our operation and ensuring
our emission in relation to air and greenhouse gases will be
maintained at this level, and will disclosure further information as
changes occur.
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CARBON EMISSION

During this reporting period, our Group started has examined
the overall carbon emission generated due to our operation
activities. We found our operational activities had a minimal
carbon footprint. It is however the intention of our senior
management to take further action, and assessing our annual
indirect carbon emission over this reporting period is our first
step.

We estimated that our carbon footprint, as a Group, based on
our electricity consumption and the emission factor provided
by our electricity providers (data on electricity consumption
and the carbon intensity factor are available on the electricity
bill and the sustainability report from our electricity provider
respectively). With this information available to us, We look to
further investigate and work with our employees, along with
external stakeholders, on enhancing our overall performance
and minimising our carbon footprint. Further information and
progress will be disclosed in the subsequent ESG report.

As a summary, and based on our electricity consumption alone,
the Carbon Footprint for our Group in this reporting year (1st
July 2016 to 30th June 2017) was 227,210kgCQO2e.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Our business does not involve generating, managing or handling
any hazardous waste, and after careful investigation, we
concluded that our operations did not result in any hazardous
waste being produced. As such, we do not have any policies in
relation to hazardous waste management nor are we aware of
any need for complying with any laws or regulations regarding
such matters.
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For non-hazardous waste, our Group is cautious about waste
generation from our daily activities, and work closely with our
employees as well as partnering with our suppliers on reducing
our solid waste. We promote the culture of recycling, and had
placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations to increase our
employees’ awareness on recycling. We also took the initiative
further by driving for a paper-less working environment. Our
staff are encouraged to work “paperlessly” wherever practically
possible, by communicating through emails and e-format
documents instead of hard copies. The effort was well received
and widely supported by our employees.

Our Group also owns a retail business, which includes a team
responsible for packaging and delivering our finished products
to various sales points. It is determined the total reported waste
amount is insignificant, and thus is not reported. However,
our Group has started a dedicated programme, specifically
on reporting our accumulated non-hazardous waste amount
generated from all of our business. Further data will be disclosed
in the subsequent ESG reports.

USE OF RESOURCES

Our operation uses minimal amounts of resources and we
mainly consume electricity and paper to operate and to sustain
our business. In an effort to promote environmental protection,
our Group actively encourages our employees to consume
resources smartly, which include paper and electricity, and
are particularly our primary focus on reduction in consuming
resources in this reporting period.

We request our employees to stay cautious on their consumption
behaviours, especially on paper and electricity. Along with our
consumption policy, our Group introduces best consumption
practices in our premises to further emphasise the importance of
being “smart” on resource consumption. Our Group also takes
an active role in upgrading equipment on lighting and controlling
air-conditioning systems to further reduce our overall energy
consumption. Energy consumption patterns and intensity are
also recorded to identify other energy efficiency opportunities.
Details will be discussed in the subsequent section.

RIR - B RERBRS

HREZERY  AREFEEERFELHT
EEZBERY  WEEBRHEEZ A EN
B LA [E B RE 2R Y o T AT HEE SR [ ORI A XX
1t - BERAERRERERROLE RS REE
HEWMBOER - RIAITETERCTER
B BREBTIRERATER T E&LIE
¥ AEBHEFRA A E BRI
TAB - & BREEINRMNERMFIREZX

5 o

AEBTHERTERS - ZAXHRE —(AH
% EFAEBRRENMLETTRHEER -
TR - PIRE 2 EEMRETA - BT
tERE - AT AREREB—HEMFE &
RBERFFEEBELEZ RHETBEEYMH
B E—TEBESEERRMAERNRE &

& REARHRE -

ERA A

BMEBLEMAEREEN  AREEELT
ZHREN LMK - (ERRFIHESIRBIRERN
—IHfE - ARERAREREESSERE
BEHRERAREENEANZER - #fRHE
BENLERHMBLERERNERZE °

BPEREEHEBERTARSEE  LER
HRREB N ZBREL - HETHERERZA
B AEREE TIES T HE R REREED -
—FRBAl B2 IERBERZERN - NREETT
BEFRRARBRERERHRLG  WE—F
PRAKBBALIRHFR - AEENREEREREE
ARBE - ASHEMETERS - FHERER

43 == A

BERITW °

—T—tEFR ETERSRIERARAT 69

e e 0000000000000

e e e 000000000000 00

.

.

.



e e ce 000000000000 00

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARE

RESOURCE CONSERVATION

Our Group understands energy generation is generally a heavy
fossil fuel burning process, and with polluting substances being
emitted directly to the atmosphere, it leads to significant impact
to our environment. With this in mind, We are naturally cautious
about our electricity consumption and are trying our best to
minimise our impacts.

The majority of our consumption on resources is spent on
electricity consumption, and as discussed above, We are
proactively implementing measures to conserve and stay
“smart” on usage. Our retailing business serves our customers
throughout the day, and the long working hours require
significant amounts of electricity to operate. To ensure our
operation is “smart” and efficient, our shops are designed and
furbished to utilize energy efficient equipment. LED lights, which
are more efficient as compared to other lighting devices, are
installed in most of our shops, providing the necessary sources
of lighting for operations. Our signboards, which are another
long-hours electricity operating equipment, are equipped with
timer and is programmed with an automatic switch off function
daily after 11pm. Our air-conditioning systems are set with a
temperature range from 20-25°C (depending on the actual
needs) in both retail shops and administrative offices, providing
a comfortable yet energy efficient environment for our customers
and employees. In addition, we request our employees to turn
off unnecessary electronics devices, such as lights, photocopiers
or air conditioning after use.

Our employees are encouraged to work with a paper-less
working place. Practices such as double-sided printing, paper
recycling, the appropriate use of used-papers are recommended
throughout our premises to foster a good practice in resource
consumption. To take the paper-less initiative one step further,
our Group took the initiative to work with our partners and
clients, convincing them to communicate through e-format
documents. Both of these measures are intended to reduce our
overall paper waste.

As a summary, and after a careful data consolidation and
analysis, our Group reported a consumption of a total of
420,759kWh of electricity in this reporting period (1st July 2016
to 30th June 2017).
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SOCIAL

The business of our Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, our film production business involves
working with a large group of individuals across various
industries. Employees include actors, productions workers, retail
shop sales and even packaging workers. We understand the
best way to attract or retain talents is by offering competitive
compensations, and treating our staff fairly and equally in
regardless of their culture, gender and interests, while complying
to laws and regulations. As one of our guiding principles, We
will grow our business sustainably and in a socially responsible
manner, and continue to monitor and improve in areas as
needed.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
STANDARD

Our business involves working with a large group of
professionals from various industries, producing various types
of products that ranges from film production to retail goods.
We understand that the success of our Group depends on the
seamless teamwork among our employees. We thus recognise
our people are our greatest asset in contributing toward our
achievements. We believe their works of excellence must be well
compensated, and offer a competitive remuneration and benefits
scheme to retain our talents. Our employment policy stresses
on providing Equal Opportunity to seek and employ the right
talent to join our team and ensuring the continuous success of
our operations. Our employment policy is enforced according
to the Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming
to provide a fair compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and anti-discrimination scheme for all of our employees.
During the employment process, we are cautious on not posing
any discrimination on grounds of gender, disability, pregnancy,
family status, race, color, religion, age, sexual orientation,
national origin, trade union membership or other conditions
recognised in law, and the same policy extends to our internal
training and promotion practices. Our human resource
department is also responsible in ensuring compliance with all
regulations during the employee recruitment process, where CVs
and identification cards are carefully reviewed on not employing
child or forced labour, or employing any staff under the age of
16 years old as our full-time staff. In addition, we protect the
interests of our part-time employees, by restricting their working
hours to under 4 hours per day. Any breach of such action will
be reported to the company’s senior management revision and
subjected to further company disciplinary action.
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B HEREARE

In the reporting period between 1st July 2016 to 30th June
2017, our Group has found no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations during our operations.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

To ensure our remuneration scheme stays competitive, our
Group had established a Remuneration Committee since
15th July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy,
structure of the Directors and senior management, and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee will also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management. In details, the main principles of the
Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@) ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his or
her own remuneration;

(b) ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and assess
the performance of Executive Directors and certain senior
management of the Group.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the employees of our Group is determined
by the remuneration Committee, and will be assessed based on
merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is reviewed
annually and certain staff are entitled to commission. In addition
to basic salaries, staff benefits included discretionary bonus,
medical insurance scheme and mandatory provident fund.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Our Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees employed.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$0.80 million (approximately HK$0.85 million
in the previous year), which had been recognized as expenses
and included in staff costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES AND ANTI-
DISCRIMINATION

Qur Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.
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RIR - HERERA®RE

We employ the most appropriate professionals to fill our Group’s
needs, ensuring to employ based on merit without discriminating
based on gender or any specific or non-specific demographic
profile or political persuation. As mentioned, our employment
process, along with our appraisal, remuneration and incentive
scheme are conducted openly and transparently, and our Group
is proud to work with a diversified workforce. The following
charts provided an overview of our staff’s gender and age
distribution with total 117 employees during in the reporting
period:

Employee Gender Distribution
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Employee Age Distribution
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Our Group had issued a comprehensive staff handbook,
providing the basis for human resources management about our
employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest days,
conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety policy,
personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity policy.
Each of our staff are provided with a copy of such employee
handbook upon joining our Group, and updates will be informed
upon any revision.

During the period from 1st July 2016 to 30th June 2017, there
was no reported material breach of related regulations and laws.

74

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017

I <30 M 30-40 ™ 41-50 7 51-60 ' >60

AEEERB-—HEENETFM - REBRN
BERX BHEFE FEIMER 1B
S RER BERFEAZEEE  BEAEH
(B BREFEREBRNANERE R
HE - BTRMARGEEESEREHETF
- BEARmER BN RAISEHME
RASEH o

R-ZE—RFLtA-BE-ZT—+tFA=T
HILHRE - Y EREREERBBIESR AR
HEF

© © © 0 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 0000



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We strive to maintain a safe and comfortable working
environment, and it has always been one of the priorities in our
Group. We generally set out our Health and Safety practices
according to the guideline from HKSAR Labour Department
(section “Occupational Safety & Health”), where safety
equipment, measures, practices are enforced accordingly. In
addition, our senior management makes regular visits to our
offices to monitor and review potential health and safety risks, or
any accidents that may occur.

Our Group provides a safe working environment for our staff
to operate day to day business. Sufficient lighting and air
conditioning and spacious working areas are provided in all
premises, and safety practices are also recommended to
avoid work related injury. For example, our employees are
recommended to have at least two persons in moving large and
heavy equipment to avoid unnecessary accident. Our offices
are equipped with safety equipment such as fire extinguishers,
and they are placed in prominent and easy to access locations
within offices. Signs and instructions for emergency incidents
(such as the access to fire safety route or rally points) are clearly
stated, where both of our new recruited and current employees
are periodically informed or reminded. We also employ third-
party contractors to perform regular check-ups, ensuring our
safety equipment are in perfect and working condition. Internally,
regular trainings are also conducted to raise the awareness
on health and safety, and the practical operation of our safety
equipment. Our senior management also perform regular
walk-throughs and interviews to collect suggestions from all
levels of our staff and to understand their concerns, if any, for
further improvement.

Our film production team involves degrees of potential risk of
injury during production. We are cautious about occupational
safety during the shooting process and maintain the highest
health and safety standards to ensure harm and damage is
avoided. Extra safety procedures and measures, such as safety
equipment (ie: fire extinguishers and dedicated personnel on
safety) and special insurance are purchased to ensure film
production team work under as safe as an environment as
possible, and being taken care under different circumstances.
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B HEREARE

During the reporting period from 1st July 2016 to 30th June
2017, our Group had no material non-compliance breach with
relevant standards, rules and regulations, and reported with no
major injury or accident during operation.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Our business involves producing products in the entertainment,
financial and retail industry. In order to stay competitive, periodic
updates and training for our employees are required for our
Group to stay abreast of the latest market development. We
put great emphasis on training and equipping our employees
with the latest market trend for them not only to excel in their
positions, but also in their careers. The financial market is a
dynamic and fluid industry, and with trends and information
evolve regularly, our business needs operate with the latest
market knowledge to stay competitive. We thus request our
SFC license holders, and especially our Account Executives,
to update their financial market knowledge by attending at
least 5-10 hours of CPD training per year. It is also part of our
fulfilment according to the rules of the SFC.

Our Group believes in nurturing talents internally to enhance
the overall capability of our workforce, and our experience has
proven it pays great dividend in upgrading our employees’
capability and bring great return to the success of our business.

EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The nature of our business involves working with a variety of
stakeholders, and our Group maintains an open engagement
channel with our suppliers. We conduct regular interviews and
meetings, and as well as periodic factory visits to conduct
quality inspection, ensuring our products comply with the latest
requirements. Qualifications of suppliers, such as business
licenses, trademark registration certificates, trademark use
authorizations, product testing reports, and customs duty
certificates are examined and quality product knowledge
training, perfect after-sales service, mature marketing are also
conducted regularly.
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SUPPLY CHAIN OPERATING
PRACTICES AND MANAGEMENT

To ensure our offered products are to the satisfaction of our
customers, our teams of professionals are working diligently to
ensure our products comply to regulations, manage and handle
any comments or suggestions from our customers in detail,
provide the best arrangement on protecting the intellectual
property of our products, work with our supplier on assuring
the quality of our products, and implement a comprehensive
process on protecting the consumer data and privacy as best as
we can.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Our offered products spread across a few industries. As such,
the laws and regulations, practices, and customers related issues
applicable to such products are rather heterogeneous. Our
details on managing these differences can be found as below:

Financial Products

Our Group strictly follow the regulation from SFC investors,
safeguarding the information or related data of our customers
and investors according to the guidance from the SFC. Regular
training is also provided to our account executives, ensuring all
of our offered financial products will not mislead our clients, and
our clients are fully informed about the associated risk and the
content of their offered products prior to transactions. During
this reporting period (1st July 2016 to 30th June 2017), we have
not received any complaints or comments from our investors
and customers in relating to our financial products.
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B HEREARE

Retails Products — Eyewear

Our qualified optometrists conduct eye-tests in our shop
and these tests are performed under section 12(1)(a) of the
Supplementary Medical Professions Ordinance. Contact lens
are also recommended to our customers by optometrists when
a valid prescription is provided (under section 7.4 of the Code
of Practice of the Optometrists Board). Our Group only offers
genuine products (under the Trade Description Ordinance
(Cap. 362)), where false trade descriptions, misleading or
incomplete information and mis-statements in respect of goods
provided in all sales activities are strictly prohibited in all of our
shops (under the Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362)).
Our products are directly purchased from the manufacturers
and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and authorizing
documents are provided on re-selling goods. A “Triple” quality
check-up process will also be performed before sending them
to our shops (by buyer, procurement officer and front-line sales
staff). To further ensure the quality of our offered products,
our front-line employees will also perform a so called “Table of
Tolerance” quality check on the lenses. The check is prepared
by the professional association in the Hong Kong Optical
Industry as a quality check up on the contact lenses, ensuring
the status of our packing the expiration of these lenses are valid
before re-selling to our customers. In addition, our customers
are protected under the data protection and the privacy
policy, where personal information (i.e.: name, ID and contacts
information) will be protected with limited access only, and are
not to be released under any circumstances.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1st July 2016 to
30th June 2017, our Group received a total of two comments
from our customers, which were related to the eyewear
prescription and quality of the lenses, and toward the service
quality of our sales. Both cases were seriously handled with
immediate responses. As a method of redress, the relevant
customer was provided with a brand new and alternative
product, and the matters were resolved satisfactorily. Our
senior management had also interviewed that particular frontline
employee, attempting to understand the situation, and a follow
up phone call with this specific customer was provided in the
end. The incident was well managed and successfully closed,
where a successful resolution was reached with the customer in
the end.
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Retails Products — Watches

Our Group pays closely monitors our offered watch products,
especially in relation to their safety issues. We consistently
keep up-to-date with laws and regulations related to our watch
products, ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information
and labels, and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a
breach of law. On the other hand, regular communication is
conducted with suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation
and measures accordingly.

During our procurement process, our Group relies on
a comprehensive procurement policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents, or
directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors, will
be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are requested
from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will also perform quality
control checks to ensure the quality of our watches are up to
standard before shipping to our shops for sales.

Our Group applies the same data protection and privacy policy
throughout our business. Our customer data are stored in our
point of sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.

Although there were no comments received in relation to our
watches sold during this reporting period (1st July 2016 to
30th June 2017), our Group is proactively engaging with our
customers by forming a dedicated, and providing after sales
service.
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B HEREARE

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ANTI-MONEY
LAUNDERING

The Group is committed the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aim to maintain the same vision with our
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

We are also committed to conduct our business in an ethical,
personal and professional manner. We do not tolerate any
activity relating to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion,
money-laundering and other fraudulent activities associated with
our business operations. Conflict of interests will be reported,
and to avoid inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client
transactions. Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering
training and circulars are provided to further convey our
messages to our staff and to improve awareness and recognition
of suspicious transactions.

One of the businesses of the Group is its securities business and
measures are enforced to prevent money laundering activities in
our operations. Adoption of strict control over opening of client
account, which would be subject to approval by responsible
officers is in place to ensure no fraud and money laundering
activities arise. Name search in the anti-money laundering
database system, maintained and provided by third-party
vendor, will be performed on new clients against current terrorist
and sanction designations. Customer filing system is also set
to perform customer identification, identity data and preserve
transaction records. Large and suspicious transactions and
other aspects of work will be reported to respective authorities
once identified.

The Company regularly reviews transactions by high-risk clients,
in order to identify suspicious transactions. In the event any
suspicious transactions are noted, the responsible officer would
then notify the SFC.

The compliance manual of the Company has set out the policies
and procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering.
All staff are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are procedures in place for reporting
suspicious fraudulent actions to the Company’s management,
for the corporate management, we request to have two signers
to monitor each other.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation in
relation to corruption and money laundering activities identified,
involving the Group and its employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. Our management
team plays an important role in mobilising staff to join all of these
activities, which reflects our management team’s commitment
to sustainable development. We believe by encouraging staff
to participate in a wide range of charitable events, community
awareness will be raised, and more people will be inspired to
take part in serving our community.

During this reporting period, we provided actual support toward
Egive For You Charity Foundation Ltd. and Yan Oi Tong Limited,
by participating in their charity run programme, and donated a
total of $702,000 in support of their respective programmes. Our
Group will continue in supporting these meaningful social events
and ensure more activities will be done in the future.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHES

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Universe International Financial Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 30th June 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 114
to 115.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2016: same).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 41 of this
annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) by reason of
their holding of the shares of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$702,000 (2016: HK$165,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 339 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30th June
2017 amounted to HK$79,365,000 (2016: HK$95,492,000)
including contributed surplus, of HK$112,429,000 (2016:
HK$112,429,000), which is only distributable subject to
conditions as set out in Note 27(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 340 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details of
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and
any invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

0)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually, an
“Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the Group
or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any invested entity; and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to business
operation or business arrangements of the Group.
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(©)

(d)

86
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Maximum number of share options
available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme

(i)  The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share option granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. Share options of the Company
which are lapsed or cancelled for the time being shall
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the said
30% limit; and

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Schemes is an amount
equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the dates of approval of the Share Option
Schemes unless approval for refreshing the 10% limit
from the Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes for
the time being of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant to each grantee must not exceed 1% of
the aggregate number of shares for the time being in issue.

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

© © 0 0 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000o0

(©)

(d)

IRIE IS B et 81 Al 3T TR AR
BZHE LR

() REERESTERARRERKEM
Hupr B8R L 2B RITEBARE
BITERAIET I ROEE @ &%
TNEBBIREEITRG 230% °
RNNFVE R ERE e o8 2 BB AR A -
REt 8 LA L Z230% LREF - ~155F
BERN: &

(i) FREARBBRAEEIF10%LZ L
BRI - RIREERES B DR T RS
TREZAABREETERA T
BOZBOERSBEAERIER
PR SIS B ARREEITRM
B210% °

N

E2HN 2R IR
REBERSMERARH AALEZ EA
12 A MERN - RIEEREFT S RAR
B ER A E M B AESLER AR L R
TR b2 BRE(BREEITERRITE
ZREBRRE)EITEME RIT 2 R B% -
TEEBERCHTRNAEZ1% -



(e)
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Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular share option. A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period of 10 years commencing on the
Date of Grant and expiring on the last day of the said 10-
year period.

Payment on acceptance of the share
options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on acceptance
of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (i) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, provided that the subscription price should
not be lower than the nominal value of a share.
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Particulars of the share options under the Share Option Scheme REAMNR -_ZE—+FEXA=+H - BERET
outstanding during the Year and as at 30th June 2017 were as 2|15 R 4R ITE ZBRE SHBI0T ¢
follows:

Adjustment
on the
number of
Number of share options
share options after right Number of
Priceper  outstanding Number of issue  shareoptions  Market value
share on atthe  share options completed  outstanding  per share on
Period during which share  exerciseof ~ beginning of  lapsed during on 5th October  attheendof ~ grant of share
Participants Date of grant  options are exercisable options the Year the Year 2016 the Year options
RZB-7E
+HEA
frERRE RE AEE fhwAk RER Rt
BENZ WA B4%e  EREHE  EAORz  BRERZ
28\ RiLAH BREGRY SRER  BREHE  EhEE ZHE  EREYE BhmE
HKS HKS
BT AT
Executive directors
HrEs
Mr.Lam ShiuMing, ~ 21stJuly 2014 21st July 2014 to 10.77 334,367 (334,367) - - 940
Danell 20th July 2016
WhALE 2-mE ZE-MELACT-BE
tAZt-B  ZE-REtAZtH
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 21stJuly 2014 21st July 2014 to 1077 334,367 (334,367) - - 940
20th July 2016
e ZE-mE ZE-MELACT-AE
tAZt-B  ZE-EtA-1H
4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0811* 1,481,400 - 199,108 1,680,503 068"
3rd March 2018
TR ZE-RECAmAE
=RmA “5-N\¥=A=H
Qther eligible 21stduly 2014 21stJuly 2014 to 10.77 1,431,775 (1,431,775) - - 940
participants 20th July 2016
EteER2EN  2-mE  _E-MELACT-BE
tAZt-B  ZE-REtAZ1H
30th September  30th September 2015 to 1.489° 2,072,088 - 219,711 2,361,799 147
2015 29th September 2017
—E-nF “T-RENA=TRE
ARZTE ZE-tFAAZTAR
4th March 2016 4th March 2016 to 0811* 8,297,900 - 1,115,254 9,413,154 068"

3rd March 2018
SIRF CToAEIANEE
=AlA “5-\F=A=H

13,951,897 (2,100,509) 1,004,068 13,445,456

* The price per share on exercise of options and market value per — * TTIE AR AR 1 2 12 iR (B 15 BT IR BB R 1 2 &

share on grant of options have been adjusted after taking into R EEEE —FE—NF+ARAZKZ H#
account of the effect of the rights issue completed on 5th October R BB VEH FAE o
2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing
(resigned on 2nd June 2017)
Ms. CHENG Hei Yu
(resigned on 7th October 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Shiu Kwong, Stephen
(retired on 30th November 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAM Chi Keung
Mr. CHOI Wing Koon
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee

(appointed on 30th November 2016)
Mr. LAM Wing Tai

(retired on 30th November 2016)

Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr. Choi Wing Koon will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws
and Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr. Choi Wing Koon, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
despatched.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as specified
by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company is
satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 52 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30th June 2017, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) which were required to be
(a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest which
any such Director was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EEEHES

EERFRITHRAERKSD
MHERORES 2R

RIZE—tFRA=1TH SEEFREARFE
ZITBRABRBN (E&LFEAPIEET1EE
ZFRBME GO ([FF LRGN ]))FHEE @)
RIFEF LB RDIEXVEET R E8D #A
HMEARRB Rz #Em(BRERNZEFE
SRIEE S KARGREEBIERSUREFR R
B ZHER)H (D) RRBENARFIRESFK
HIEIRHIEXVEREIG2{F R EREF < B
MRzl (CRBELTRAMERTAEZ
METAEFETESRZNEETRI([E£
STRIDZARMEARNR AR P2 RN

Number of
the Company’s Percentage of

Name Nature of interest shares held shareholding

AR A H]
A ERME ROEE BEREDL
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Founder of a discretionary trust 17,021,853 1.99%

(Director) (Note 1)
MNREAE (EF) —IHEREEFE 2RI A (KIEET)
Mr. Lam Kit Sun (Director) Beneficial owner 1,680,503 0.2%
MR E(EF) EmEA A
Note: G

1. The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited which in turn is interested in
17,021,853 shares of the Company. Central Core Resources
Limited is, the trustee of a discretionary trust under which certain
immediate family members of Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are
discretionary objects.

1. ZE#EFT 235 ABCentral Core Resources
Limited ° #% 72 & # 5 Globalcrest Enterprises
Limited & #B B % 17 I8 & - 1 Globalcrest
Enterprises Limited A4 A &]17,021,8530% i 19
A #EZS ° Central Core Resources Limited
TR EZ ETERRBAZEIEZALZ
ERETZETA -
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All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2017, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief
executives of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2017, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:

EEEHES

FERR

AERMEFHARFEBTHRABRAE - R
“TEHFRNA=THR BLABREEER
ARBEBITHABI  RRRARABM K
MERAR (D o B B IR IR RE 75 K I B R DI B XVED
F2NEIDERARFEE - KN ARF]
REHRRAEROIEXVEIEIIRATFEZE
FCMAMEESORBLIAT

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Number of Shares
and underlying
shares of the

Name Nature of interest Company held the Company

EARAH

R ARRG CRITREEHE

-t EEMtE REEROEE 2N B DL

Leung Yuet Kwan Belinda Interest of a controlled corporation 143,573,276 (L) 16.83%

(Note 1)

2 AR () R EE kR

Ng Yau Sing (Note 1) Interest of a controlled corporation 143,573,276 (L) 16.83%
REF(MFET) R LB

Unique Prosperity Limited Beneficial owner 143,573,276 (L) 16.83%

EmEB A

Note:

1. These 143,573,276 Shares are beneficially held by Unique
Prosperity Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong which is
owned as to 95% by Ms. Leung Yuet Kwan Belinda and 5% by Mr.
Ng Yau Sing.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2017, no other person
has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by Company under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

o o

BT

1. 7% % 143,573,276 8 i% 13 FA Unique Prosperity
Limited(— R BB FMA L2 A7) B
A - iMUnique Prosperity Limited?> Bl f122 A &
RERREFIEHEIB% 5% °

EXFBREZAERRAARNZER -

B EXFEEEN RZE—tF A=+
B BEEMATHRARE 25 - BERD
REFFHRELER AR BIRIEES RBEE
BIZEXVEBE336IKB T BT 2 B el (]
HEZEIAR o

—T— R ErERemERaRAF 93

e e 0000000000000 0000000000000

e oo 00



oo o0 00

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHES

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 25%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 86%
Sales

— the largest customer 7%
— five largest customers in aggregate 20%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI”), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the
executive Director of the Company, for renting (1) an industrial
unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over
a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level basement
(with a saleable area of approximately 13,983 square foot)
and (2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a 28-storey
industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium
plus a 2-level basement (“Rented Properties”) for warehouse,
ancillary office and carparking uses from 25th February 2014 to
24th February 2017, with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (the
“Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived at following arm’s
length negotiation between the Group and UPI with reference
to the rental valuation performed by Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent property valuer, as at 30th November 2013
which reflected the then market rent. Such tenancy expired
on 24th February 2017. Renewed tenancy agreement for the
Rented Properties from 25th February 2017 to 24th February
2018 was entered into by UDE and UPI, with a monthly rental
of HK$244,000 (“Renewed Tenancy Agreement”) and the terms
of the Renewed Tenancy Agreement were arrived at following
arm’s length negotiation between the Group and UPI with
reference to the rental valuation performed by Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent property valuer, as
at 29th September 2016 which reflected the then market rent.

During the Year, UDE has paid a total of HK$1,917,143 and
HK$1,010,857 in rent to UPI in respect of the Rented Properties
in accordance with the terms of the Tenancy Agreement and
Renewed Tenancy Agreement respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHES

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is a connected person of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules). As such, the
Tenancy Agreement and the Renewed Tenancy Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios for the continuing connected
transactions in respect of the Tenancy Agreement were less
than 5%, the Tenancy Agreement satisfied the exemption under
Rule 14A.34(1) of the then Listing Rules and was only subject
to the reporting and the announcement requirements set out
in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the then Listing Rules, the annual
review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the
then Listing Rules, and was exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
then Listing Rules.

Since the applicable percentage ratios for the continuing
connected transactions in respect of the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement were less than 5% and the total consideration was
less than HK$3,000,000, the Renewed Tenancy Agreement
satisfied the exemption under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules
and was fully exempt from all reporting and announcement
requirements, annual review requirements and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

To the extent applicable, the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms; and
(c) in accordance with the Tenancy Agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

To the extent applicable, the Company’s auditor was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
in respect of the Tenancy Agreement issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its letter containing its conclusion in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on page 95 and
96 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange in accordance with Rule
14A.57 of the Listing Rules.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
(including the “Renewed Tenancy Agreement”) entered into by
the Group during the Year, all of which constituted exempted
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules, details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 52 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHES

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to enter
into an agreement that would or might result in the Company
issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30th June 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

A\ Crowe Horwath.

To the shareholders of Universe International Financial
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 112 to 338,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th
June 2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30th June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREMBRES

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business

Refer to Notes 3.1(b), 4(a)(ii) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RES
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L2 B PSRRI FES. (D) * 4(a)(i) K20 °

Key audit matter

BARELER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

4y

NELNTHEREXEHETRE

We identified the recoverability of accounts receivable from
the securities brokerage and margin financing business as a
key audit matter due to the significance of accounts receivable
from clients arising from the securities brokerage and margin
financing business amounting to HK$257,884,000 as at 30th
June 2017, the significant judgement in determining whether
objective evidence of impairment exists and the related
estimation uncertainty in the measurement of individual
impairment losses.
HREBEFRERAARBEEBEEABRUEFER(N -
—tFXA=1+HA257,884,000/87C) ' MEBEREFHE
BEFEEERNEARHE - AREFEERIRERRERD
HEEA T HEN SRS ERFRAIEEBEELRE
WRRF R FT M E I 25l A — TR RS B A% R 0 -

Our procedures in relation to recoverability
of accounts receivable from clients arising

from

the securities brokerage and margin

financing business included:

A

HERBEFRLERTRBEEBELRN

JE W= P R IE R AT W B 1 PR T A2 e 243

we understood through enquiry with
the management the established
policies and procedures on credit
risk management of the Group and
assessed and evaluated the process
with respect to identification of
accounts receivable from clients with
objective evidence of impairment and
the measurement of the impairment
allowance;

FRMOEEEELER  HMATHE &
SEAMEERREENR TR RE
Fr - SWHREWE FRRETEREZRD
RIEMIE R B R ERE T BT R R
+HE

we examined whether the master
client agreements contain the right to
dispose of the securities collaterals for
settlement for clients’ obligations;
BfimERFeanaet B RN A H
ERFEARANBEEFPER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recoverability on accounts receivable from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business (Continued)

FAREFXEE @)

EBFELERFRAEREELERR T TH]
E] 1 (&)

Key audit matter

RRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EMERnEERERERETRE

The accounts receivable from clients arising from the
securities brokerage and margin financing business which
give rise to the greatest estimation uncertainty are typically
those with exposures that are not fully secured or are subject
to potential cash flows or collateral shortfalls.
BEEERTEREXBEENEREPRFTEEZERKR
BT TREMNEFAT AR BESERIZIE N
FERRA LR TR ENRIE -

- we checked the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of
the securities collaterals to supporting
documents and with reference to
closing market prices;

- BARBXFHEIV2RKHE &
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%@@%%éﬁ&&%ﬁ
ERE

- we checked the calculation of
the shortfall accounts receivable
from clients after deduction of the
recoverable amount of the securities
collaterals; and

- BMZEEREWREFEREREHRES
BRI REeREENERETES
®: &

— we assessed the sufficiency of the
impairment loss recognised with
respect to the above shortfall, after
taking into account other factors like
credit worthiness and past collection
history.

- RERFEEEZBEKIRREHSFEM
BE%E - BRIt = R e
BEEEEEARR °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Fair values of the unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership

Refer to Notes 3.3(i), 4(a)(iv) and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB RES
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HLETREESRI LT ERE R LB R F
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L4 A PIFRERMIFES.3() ~ 4(a)(iv) S 16 °

Key audit matter

BRELEER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EFANBLRNHRRELSRETERE

We identified the fair values of the unlisted investment funds
and unlisted limited partnership as a key audit matter as the
carrying amounts of these financial instruments are significant
to the consolidated financial statements and selection of
valuation methodologies and determination of key valuation
assumptions requires the use of significant judgement and
estimates. As at 30th June 2017, the Group held interest in
unlisted investment funds of HK$24,898,000 and unlisted
limited partnership of HK$57,334,000, which have been
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
BPBELTREESRIIFLTEREERARAFEENA
—HAREZZR  REEZSer TANKEBEYHGEEY
BWMEMTEBEKR  MEEBHENEREREIZMHERSZNE
EYAERERAE RhE - RZE—LFXA=+RH &
EEFHIELITRELSHELZ24,898,0008 L K IELTH
fRE %R AIMEZRS7,334,0008 T - WHEEATHILE SR
BEE °

These unlisted investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership are stated at their fair values, classified under level
three in the fair value hierarchy.
ZEFLIMEBREESRIFLTEREEARKREATET
R EN0BEAATESRIETHWE =R -

The fair values of unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership were determined based on the net asset
values of those unlisted investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership as at 30th June 2017, which had already taken
into account the fair values of the underlying investments of
the unlisted investment funds and unlisted limited partnership.
FIETREESRERGEARANATENREZEIFLT
BREEGRIFLTAEREER AR —+LFA=1THH
BEFEET B RFLTREESRIFLITERER
NEIMEERE 2 A TE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
determination of the fair value of these
financial instruments included:

BB EREETZE R I AN R TERM
BATEVIE P B35 -

we obtained and reviewed the
subscription agreements of the unlisted
investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership;
BMEELEMIELTREES NI L
MAEREREARRERZE

we tested the accuracy of the net asset
values of the unlisted investment funds
and unlisted limited partnership by
checking to their financial statements;
BifERES AV BRE  AFEIELTR
BEHERFITAREGBAREESRE
HOYERETE

we evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuers engaged
by the unlisted investment funds
and unlisted limited partnership for
determining the fair values of the
underlying investments and the
valuation methodology employed;
B IE L TIRER S RIELTAR
AR ARIMEANBE NI EM S B
Eae N REBIEAEERBRE A TE
ARFERARET A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Fair values of the unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership (Continued)

FAREFXEE @)

HLTREBEEZRHF LT ERERR AL RF
B (&)

Key audit matter
BREEXSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ERNEERERERETRE

The unlisted investment funds and unlisted limited partnership
engaged independent external valuers in determining the fair
value of their underlying investments at fair value through
profit or loss by using discounted cash flow method or market
approach.

T REESIIELTAERAGER AR ZRE LINEE
B - A EREREBEAA TS EEERSERATETAR
RN ERIREN R TE -

- we engaged our valuation experts to
assist us in critically assessing the key
inputs used in the valuations of the
underlying investments of the unlisted
investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership which require significant
estimation and judgement. We
also evaluated the adequacy of the
independent external valuers’ work; and

- BRAZBEESERHBEI M A
B EMIREES LI ETARERER
AIM MR E N ERIER P AAED
BERMEF RAEN T Eg AR - B
AR B MR ER N TIER R
PANEId

— we considered the adequacy of the
Group’s disclosures in relation to the
unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership.

- HfER EXEAMFLITREES
RIELFMBEREBAAREEHES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
Refer to Notes 4(a)(vii), 4(a)(x), 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RES

FAREFXEE @)

BEREFEERBEFG
2R A TS RERM T 4@ M) ~ 4@)(K) ~ 859 °

Key audit matter

BARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BRANERNEERERERETRE

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill, the
trading rights held in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and brand name, as a key
audit matter due to that significant judgement exercised by
the Group’s management on the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill, the
trading rights held in the Stock Exchange and brand name
have been allocated.

m BEEEEEENTGLESEKEE FBEEMARS
FBRAA([BMRMA)XGERREEEZREEEELA
WElSRERITEERAG  SRMAREE BB S
BN R B R A A REREREE -

The Group’s goodwill, the trading rights held in the Stock
Exchange and brand name as at 30th June 2017 amounted
to HK$28,064,000, HK$11,400,000 and HK$825,000
respectively.

RZTE—tFRA=+H EXEZHE AHEBIMAR
51 R mIE%TES B /28,064,000 7T + 11,400,0007% 7T &
825,000 7T °

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill, the trading rights
held in the Stock Exchange and brand name
included:

BPMERETRHE  IRBRMRX S M
BABRERN R ZIEFRE

- we understood the key control in
relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill, the trading rights held in
the Stock Exchange and brand name,
including the process of allocating
goodwill, the trading rights held in the
Stock Exchange and brand name to
appropriate cash generating units, and,
determined the recoverable amounts of
the cash generating units;

- BMTHRBEEEE  MEBIMRSHE
K2R ER L AT - 818
DICEE - PR SR L mEHE
BERBHSEFEMUNURETRESE
B AIKNEI S IRT

- we evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of
independent external valuer engaged
by the Group;

- KR EEEMEEEIINBEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
(Continued)

FAREFXEE @)

BER B EEBEFE ()

Key audit matter
BREEXSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ERNEERERERETRE

Goodwill, the trading rights held in the Stock Exchange and
brand name have been allocated to the respective cash
generating units. Impairment of goodwill, the trading rights
held in the Stock Exchange and brand name are assessed
by the management through comparing the recoverable
amounts of the cash generating units to which the goodwill,
the trading rights held in the Stock Exchange and brand name
are allocated with their carrying amounts. The recoverable
amount is the greater of value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. In determining the value in use, the management
estimates based on discounted cash flows taking into account
key assumptions including discount rate, future growth rate
and expected gross margin.

HE RBXARXZIENREEHER I EESERTE
AEN - -BE ARBXMRZELREEEZBERE
BEABHLEE MBI HERMEZEED KRN
BeEABM 2GR SRS BEETTE o ATKE
CHENERABEIRFERLEXEIMEZRSE - RETE
EREER  ERENENRURREREMLT  EFERZ
FTERRBEBWRE - RRERKXRIEFENE -

During the year ended 30th June 2017, the management
concluded that impairment of approximately HK$1,314,000
and HK$21,666,000 are provided on the goodwill allocated to
the trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products and
trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches and jewellery
products respectively.

BE_ZE—+tFRAAZTAHLFE  BEEEBHAEAZED
B MERZEURERRKEERES BHERTERE
BES IR 2 2D BIET £91,314,0007%8 7T &2 21,666,0007% 7T
BB

- we evaluated the reasonableness of
key assumptions used in the value
in use calculation against historical
performance and future business
plan of the Group in respect of each
cash generating unit and checked its
arithmetical accuracy;

- BMFEY BEERHSEASUC
BERE RARKESEMERBEER
HER IRACZEEBRRESRERE
WEZEEMERE

-  we tested the key inputs used in the
discounted cash flows against the
relevant supporting evidences and
approved budgets; and

- BPASER R RO ETEE L
MRBReREMFAZEEZRAE: &

- we evaluated the sufficiency of the
relevant disclosure of impairment
assessment in the consolidated
financial statements.

- RAFEBFRaMBHRRMEZEERE
S HEEEE M -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RES

REMBHRRRZHAEAEE L
SN E R

EEFHHMENRAR - HWENBIBRF®RA
O HER - BT RERA M ERER LM
HAZ BB RS -

BFEEEMBEREANBERL TRERLME
B BN EREE M ERERTAT AN

Ly EA
BB o

BERMYREVBERENESZ  RANEE
EEMER - FHERT - EEEMER
BEEAMBHRRARMETZBIETAT
MERFEEREBREUFFEEAHER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREMBRES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RES

BB BER G S M B RRE
ENEE

BB REHGREMBRRERRS TR
RN IGEF R M B R ERERMIG &
BRE  THABRREMERNZHE RS -
BPERERBKERE - Bt 2N RPINRE
PIEEAME R - RAMTIRABRENRNET -
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BREREBSERRE  HETRRILREE
EREAETHNER T RRREREMAFEN
BRI - 88 5RO AR ERRF S #R AR
HERREENAERRBER T AR EEMAE
RIBEZEFREMBERRFELNEERER - Rl
IR BB AR -

RIREE BB R ENETEZBES - RAE
RERAE L RTERREEE © HAIT

o BHRIRFHEBREREFK AR MG AR S B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREMBRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Dune, Charles.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29th September 2017

Chan Wai Dunge, Charles
Practising Certificate Number PO0712
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEBEERER

As at 30th June 2017 R=ZFE—+F~NH=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2017 2016

R=F—tF R-FT~F
AA=+H ANA=1H

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
PRt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - e R ERE 6 3,702 6,224
Investment properties HEYEE 7 25,560 25,560
Goodwill [EES 9 28,064 59,447
Other intangible assets HEmmpEE 8 23,583 14,231
Film rights and films in progress BRNRERBUER 2B 10 41,073 54,278
Interests in associates N /N - 12(a) 19,393 25,730
Interests in joint ventures REERRZ R 13(a) 251 482
Loans receivable EUE K 21(a) 45,500 20,000
Loan to an associate By —EBERARCER  21() 2,940 -
Loan receivable from a joint venture JEW—R&Z AR ZEFRK  13(b) 8,595 8,364
Film related deposits BRI 2 45,284 31,592
Deposits paid =ANEER 14 191 363
Deferred tax assets RIETIA S B 30 6,447 365
Contingent consideration receivable JEU i SAK(E 22 - 10,930
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE 16 155,693 85,802
406,276 343,368
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 10,066 14,304
Accounts receivable FEURBR SR 20 333,859 224,739
Loans receivable EUWER 21(a) 30,400 23,163
Loan to an associate BY—RHBEARzER  21(b) 5,000 5,000
Amount due from an associate i Gl Dk /N PO 12(b) 964 -
Deposits paid, prepayments and BNETE - ERNFIERE
other receivables fth FE YL SR IE 14 100,674 68,492
Financial assets at fair value ERERERATFEARZ
through profit or loss TREE 15 232,629 247,444
Contingent consideration receivable JEUREL SA(E 22 15,737 -
Tax recoverable AU [E IR 93 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNRIES
— trust accounts —{E5EERP 23 93,014 116,667
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSEEY 24 228,222 101,173
1,050,658 800,982
Assets associated with disposal DEARBIELE Z HEHER
group classified as held for sale Zifﬁ A E 42 - 6,381
Total current assets REBEELE 1,050,658 807,363
Total assets HEE 1,456,934 1,150,731
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to the owners KREHE AELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 25 8,533 1,778
Share premium Egvapiak 27(a) 893,345 532,910
Other reserves ﬁﬁﬂfuﬁﬁ 27(a) 67,867 67,301
Retained earnings REB B 27(a) 43,614 151,162
1,013,359 753,151
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 168 (1,230)
Total equity S 1,013,527 751,921



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEEESBR
As at 30th June 2017 R =—F—+FNH=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2017 2016
R-FB—tF RZZ—RF
~A=1+H ~NA=+H
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
PRt FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 28 10,000 -
Obligations under a finance lease B &M E#E 29 28 63
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 30 13,413 2,229
23,441 2,292
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable e BRFK 31 92,447 254,722
Amount due to an associate R —FEEE R E 2B 12(b) - 1,941
Other payables and accrued E At B R BT S
charges 32 234,560 64,121
Contingent consideration payable &Ik AR(E 33 19,568 -
Borrowings BE 28 43,063 9,200
Deposits received BWETE 22,645 43,813
Obligations under a finance lease BbE M EAAIE 29 35 35
Taxation payable FESFIE 7,648 9,068
Bank overdrafts IRITEX 28 - 4,020
419,966 386,920
Liabilities associated with disposal ~ 2$BA#ELE 2 HEMAT
group classified as held for sale ZIABEaE 42 - 9,598
Total current liabilities FEBEERAE 419,966 396,518
Total liabilities FS =R 443,407 398,810
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 1,456,934 1,150,731
Net current assets REEEZEE 630,692 410,845
Total assets less current liabilities BAEERRB ARG 1,036,968 754,213

The notes on pages 120 to 338 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 338
were approved by the Board on 29th September 2017 and were

signed on its behalf.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Director

Lam Kit Sun
Director
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For the year ended 30th June 2017 #Z —Z

—+FNA=THILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2017 2016
“B-tf ZE-RE
Note HK$000 HK$'000
iz TiEn T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: BELeEK .
Revenue Wig
Sales of goods - video distrioution, optical, HEEM-SEET KB
watches and jewellery products BHRELGEEM 52,161 72,320
Income on film distribution and exhibition, EFRTRA - R RER
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights BEMERA 138,725 45,563
Income from other businesses EfEBRA 45,758 33,150
Total revenue el 5 231,644 151,083
Cost of revenue RE A
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA (32,500) (38,000)
Related cost on film distrbution and exhibition, ~ EFE{T R « FH REX
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights SYMEEERA (55,052) (13,129)
Cost from other businesses EEBRE (3,735) (3,779)
Total cost of revenue W@ A (91,287) (54,904)
Seling expenses HEBA (13,834) (18,279)
Administrative expenses THER (111,317) (72,240)
Other operating income/(expenses) Efﬁ,@%%\/ (BR) 60 (4,429)
Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary DB Bk — R B A Bl 2 W 46(a) - 1,571
Impairment loss of fim rights and films in progress E%Wﬁ%&%‘%ﬁ* ZEY
AEBE 10 = (4,226)
Impairment loss of goodwil HERERE 9 (22,980) (29,923)
Impairment loss of interest in an associate Rl e AR B ESE 12(a) (3,227) (18,421)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale financial Rl ESREERERE
assets 16 (89,643) -
Impairment loss of other receivables Hingla i EsE (1,532) -
Impairment loss of accounts receivable [EURFREBR 20 (10,470) -
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEERAERH 8 (148) (139)
Other (losses)/gains - net Ei(E8) WE -8 39 (6,048) 151
Other income EtA 38 4,525 22,872
Gains/(losses): W&/ (BE) :
Fair value change of financial assets at BRERRATEARZ SR
fair value through profit or loss BELTEED 12,679 (143,564)
Fair value change and loss on redemption of ER AR ES A TEE
convertible bonds RESE = (1,813
Fair value change of contingent consideration EUSARE 2 AT EED
receivable 22 4,807 4,080
Fair value change of contingent consideration ERSAREZ ATEEY
payable 33 (8,638) 60
Finance income BBHA 40 294 298
Finance costs BB A 34(0) (6,091) (2,263)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates JE(EEENF(BR),/ G (216) 3,899
Share of losses of a joint venture EE—HAEAFER (231) (224)
Loss on deregistration of a joint venture HH-HAEARNER (24) -
Loss before tax Bﬁ%mﬁa 34 (111,677) (166,453)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrsR () /% 41 (6,919) 26,179
Loss for the year from continuing operations FRRERHELEEBNER (118,596) (140,274)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRILZEXK
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued FRRADKIHEEERN
operation &/ (B8) 42 4,075 (1,602)
Loss for the year FNEE (114,521) (141,876)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEZEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 &2 —F—+tFNNA=+HILFZ

2017 2016
“B-tf ZE-RE
Note HK$000 HK$'000
iz TEx FET
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hit2EWE /(B8
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: Tﬁ‘é'ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ PEEER AR
Net movement in available-for-sale investment BN ESREERRE AT
reserve in respect of available-for-sale HjETxﬁfEﬁﬁ ZEEEE
financial assets:
Net changes in fair value of available- T Hjﬁ%nﬂ BEZLYE
for-sale financial assets 2E 54 (88,565) (12,340)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts L) iﬁfﬂ”ﬁ}%ﬁﬁ il
transferred to profit or loss: &%
Impairment loss HERE - 89,643 -
Realised loss upon redemption of Boo e e REERN
available-for-sale financial assets BERER 6,571 -
96,214 -
Release of ranslation reserve upon disposal of R EMB AR EEHERE
subsidiary (29) -
Currency translation differences ERpEES 4 (708)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREM2ZERE/ (B]) -
forthe year, netoftax ?DF?EEIEZGN _____________ (13,048)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEBRAE (106,860) (154,924)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company: ~ AARHEAELEE
— from continuing operations - REBELCEE (118,403) (139,973)
- from discontinued operation - REBLRIHEEEE 4,075 (817)
Loss for the year attributable to owners AARHE NELFRESR
of the Company (114,328) (140,790)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests: ~ FFiR IR L&A -
~ from continuing operations - RERBELEEK (193) (301)
- from discontinued operation - REBRIELEEHG = (785)
Loss for the year attributable to non-controling ~ FEEREREEENEE
interests (193) (1,086)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UTEGEEAZEFBEE
attributable to: -
Owners of the Company AREAEBA (106,667) (153,852)
Non-controlling interests SRR (193) (1,072)
(106,860) (154,924)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners ~ AATEE AEEZ2EEE
of the Company arises from: BERE
Continuing operations RELEER (110,713) (153,050)
Discontinued operation BRIMEEEE 4,046 (802)
(106,667) (153,852)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the ~ FRALNTHE ABEERERE (Restated)
Company for the year (expressed in HKS): (MBRHR) (mE5)
From continuing and discontinued operation =~ REIBERCA UL ELEHK
- basic —EK 43(e) (0.211) (0.863)
 diluted — % 43p) 0.211) (0.863)
From continuing operations REBESEER
- basic —HA& 43(a) (0.218) (0.858)
~ diluted —gE 43(p) (0.218) (0.858)

The notes on pages 120 to 338 are an integral part of these #HNF120B EFE338E it AlLEEESH
consolidated financial statements. Bk —8 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERPER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 2 —F—+FNNA=+HILFZ

Attributable to the owners of the Company

BAAER AR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
(Note 27(a))
B Rt Hftis RERA gt FERER fgs
(W271)

Note HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
izt TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL AL TEL

Balance at 1st July 2015 R-E-LELA-BzEH 2,984 213,630 148,463 206,943 572,020 247 572,267
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year EREE - - - (140,790) (140,790) (1,086) (141,876)

Other comprehensive loss A2EER
Net change in value of avallable- ATt HESREE 2 BE

for-sale financial assets 8% 16 - - (12,340) - (12,340) - (12,340)
Currency translation differences ~ SHAEZE - - (722) - (722) 14 (708)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ E#t2 EEAE - - (13,062) - (13,062) 14 (13,048)
Total comprehensive loss ERREFRAE

forthe year : - (13060 (140790 (15385 1072 (154924

Transactions with owners BEEAZRSE
Issue of new ordinary shares from ~ EEER{THEER

placing 25 6,159 216,923 - - 203,082 - 223,082
Transaction costs atfributableto ~ EELERITHEEREG 2

issue of new ordinary shares REME

from placing 25 - (8,026) - - (8,026) - (8,026)
Rights issue of shares HRETRA % 5968 1145578 - - 120546 - 120546
Transaction costs attrbutableto  RERE{TH LERER 2

issue of new ordinary shares REMA

from rights issue 25 - (4,195) - - (4,19) - 4,19)
Capital reorganisation ArEs % (13,333) - 13333 - - - -
Lapse of unlisted warrants FEMAREERN 27(e)) - - (81,961) 81,961 - - -
Employee share option scheme B2 B iEst2l

- Issue of share options - ERER - - 3,576 - 3576 - 3576

- Lapse of share options -EREXN - - (3,048) 3,048 - - -
Non-controling interest arising on B ABEE 7 3R ER

business combination 46(c) - - - - - (405) (40g)

Total contributions by and KLAREARERAAD
distribution to owners of AREADRZEE B
the Company, recognised BRERTER

directly in equity (1206 319280 (68,100) 85,000 334,983 5 34578
Balance at 30th June 2016 and ~ W=F-A~ERAZ1H
1st July 2016 R=E-AEtE-H
B8 1,778 532,910 67,301 151,162 753,151 (1,230) 751,921
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss fo the year ] - - - (a8 (11439 199 (14520)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RAEREER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 &2 —F—+tFNNA=+HILFZ

Attributable to the owners of the Company

BAAER AR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
(Note 27(a))
B Rt Hftis RERA gt FERER fgs
(W271)

Note HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL AL TEL

Other comprehensive loss A2 ERE
Net changes in fa value of ARHESHEECATE

avallable-for-sale financia 2836

assels 16 - - 188,565 - (68,565) - 163,565
Reclassifcation adjustments for B HEHREEZERH

amounts transferred to profitor % :

loss:
Impaiment loss TEER - - 89,643 - 89,643 - 89,643
Realised loss upon redemption ~~ BEAftH ESBEER
of avallable-for-sale financial HEERER
assets - - 6,571 - 6,571 - 6,571
Currency translation differences ~ SHAEZE - - 4 - 4 - 4
Release of translation reserve MEENBLARBRORE
upon disposal of subsidiary B 4 - - 29 - (29 - 29)
Total other comprehensive loss Bt 2 A 84 - - 7,661 - 7,661 - 7,661
Total comprehensive loss for ~ £R2FFELE
the year - - 7,661 (114,328 (106,667) (193 (106,860)

Transactions with owners BEEAZRSE
Issue of new ordinary shares from ~ REER{THEER

placing 25 3,200 162,870 - - 166,070 - 166,070
Transaction costs atfrioutableto ~ ERLERITHEERREGZ

issue of new ordinary shares RERE

from placing 25 - (5,808) - - (5,808) = (6,808)
Rights ssue ofshares EREAR % 355 200773 - - 213,328 - 213,328

Transaction costs attributableto  RERETHEARERZ
issue of new ordinary shares REME

from rights issue 25 - (6,400) - - (6,400) - (6,400)
Employee share option scheme  EEBMR T2l

- Lapse of share options ~BRERH - - (7,09) 7,005 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest ~ YiE&— B A Al ER

in a subsidlary - - - (315) (315) 315 -
Capitalinjection from a non- ERERRRTE

controling interest shareholder - - - - - 100 100
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HEHBAT 4 - - - - - 1,176 1,176

Total contributions by and FAREENEEREAR
distribution to owners of AEEADRZEE B
the Company, recognised BRERPED
directly in equity 6,755 360,435 (7,095) 6,780 366,875 1,591 368,466

Balance at 30th June 2017 RZE-tERB=1H
ki 8,533 893,345 67,867 43,614 1,013,359 168 1,013,527

The notes on pages 120 to 338 are an integral part of these HMNF120EH EF338H 2 Wit AUt SHA
consolidated financial statements. Bz 2 —25 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SGEHERER

For the year ended 30th June 2017 2 —F—+FNNA=+HILFZ

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FieE FTERT FHT
Cash flows from operating EEIE2EERE
activities
Net cash used in operating EETHMAZFERS
activities 45 (105,458) (100,904)
Cash flows from investing activities R&EE Zﬁ%ums
Acquisition of a subsidiary, U — B A
net of cash acquired ?D%Fﬁﬁ%szﬁfﬁ 46 - (81,497)
Investment in associates REERR218E (1,859) (38,792)
Purchase of property, plant and BAME - BB REE
equipment 6 (1,358) (1,632)
Purchase of other intangible assets AR EFEE 8 (9,500) -
Decrease in film related deposits BRI 2R 1,640 13,230
Increase in film related deposits BRI 2 (15,332) (7,044)
Payments for film rights and B REREUER 2 ER
films in progress (NEN 10 (10,138) (49,489)
Investment in available-for-sale AHHESREERE
financial assets (149,246) (11,330)
Proceeds from redemption of EEAHLNESREEL
available-for-sale financial asset FT{S50E 5,929 -
Proceeds from capital return from AEHESREEZER
available-for-sale financial assets [l ¥R FT1S FUR 6,199 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE MR REE
property, plant and equipment FT{S50E 45(a) 278 -
Net cash outflow on disposal of PEMBARTZHES R
subsidiaries FEE 47 (1,359) -
Interest received =Rl Ei)s) 40 63 74
Dividends received from EWAHEESmMEE L
available-for-sale financial assets [:85) 38 - 20,473
Dividends received from an B — B R E R E
associate 12(a) 4,753 -
Net cash used in investing REZBMAZERS
activities (169,930) (156,007)

1 1 8 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
For the year ended 30th June 2017 &2 —F—+tFNNA=+HILFZ

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FieE FTERT FET
Cash flows from financing activities FEEZEZHLHE
Proceeds from placing of new Al & ¥R 2 PS5 508
ordinary shares 166,070 223,082
Payments for transaction costs S AREETH L ER
attributable to issue of new FEE 2 R GBA
ordinary shares from placing (5,808) (8,026)
Proceeds from rights issue of AR EITRRD 2 FT1SRUE
shares 213,328 120,546
Payment for transaction costs SASEMAR BT T B
attributable to issue of new &5 2 SR
ordinary shares from rights issue (6,400) (4,195)
Proceeds from borrowings B8 2558 53,063 50,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (9,200) (62,000)
Payment for redemption of EEEI Bt - DB
convertible note - (64,000)
Capital element of finance leases BERENHZEXRES
payments 45(b) (35) (34)
Interest paid EAFLE 34(c) (6,091) (2,263)
Capital injection from non- —EMBAREEL Y
controlling interest arising from FEIERERTE
a subsidiary 100 -
Net cash generated from financing REEEELZFHEE
activities 405,02_7_ i 253,110
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRBSEEYZF
and cash equivalents #hn,/ GRd) 129,639 (3,801)
Currency translation differences BEMREEE 71 (521)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENRE MREEEY
beginning of the year 98,512 102,834
Cash and cash equivalents REXRESRRSEEY
at end of the year 228,222 98,512
Analysis of cash and cash RERBEEENH:
equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEED 24 228,222 97,153
Cash and cash equivalents included st AR BABIEHEZ
in disposal group classified REHABIFRE S KRS
as held for sale EEY 42 - 1,359
228,222 98,512

The notes on pages 120 to 338 are an integral part of these #NF120B EF338E 2 Wit AU FiREH
consolidated financial statements. Bz .z —Ho o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS ERR MR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in securities brokerage and margin
financing, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
securities investment, video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights,
and trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical, watches
and jewellery products in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of the principal place of business of the Company
is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase Il, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board on
29th September 2017.

1 20 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

oo o0 00

© 0000000000000 000000000000000000 00

e e e 00000

.

° o o

—REH

ETERSRZERARAR(TARE )&
H B AR (G ANEE D EBREE R
FEARAMBE(THEDREEHFEL R
FRRE  HE  HEAREME  BFHR
B SRBT BRBRITRRMR BBk
EREFHEARNS « BENAEER
B  HWERTEXER -

KRR ARETMK L2 BRAF] -
H 3T i 3% = 5R b 4F /& Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda © AR EF £ & S BRI R
BEEMAZBRELBE192E 20057 E R
e —Hi18iE -

KATROREBHAER S HERAT
(THE TR ) EAR £ 75

BREHRAIN - WEHEEMBHRRATE
([ TETDEY - WEFAMBRED
REZEN _ZT—tFNA-TLEHE
FI)3% -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets, contingent consideration receivable,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
contingent consideration payable, convertible bonds
and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

Disposal group held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (Note
2.28).

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 22 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
actual results may differ from these estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

e e e 000000

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(il New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st July
2016 and have not been early adopted:

B

R SRR

EEHTBRBEm@m

2.1 IRBEE @)

BFREREBHREE@®

(i) AR IRANZ #TETER SR
ZIEETA

THUFRETEER ~ R Z EFTA
RIS R 2 BN T —KX
FEA-HARENTRFED
MAERARLERN - B EELR
B

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RUT BHEAR
Z BN
FEHRBEX
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets a date to be determined
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
BB ELERIF105 & KEERHEBERRHEGERRZ HHIFE
ERGERFE28R(EFIA) MZEELERITIE
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement 1st January 2018
of Share-based Payment
Transactions
BBV HELERIFE25% BRI RER 2 NRRZH 2 —E-NF—HA—H
(EETA) HEEREE
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative 1st January 2017
BB EAETR(ERIAR) WERETE —ET—+tF—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 1st January 2017
for Unrealised Losses
EBGHERFE129(BETR) BAEREBEHARLHIEEE —E2—+F—-HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 1st January 2018
BEBGELBEI05E (BRI X)) HEHEREME —E-NF—-HA—H

—T R EFEEemERERAF 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

oo o 0 0

Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (Continued)

(il New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

SHBERE@

2.1 IRBEE @)

(i) AR B
ZIEETAR (48)

BFREREBHREE@®

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

REUTF Bk
ZERBRN
FEHBEN

Annual Improvements Project

FEBHEERE

HKFRS 9

BB REERBOHR
HKFRS 15

BB R EERZE 1558

HKFRS 16

BB RS LR 165%

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

55 (BBRUBHREREBZES)
—RREE225

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

FrE(ERMBHRERERZES)

—2EFE23R

Annual Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

1st January 2017 or
1st January 2018,
as appropriate

ZENFEEZ-REF —ET—+tF—-H—H%
A BRF 2 U —N\F—H—H
(fe@M)
Financial Instruments 1st January 2018
TERITA —N\&F—H—H
Revenue from Contracts with 1st January 2018
Customers and the related
Amendments
HEPRE A RAEREE] —N\F—H—H
Leases 1st January 2019
HE —E-hF—HA—H
Foreign Currency Transactions and 1st January 2018
Advance Consideration
HNEERZ 5 RFERR (B —N\F—HA—H
Uncertainty over Income Tax 1st January 2019
Treatments
ST Bz THEE I —NF—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an

assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards are expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

EESTHEBEE®W

2.2 B A A) M eI i 2

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

MEBAREAREEHNNER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 SHHEBE®@)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 M B~ A S IR i i an (1)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

1 26 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2.12), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

2.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Incomes Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 2.3 EBE M@

* iabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

® assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 2.3 EBE M@

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint

ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have a joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated balance sheet
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint

ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Asset Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

2.5 Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

e ts assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

e its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Interests in joint operations (Continued)

® jts revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

* jts share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

e its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group’s interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses.

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Chairman of the Company (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

R SRR

2 EEEHHEREEw@w)

2.6

BERGER
o HPEEEAELBESZK
o HRAREAEYBERZE

o HHAY  BEEEGTMELR
AEZRY -

AEBNEEXRBT 2SR
BE  8E  WakFAXDREE
RRZFEEE - BfF - W kM
XHEBP RS LA

HRRE

RED MR BRERAE2ROZT D
MEAZE  DHOIEKERTAE
BEXHERE D RFHEELR
B EHRARBEIFE(ZEZLER
RE )R ZHHERETE -

5

[

R BE2RME - FRIEDBEHBRE
R ESB RN EMMRFEE
EERENHE  FPELIER
A1 2 B 2 m Bk BR (AR A% 9 05 0% I
EEREMUEETmEL - TRI%
BEREEDMIEETAMNTE -
BERIZFERNELEDE » A £
MAFBDIREE - RIRJHET TR BRTE -

—T— R BFEERemEReRAF 133

e oo 0000

e e e o000 00

e e e 000000000000 00



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation
currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

()

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-
for-sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment 2.8 W% - HES MR

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are expensed to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or

lease term
Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.12).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.9 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2.10) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in Note 2.27(d). When the Group
holds a property interest under an operating lease to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an
investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see Note 2.10), and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in Note 2.10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(a) Classification of assets leased to
the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see Note 2.9);
and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

210 HEEEw®)
@ HEFAREEBEEZ

2.10Leased assets (Continued)

(a) Classification of assets leased to

the Group (Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(b) Assets acquired under finance

leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments,
of such assets are recognised as property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided at rates which write off the cost of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease or,
where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
Note 2.8. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 2.12. Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 10Leased assets (Continued) 2I0FHEEBE @)

(c) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment
property (see Note 2.9).

2.110ther investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technigue that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.110ther investments in equity securities

(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in Note 2.27(f)
and 2.27(e).

Investments in securities which do not fall into the
above category are classified as available for sale
financial assets. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the available-
for-sale investment reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2.12).
Dividend income from equity securities is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2.27(f).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss.
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Investments are
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets

(@) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@) Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables

(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 2.4), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with Note
2.12(b). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with Note 2.12(b).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

For accounts receivable, loans receivable
and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

For available-for-sale securities which
are stated at fair value, when a decline
in the fair value has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and there
is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
shall be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment even
though the financial asset has not been
derecognised. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
customers included within accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against customers
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- goodwill;
—  other intangible assets;

- film related deposits;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

film rights and films in progress; and

investments in subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures in the Company’s balance

sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash-inflows independently
(i.e. a cash generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2I2EERIAEM®)
(b) BEfttEERE @)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

- Recognition of impairment losses -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Impairment of assets (Continued)

(c) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2.12(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried
at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-
sale equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZ@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13Intangible assets QAL EE
(@) Goodwill (a) &

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit or group of cash
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If some or all of the
goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was
acquired in a business combination during the
current annual period, that unit shall be tested for
impairment before the end of the current annual
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or group of cash generating
units.

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life
is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Impairment is reviewed annually and when there
is any indication that the club membership has
suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Brand name has a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method of 7.5 years over the expected life of the
brand name.

Trading rights held in the Stock
Exchange

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange
are classified as intangible assets. Trading
rights acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trading rights have an indefinite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The trading rights have no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the Group can
use to generate net cash flows. As a result, the
trading rights are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful life
because they are expected to contribute to
net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading rights
will not be amortised until their useful lives are
determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Intangible assets (Continued)
(d) Trading rights held in the Stock

(e)

Exchange (Continued)

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Trading rights held in The Chinese
Gold & Silver Exchange Society

The trading rights held in The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society have an indefinite useful
lives and are recognised as intangible assets
in the consolidated balance sheet. The trading
rights are carried at cost less impairment losses
and are tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the trading
rights may be impaired by comparing their
recoverable amounts with their carrying amounts.
The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the Group can use to
generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because
they are expected to contribute to net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trading rights will not be
amortised until their useful lives are determined to
be finite.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.15Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

(c)

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable under
agreements and direct expenses incurred during
the production of films, for the reproduction
and/or distribution of films in various videogram
formats, film exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and their
useful lives, with reference to projected revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films is
transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that assets
included in film rights and films in progress
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
carrying amount of such assets is assessed and
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

217Film deposits

Film deposits comprise deposits paid for the
acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artistes and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for acquisition and production of film
rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision for film
deposits is made based on future revenue generated
for the Group and the carrying value of film deposits.

2.18 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
Note 2.12), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 2.12).

2.19Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of loans
receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2.12).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Cash and cash equivalents 2208 MRS FEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and cash held
at custodian, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

2.21Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

2.22Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

2.24Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 24Income Tax (Continued) 2 24FT1SFi ()

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax loses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAMRREMT
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEHERBEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 24Income Tax (Continued) 2 24FT1SFi ()

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 2.9, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the end of
the reporting period unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24Income Tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

* the same taxable entity; or

e different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25Employee benefits

(i

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the
Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEBRBEw@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.25Employee benefits (Continued) 2.25E Bt& 7 ()

(i) Share based payments (Continued) (i) ARBAER 2@
During the vesting period, the number of share REBHAN - A"ARIEHTE
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any HEB o BRESE - BT
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value FEBERZEFATFEZEM
recognised in prior years is charged/credited HERARGEETZERZF
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, EZB&EMB A RIER
unless the original employee expenses qualify for BERTAERERAE—E
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding BE - WHERGOBNEEER
adjustment to the share-based compensation FEAEE - BItERIR - NEE A
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised B HRRRRXcefErT
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual R R MR BEARE - B
number of share options that vest (with a B (¥ BN S 1EAE FE §F
corresponding adjustment to the share-based B) - EERNREKERQT]
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture Bty BB RE < & B & MR
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions WEBRAD o WEEARIEEITE -
that relate to the market price of the Company’s ERRROBHEERER 2
shares. When share options are exercised, the HRHERERMNEE - MBR
amount previously recognised in share-based R B R % E LW R E
compensation reserve will be transferred to share BRI ARESTE - RIERTR R
premium. When the share options are forfeited MR ERER . S ESER
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at EREAEF o

the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

(iii) Termination benefits (iii) BERRTER
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier BEB AN DR ANEE T HERE
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the HIREZ SRR RERRY
offer of those benefits and when it recognises RS BB ARE R 2 B AN
restructuring costs involving the payment of (AR B ERIE) R

termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at
the higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with Note 2.26(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not
present obligations at the date of acquisition are
disclosed in accordance with Note 2.26(ii).

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below.

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and the
title has passed and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Income from licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights

Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised upon the delivery of
the pre-recorded audio visual products and the
materials for video features including the master
tapes to the customers, in accordance with the
terms of the underlying contracts.

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment is
established.

Rental income from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established. Dividend income
from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Income from provision of training
and coaching services

Income from provision of training and coaching
services is recognised when training and
coaching services are rendered.

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised on
a trade date basis when the relevant transactions
are executed.

Underwriting commission income,
sub-underwriting income and
placing commission

Underwriting commission income, sub-
underwriting income and placing commission
are recognised as income in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreement or deal
mandate when relevant significant act has been
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 SHHEBE®@)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.28%1’@%%2%%%3%5%&

2.28Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations BRI TS
(i) Non-current assets held for sale (i) BEHEZERBERE

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal
groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets, even if
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
Note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.28Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Non-current assets held for sale
(Continued)

Impairment losses on initial classification as held
for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement
while held for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i)
above), if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

SHBERE@

Z%ﬁﬁﬁEZ%ﬁ@ﬁE&

2.28Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii) Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of comprehensive income, which
comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

2.29Convertible bonds

The convertible bonds consist of liability component,
conversion option and other embedded derivatives
which are not closely related to the host liability
contract. Conversion options that will not be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the issuer’'s own
equity instruments are not equity instruments and
are considered as embedded derivatives not closely
related to the host contract.

The Group has elected to designate its convertible
bonds with embedded derivatives as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition as the convertible bonds contain one or
more embedded derivatives. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the convertible bonds are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The change in fair value recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest paid for the convertible bonds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.29Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the convertible bonds designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

2.30Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.30Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The policies for
managing these risks are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

0

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currency giving
rise to this risk is primarily Renminbi
(“RMB”) (2016: RMB).

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rate at the
year end date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BT IRRMIEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKEbEEm@m
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B b A = ()
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WIEZRER @)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EEEEE)
()  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () P E&ERR(E)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PR 2 SME R (LU TTHIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Renminbi Renminbi
AR AREE
’000 ‘000
P T
Bank balances and cash — RITHESR LIRS
trust accounts —{EFEERP 10 -
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEZEY 22 17
Accounts receivable FEU AR X 19,900 3,148
Financial assets included in HFAIEME 2 -
“deposits paid, prepayments  FBH 70 IE K&
and other receivables” H fth pE U R0E |
TERMEE 54,522 28,288
Accounts payable FEfTER IR (10) (5)
Other payables and accrued — E b E(TFIE K
charges JEET X H (45) (4)
74,399 31,444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.1 B 1% [ e (A = ()
(@) TiEZE b @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEEE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BUREST

TREINHEHR
AEEEERERNRR

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s

loss after tax (and retained earnings) SN PE RN R B
that would arise if foreign exchange REFH(BRMEE
rates to which the Group has i @B 2EBRFD
significant exposure at the end of the BYHAEBBRBE

FR(RRBRF)E
DR ) -

reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

2017 2016

—B—+tF —E-RF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in loss in loss
Increase/  after tax and Increase/ after tax and
(decrease) (increase)/ (decrease) (increase)/
in foreign decrease in foreign decrease
exchange in retained exchange in retained
rates earnings rates eamnings
BRBEER PRt R
2,/ (i) s,/ ()
SMEFE = RREEF [N fEE K RixEB & F|
tH(TRE) (8BS A (TR)  (Em),/ md
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
RMB AR 5% (3,720) 5% (1,313)
(5%) 3,720 (5%) 1,313

—T— R BFEERemEREeRAE 175

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



oo 0 00

.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

(i

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
loss/profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong
Dollars at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed rate loans
receivable (see Note 21) from money lending
business and fixed rate borrowings (Note
28). The management considered that
the risk is insignificant as the amounts are
carried at amortised cost. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate accounts receivable
from securities brokerage and margin
financing business such as cash clients,
margin clients and variable rate borrowings
(see Note 20 and 28 respectively). Bank
balances are excluded from the interest rate
sensitivity analysis as they are insignificantly
sensitive to the change in market interest
rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year and all other variables were
held constant throughout the respective
year. A 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2016: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 30th
June 2017 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,537,000 (2016: increase/decrease by
HK$1,144,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
changes arising from listed securities,
unlisted investment funds and unlisted
limited partnership. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk.

The Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and certain
available-for-sale financial assets are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities
compared to that of the Hang Seng Index
and Index of the Growth Enterprise Market
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed
investments held in the available-for-sale
portfolio have been chosen based on
their long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against
expectation.

For the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, the board
of directors manages the exposure to
equity price risk by maintaining a portfolio
of investments funds with different risk and
return profiles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2017, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 3% (2016: 3%)
in the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
with all other variables held constant would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
loss after tax (and increased/decreased
retained earnings) by HK$5,827,000 (2016:
decreased/increased the Group’s loss after
tax (and increased/decreased retained
earnings) by HK$6,198,000).

At 30th June 2017, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 3% (2016: 3%) in the
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
with all other variables held constant would
have increased/decreased in the Group’s
available-for-sale investment reserve by
HK$3,009,000 (2016: increased/decreased
in the Group’s available-for-sale investment
reserve by HK$2,574,000) and decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax (and
increased/decreased retained earnings) by
HK$1,662,000 (2016: Nil).

3

R SRR
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3.1 IR E = @)
(a) ™iZE k@

(i) RIEE S (1)

RZTE—tEFA=+
H EMBHMEER
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AEBEFEBBHZRAF
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FEENBI3%(ZF
—NF 1 3%) AEEZ
PR 1% 1 MR 18 N
(RRBAFIE M, HD)
5,827,000 L (=ZF — <
F:AEEB HRBIEER
WA ( AR B B A
# 5,8 4) 6,198,000
TT) e

RZE—+F A=
B et ESm
BEAFEEM,HL3%
(ZZ2—R"F :3%) - MAT
BHEMESREFETE A
REBZHTEERER
#5500, 9% 43,009,000
BIL(ZZE—XRF A&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B SRR M EE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.1 BB A = ()
(b) EERB

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from default.

In respect of accounts receivable arising from
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical,
watches and jewellery products, in order to
minimize the credit risk, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Receivables due from customers are
due within the settlement period commonly
adopted by the relevant market convention,
which is usually within 0-90 days from the trade
date. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.1 BB A = ()
(b) EE =B @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable arising from
video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
business, in order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an on-going basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Receivables due
from customers are due within the settlement
period commonly adopted by the relevant market
convention, which is usually within 7-60 days
from the trade date. Sales from film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights are on
open account terms. Sales to retail customers
are made in cash or via major credit cards.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of loan receivables (including loan to
an associate) from customers, the objective of
the Group’s measures to manage credit risk is
to control potential exposure to recoverability
problem. The Group manages and analyses
the credit risk for each of their new and existing
clients before standard payment terms and
conditions are offered by assessing the credit
quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other
factors. Loan receivables balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis, management reviews
the recoverable amount of loan receivables at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Interest income are usually billed on
quarterly basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.1 BB A = ()
(b) EE =B @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In order to manage the credit risk in the accounts
receivable due from clients arising from securities
brokerage and margin financing business,
individual credit evaluation are performed on
all clients including cash and margin clients.
Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a
wide range of customers who generally settle the
accounts receivable in two days after trade date
and are secured by the portfolio of securities
of the cash clients, credit risk arising from the
accounts receivable due from cash clients is
therefore considered minimal. For margin clients,
the Group normally obtains liquid securities as
collateral based on the margin requirements. The
margin requirement is closely monitored on a daily
basis by the designated team. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the credit risk is significantly reduced. Market
conditions and adequacy of securities collateral
and margin deposits of each margin account
are monitored by management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.

In respect of accounts receivable from brokers
and clearing houses, credit risks are considered
to be low as the Group normally enters into
transactions with brokers and clearing houses
which are registered with regulatory bodies and
enjoy sound reputation in the industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.1 BB A = ()
(b) EE =B @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in respect of the securities brokerage
and margin financing business as credits are
granted to a large population of clients.

In respect of businesses other than the securities
brokerage and margin financing business, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor and customer. The default risk of the
industry in which debtors or customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had concentration of credit risk as for
100% (2016: 100%) of the loan receivables are
due from the Group’s eight (2016: four) debtors
in money lending segment. The Group had no
concentration of credit risk in respect of accounts
receivable from trading, wholesaling and retailing
of optical, watches and jewellery products and
video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
business, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

For other receivables, credit checks are part
of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amounts of other receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
certain concentrations of credit risk of 66% (2016:
59%) of the total other receivables was due
from the Group’s largest debtor and 94% (2016:
91%) of the total other receivables due from the
Group’s four largest debtors of the total other
receivables respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to the parent
company’s board approval. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required
to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

R EE @

3.1 B 1% [ e (A = ()
(c) "RBELRAK®E)

As at 30th June 2017 R-BE—tFXA=1H

More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual

Within 1 year less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying

or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
- -E0E MELL ANRER

AHEX MEUR BEUR  REREBAE HEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TER Tén Tén TERL TERL

Accounts payable g 92447 - - 92447 92447

Financialliabiities included 5 Al EHERFUER

in “other payables and i emak

acorued charges” and RI24sT2]

“deposits received” 124,593 - - 124,593 124,593
Borrowings g 44,574 10,016 - 54,590 53,063
Obligations under finance ~ BERERE

lease 35 28 - 63 63

261,649 10,044 - 271,693 210,166
As at 30th June 2016 RZE—NFNA=1H
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within 1 year less than less than undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
R —EHE MENE SHRER
JEEL MEIUR RENR REREEE HEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr TER TEm TER ThL
Accounts payable RIS 254,722 - - 254,722 254,722
Amount due toan associate  JEff—TE& AT
LB 1941 - - 1,941 1941
Financialiabiities included ST ATEHERFUER

in “other payables and it eRER

accrued charges” and SRL e

“deposits received" 64,121 - - 64,121 64,121
Borrowings &5 9,366 - - 9,366 9,200
Bank overdratts RTEX 4020 - - 4020 4020
Obligations under finance ~ BERERE

lease 35 3% 28 9% 98

334,205 35 28 334,268 334,102

e e ece 000000000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management 3.2 EANETE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In addition, a subsidiary of the Group licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) is obliged
to meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements
under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (“FRR”) at all times. For the subsidiary of
the Group licensed by The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society, the subsidiary is obliged to meet
the regulatory liquid capital requirements imposed
by The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society at
all times. The Group obtained waiver on the liquid
capital requirements from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society since the Group acquired
the trading rights on 19th June 2017 and had not
commenced the business on trading of gold and silver
during the year ended 30th June 2017.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets. For the subsidiary licensed by
the SFC, the Group ensures this licensed subsidiary
maintains a liquid capital level adequate to support the
level of activities with sufficient buffer to accommodate
for increases in liquidity requirements arising from
potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the financial year, this licensed subsidiary
complied with the liquid capital requirements under
the FRR at all times.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings, obligation under finance lease
and bank overdrafts) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt, where
applicable.

For the year ended 30th June 2017, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2016, was to
maintain a low gearing ratio. The gearing ratio as at
30th June 2017 and 30th June 2016 is as follows:

3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

R EE @

3.2 BRER(#)

MEMRRE - AEENEER
BLERERERERNNEE - ZL
RIFRERIARERE - A
BERERE(BREREE  BMEBEA
ERRITEX)RERE MR FE
WetH - BEAREAEERRBR
Ptz [#ea 10 EFBE(HEE)

| e
=T HE o
Al

I

BE_Z—tFANA=+tHLHF
B AEBORBE _T—RKFH
RERFIE - UERNBELRE
FEBEKFE R _F—tFA

—tTHEERZZE—R"FAA=1+AH"
BERBELEEOT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
B aE FET FHET
Borrowings BE 28 53,063 9,200
Obligations under a finance lease &l & &4 29 63 08
Bank overdrafts RITEX 28 = 4,020
Less: Cash and cash equivalents /& : 3R& NMIR&
ZEY 24 (228,222) (101,173)
Net cash REFRE (175,096) (87,855)
Total equity g 1,013,527 751,921
Total capital BEKR 838,431 664,066
Gearing ratio BERAELE N/ATEA N/AT~E A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)
33 RTHEETE
BRATEFEZEME

3.3 Fair value measurement

() Financial assets and liabilities (i)

measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

* |evel 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date

* |evel 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

* | evel 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to
the directors of the Company and the audit
committee. Valuation reports with analysis of
changes in fair value measurement are prepared
by the team at each annual reporting date, and
is reviewed and approved by the directors of the
Company. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the directors and the audit
committee is held once a year, to coincide with
the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 3.3 RV EFT=E @)

() Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2017 categorised into
RoE-tERA=TRZATENEAEA

ERE&E@
RFEZR(E)

Fair value measurements s at
30th June 2016 categorised into

() BAFEHEZEHE

RoB-RE Az TRZATEEAEA

Fair value at Fair value at
30th June 30th June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 2016
R-8-tf RZE-RE
~NAZTH NAZTH
-4 25 2= 20TH - E g0 Z0TH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn ThEn Thn TiEn TAL Tin TEn
Recurring fairvalue ~ £¥#ATEHE
measurements
Asses: BE:
Avalable for sale ThiEsHEE
financial assets
- Listed equty - FifkEES
securities 73,461 - - 73,461 - - - -
-Unlisted investment~~ — 3£ LTI &
funds (Note g £4(0a) - - 24,898 24,898 - - 79,467 79,467
- Unlisted imiteo -3 tER
parinership (o i
Note ) (HisFa) - - EI3% 5T - - 6,335 6,3%
Fnancial assets at far ~ EBAREATE
vavetoughproft ~ ABZ2REE
or loss 232,629 - - 232,629 247 444 - - 247,444
Confingent EUSARE
consideration (Wztb)
receivable (Note b) - - 15,737 15,737 - - 10,930 10,930
306,090 - 97,969 404,059 247 444 - 96,732 344,176
Liabiltes: IR
Contingent EffsRRE
consideration (Fiikc)
payable (Note ¢) - - (19,568) (19,568) - - - -

i - (19568 (19569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEEKRERE@
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 ANFEF=®)
() Financial assets and liabilities ) BAFEFEZERE
measured at fair value (Continued) ErRGEm®@
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEER (E)

During the years ended 30th June 2017 and
2016, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

a) For unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership classified under Level 3 of the fair
value measurement hierarchy, the fair values are
determined based on the net asset values of
those investment funds and limited partnership
determined with reference to third party valuation
of underlying investment portfolio and adjustments
of related expenses. When the net asset values
of the unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership increases/decreases by 3% (2016:
3%), the fair value will increase/decrease by
HK$2,467,000 (2016: HK$2,574,000). The higher
the net assets values, the higher the fair value.

The movement during the year in the balance

RBE-F—LER-F—A
FRAZTHLEFE 28K
HE R EWEEE - TE
ERAE=ZRIEE=RER
o REBZBRERREEZ
WMERRERE A TFEBRK
IFZFH?ZE}% °

i

a) MOoERATEASAEEBLRE
SHRETZELEMREES
rERAELCEMS  AF
BENREZSEREES LA
REBLEZEEFE 2
ZRBEIREEEZE= 1A
EET  UHEBRIIED
P HELITRERES K
ERABLENEEFEY
8% (ZF — K 4F
3%) » RFERKE MRS
2,467,000 (ZF — /< :
2,574,000/ ) - EEFE
e BIATFEMS -

FZER=ZMATHEFEZH

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as BRNEREBIT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Unlisted investment funds STATHEESRMEE
included in available-for-sale ZHEETREES
financial assets:
At the beginning of the year REH) 79,467 86,812
Additions NE 7,992 3,300
Total loss included in other FFAHMEmKE 2
comprehensive income EBERRE (56,632) (10,645)
Redemption fE o (5,929) -
At the end of the year RER 24,898 79,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 UIHBEARERE@m
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 3.3 R EFT=E @)
() Financial assets and liabilities ) BAFEFEZERE
measured at fair value (Continued) ErREE@
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEER (E)
Notes: (Continued) PiisE : (#8)
a)  (Continued) a) (%)
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—XFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FHIT
Unlisted limited partnership SFATHEESREE
included in available-for-sale ZHEETEREE
financial assets: T
At the beginning of the year REH] 6,335 -
Additions #hn 53,573 8,030
Total loss included in other FFAHMEmKEZ
comprehensive income BT (2,574) (1,695)
At the end of the year RER 57,334 6,335

The net unrealised losses arising from the
remeasurement of the unlisted available-for-sale

financial assets are recognised in availal

ble-for-

sale investment reserve in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEEKRERE@
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 ANFEF=®)
() Financial assets and liabilities ) BAFEFEZERE
measured at fair value (Continued) ErRGEm®@
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEER (E)

Notes: (Continued)

b)  The valuation techniques and key inputs used for
contingent consideration receivable in Level 3 fair

PRt ¢ ()

b) MIMEMK  ERIAKE
FE=ZMRAFEFEMERZ

value measurement at the end of the reporting HEFTEREZHASEN
period are as follows: ™~
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable input Range
BEAFABE
hEF % WARE #E
HK$
BT
Contingent consideration Discounted cash Probability-weighted profit Loss of HK$401,000 -
receivable flow approach Profit of HK$482,000
(2016: Profit of
HK$3,286,000 —
Profit of HK$10,035,000)
FEW S ARAE BRBRERES A RE I A [E518401,0007 7T —
$5 F11482,0007 7T
(Z2—R%F:
Y5 5113,286,000/8 7T —
3% 710,035,000
Discount factor 22.5% (2016: 8.2%)
BEEES 4 22.5%(=F—7"F : 8.2%)

The increase in probability-weighted profit used
would result in decrease in fair value measurement
of contingent consideration receivable while the
increase in discount rate used would also result in
decrease in fair value measurement of contingent
consideration receivable, and vice versa.

A 5% increase or decrease in the probability-
weighted profit while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the carrying
amount of contingent consideration receivable by
HK$31,000 or HK$31,000 (2016: HK$390,000 or
HK$390,000) respectively.

© © ¢ 0 0 000 0000000000000 00000000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 00

T A 2 FT BRI I & A b
TTHREREREARBZA
FEFERD - MAERZ
A B8 3R 4 00 A 2 B U K
AREZRFEFERD
[RZ IR -

] B8 4 0 i 35 00 3L
5% @ MATAHMEHEFT
& BEWSRAREZERR
B # 5 5l 4 215 5131,000
B IL 31,0008 7L( ZE— N
£ 390,000 7T 84,390,000
HBIL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B SRR M EE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.3 A EF=E @)
() BAFEFEZE®ME

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (Continued) ExaEm
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEER (E)
Notes: (Continued) BEE - (48)

b)  (Continued) b) ()

BT 8 A3 2 B 38 5 318 00 50R
used while holding all other variables constant D5% - MATH E M2 H g
would decrease or increase the carrying amount BAE . RIERKRSIARE
ZEREE RS BIR A sk m
175,0007% 7T 2% 179,000 7% 7T

ZZ—XF 1 40,0008 T8
50,000%7T) °

A 5% increase or decrease in the discount rate

of contingent consideration receivable by
HK$175,000 or HK$179,000 (2016: HK$40,000
or HK$50,000) respectively.

The movement during the year in the balance ZEE—WAFEFEZLE

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as BRFEREFHINT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+iF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Contingent consideration EREHARE :
receivable:
At the beginning of the year REF) 10,930 -
Additions N - 6,850
Total gain included in profit or loss ~ sFAB2E 2 W zs/E%E 4,807 4,080
At the end of the year RER 15,737 10,930
2017 2016
—E—tE ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
# Total gain included in profit or loss  #FARTRERFTH 2 E
for assets held at the end of the ~ Ezt ABzH 2 W
reporting period “zE 4,807 4,080

1 94 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

© © © 0 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 0000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

c)  The valuation techniques and key inputs used for
contingent consideration payable in Level 3 fair

R SRR

R EE @

3ANFEE @)

() BAFEFEZERME
ERE&E@
RFEZR(E)

MIeE : (48)

) RMEHR EHIAKE
FE=ZMRAFEFEMERZ

value measurement at the end of the reporting HEFTEREZHASEN
period are as follows: ™~
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable input Range
ERRTBE
ES® BABE gE
HK$
BT
Contingent fERfEANRE  Discounted cash flow Probability-weighted  Loss of HK$401,000
consideration payable approach profit - Profit of HK$482,000
(2016: Nil)
BHRBEREE BEZE Siavl! [E518401,0007 1T
— 5 71482,00047T

The increase in probability-weighted profit used
would result in decrease in fair value measurement
of contingent consideration payable while the
increase in discount rate used would also result in
decrease in fair value measurement of contingent
consideration payable, and vice versa.

A 5% increase or decrease in the probability-
weighted profit while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the carrying
amount of contingent consideration payable by
HK$38,000 or HK$38,000 (2016: Nil) respectively.

A 5% increase or decrease in the discount rate
used while holding all other variables constant
would decrease or increase the carrying
amount of contingent consideration payable by
HK$35,000 or HK$35,000 (2016: Nil) respectively.

(ZB—RF 8)
Discount factor 3.6% (2016: Nil)
CES 3.6% (ZT—RF : &)

TR AR 2 FTBE 1 s 7 b
THRERENIARBZA
FEAERD - MAERZ
B3R 3R 48 00 7 A B A B
AREZRFEFERD
[RZ IR -

] B 4 0 g A 35 00 3R
5% - i FTA E A8 E M
o BENRAREBZER
B 5 Bl 2> 3 3% 138,000
7 708038,000/8 7L ( — T — X
F | o

FIT {6 B 2 B 38 =R 3 0 = ok
5% - i BT A 8 B M1
- AENIAREBZER
B 2 Bl Rk 4> 3¢ 3% 5135,000
7B 7084 35,0008 7L( = ZF — 7~
F | o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 UIHBEARERE@m
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 3.3 R EFT=E @)
() Financial assets and liabilities ) BAFEFEZERE
measured at fair value (Continued) ErREE@
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEER (E)
Notes: (Continued) PiisE : (#8)
c) (Continued) c ()
The movement during the year in the balance ZEF_PATEFEZLE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as BRNFEANZEAT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—XEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Contingent consideration payable: FE{TE{AME :
At the beginning of the year REH) - -
Additions #hn (10,930) -
Total loss included in profit or loss srABR BB (8,638) -
At the end of the year RER (19,568) -
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
# Total loss included in profit or loss  ##IREHRIFEZ A E
for liabilities held at the end of ARG EEEE
the reporting period (8,638) -
(ii) Financial assets and liabilities at (i) XHEUAFEINEZE
other than fair value REENEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 7R £ B 5 Al AN S 8 A AR A BR
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are ZJERMTEEREHEAEN
not materially different from their fair values as at FE—+ER -_E—RENA
30th June 2017 and 2016. =THZAFEERTK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXKEREREG@

(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial SABHEMEERECRMARE

liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments that are either:

- offset in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet;
or

- not offset in the consolidated balance sheet as
the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and the clearing house,
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the money obligations receivable and payable with
clearing house on the same settlement date and the
Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable from and payables
to cash clients and margin clients that are due to be
settled on the same date and the Group intends to
settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on
the same date which are being offset, amounts due
from/to the clearing house and accounts receivable
from and payables to cash clients and margin clients
that are not to be settled on the same date, financial
collateral including cash and securities received by
the Group and deposit placed with clearing house do
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the consolidated
balance sheet since the right of set-off of the
recognised amounts is only enforceable following an
event of default.

TERARZBEBEZ A BHI®IT
RIBEERREREUSRT
BENELUmZARRcEMEENR

THAE H:

- RAKRBHAEEABRMIE

—  ETRHAEHEET L ERE
ABEABERNEY -

REASBEEEEMEL ZFEF
HEEDE  AREBEEAEATR
HAITEMNAREREERRGEH
PrifsE I R BN SREME - AR
SEEBRFRELLEH -

BN - REEHER G AR R HIT
BANEENFA-ZIHAETREER
rELENASEFRREREF
HIH - BARBERERFRERL
o

BRAR— 28 B R T & E B
ZRERRIN > WARNMER B EIT A%
B2 W A 45 H AT SRR B IR
EENAEEPEREFZEPLK
B eREAR(RRAEEEHIR
T REBESF) MEFRRERER 2R
THANGEEEERBRRAKELY
R REACHASHE I EIFE
FHER B LR HFHRAIRFINIT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEEERERE@E
(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial SABEeMEERERAEE
liabilities (Continued) (%)

(a) Financial assets subject to (@) HRIEH - ATRFHIT
offsetting, enforceable master BERAEZHEREM
netting arrangements or similar HENEmEE
agreements
As at 30th June 2017 R-ZE—tHFXA=+H

Related amounts
not offset in consolidated
balance sheet
TARGEEESRRRA
EHNEELE
Gross

amounts of ~ Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial assets
Gross liabilities ~ presented
amount of ~ set off in the in the
recognised consolidated consolidated
financial balance balance Financial ~ Collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  instruments received amount
RFREE

BERN  RNEREE

BER BN AERA

tHEE CRIZR 2NER
288  ARAE  BERR  SRIR ChKENR BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thn Thn TR TR ThT

Financial assets SHEE
Accounts recelvable EERESETLR
arising from securities ~~ FEREEHZ
brokerage and margn ~ FEMERSR
financing business 411,503 (144,659) 266,844 - (165,264) 101,580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEBREE®
(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial SABEeMEERERAEE
liabilities (Continued) (&)

(a) Financial assets subject to (@) P RIEEH - AIEBIEIT
offsetting, enforceable master BERAEZHEREM
netting arrangements or similar HENETMEE®)
agreements (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016 RZZE—RFARA=TH
Related amounts
not offset in consolidated
balance sheet
TRNGAEERRRR
il R
Gross

amounts of  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial assets
Gross liabilities presented
amount of st off inthe inthe
recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial balance balance Financial Collateral Net
assets Sheet sheet  instruments received amount
MR EE

8ERA  NRREE

B#R g BERA

tRHEE CHEDLR 29ER
JBE  BEME  AERE SRIE  EWEAm R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL L TR TEL T

Financial assets SREE

Accounts recelvable EEREHELR
arising from securities ~~ FEREEHKZ
brokerage and margn ~ FEMERSR

financing business 1,099,165 (1,394,758) 204,407 - (15,580) 188,827
*  The item “collateral received” represents the * [BWHEAG I EEFEF T
securities pledged in the client’s account which fﬁ#ﬁ?;ﬁ‘%‘é ZEE S
are not recognised in the consolidated balance Fa BEREXRER &
sheet. The amounts are capped at the lower #f%ﬁZi/ﬁﬁﬁ%m 1E £
of the market value of securities and the net ooy Y=P-2 -0 3, &Y
receivable amounts on a client by client basis. IEFREREILE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEEKRERE@
(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial SABEeMEERERAEE
liabilities (Continued) ()

(b) Financial liabilities subject to (b) RIS - TR H BT
offsetting, enforceable master BERAEZHEREM
netting arrangements or similar HENEmas
agreements
As at 30th June 2017 R=-ZE—tHEXA=1H

Related amounts
not offset in consolidated
balance sheet
BRRGREERERA
R#NEEeRE
Gross

amounts of ~ Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
Gross assets  presented
amount of ~ set off in the in the
recognised consolidated consolidated
financial balance balance Financial ~ Collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  instruments pledged amount
RFREE

BREN  REREE
BER E#N  AERA
tHAR CRIZR 2NER gz
288 HEAE  REPR 2RIR iz BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL Thn Thn TR ThT

Financial liabilities ERERE
Accounts payable EEEEHALR
arising from securities ~~ FEREEHRZ
brokerage and margn ~ FE(H B3R
financing business 226,279 (144,659) 81,620 = = 81,620
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEBREE®
(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial S4EHEMEERTRAE
liabilities (Continued) (&)

(b) Financial liabilities subject to (b) B RIEEH - AIEBEIT
offsetting, enforceable master BERAEZHEREM
netting arrangements or similar HENETREE@E)
agreements (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016 RZE—RFAA=1H
Related amounts
not offset in consolidated
balance shest
TRNFAEERRER
ERNERLE
Gross

amounts of  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
Gross assets presented
amountof  setoffin the inthe
recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial balance balance Financial Collateral Net
liabilities Sheet sheet  instruments pledged amount
REFREE

BERA  NRAEE
B2 BEH  BERA
tWAfE CHRIER  2NER BEAZ
<A% AEE® REFE 2RIR sl FE
HKS000  HK$00D  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000
TETL THETL TET TET TEL TETL

Financial liabilities ERERE
Accounts payable EEEEHOLR
arising from securities ~~ FEREEHRZ
brokerage and margn ~~ FE B3
financing business 1,645,078 (1,394,758) 250,320 - - 250,320

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RERMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEEERERE@E
(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial S4EHEMEERTRAE
liabilities (Continued) (%)
(c) The tables below reconcile the (c) TRALMKIREEEE
“net amount of financial assets BEXREINEMEE
and financial liabilities presented in FemBERE HES
the consolidated balance sheet”, EEEBREVINNHER
as set out above, to the accounts BRF R FETER RNV I BR -

receivable and accounts payable
presented in the consolidated
balance sheet:

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT T
Net amount of financial assets BabuyAsEwi=EE3:0)
after offsetting as stated above TEEEFE 266,844 204,407
Financial assets not in scope of TR E IR RS E AR
offsetting disclosure SREE 77,627 20,474
Impairment losses BEEBE (10,612) (142)
333,859 224,739
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
Tt FHET
Net amount of financial liabilities ~ _E it A 51 HY
after offsetting as stated above SHEEFE 81,620 250,320
Financial liabilities not in scope of £ $5 4% & &L 15 Y
offsetting disclosure TRIBE 10,827 4,402
92,447 254,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Ciritical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i)

Impairment of film rights, films in
progress and film deposits

The Group assesses annually whether there is
any indication for impairment on the film rights,
films in progress and film deposits and further
assess if they have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2. Such annual assessment is performed
specifically for each film and film deposit at each
balance date with reference to the cast or scale
of each film, current market conditions and each
film deposit recipient’s reputation, trade history
and current financial position. According to the
management’s cash inflow forecast in respect
of each film title and realisation of each film
deposit, no impairment loss of film rights (2016:
HK$4,226,000), no write-off of film deposits
(2016: HK$417,000) and no impairment loss
of films in progress (2016: nil) were recognised
respectively in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income to reduce the carrying
amounts of certain film rights, films in progress
and film deposits to their recoverable amounts.
If projected cash inflow from these films were to
deteriorate, additional provision for impairment
may be required.

As at 30th June 2017, the carrying amount of
film rights, films in progress and film deposits
amounted to approximately HK$90,957,000
(2016: HK$85,870,000).

4

e

R SRR

FHE B 5 H

mE - BREASSRFENE - LRE

BELRMEMRATETHE

BIEES

BERTHRABEENRREMHTEA -

(a) BB ERHAE MRR

Kﬁlﬂﬂﬂ(f’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁ]“ Fit

8
ﬁ

CEEEE!

HIMEFEE - TE'&\AEE

/\,\ mu%*@ﬁ ° Etﬁéj(ﬂ
ﬁlTﬂﬁﬁﬂlifﬁ’Jé{?ﬂE\ﬁE’JﬁE
HEFHERFAENGHEMRES
AR ©

(i)

BRI B2

EREETEZRE
BIEK E2fTE 2 S5 EUR

AEBERFNAEEZME - H
A e e b
FAEMRERR - i b REM
B RETTHE — B FHE - AR
FEFENREHEZREE
BEXF RS HEER2EEE
BEYRERAIMRR B
ZHIERR R SRR EZF]
TEZER  RXHELRAE
A BORR ETE 1T - R
RERERSETXH BMED
Zﬁéwkﬁ%&té*%J
CERA R E W

%Wlﬂﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁ@%

Tg = /\E 4,226, OOO;E,
L) WEEBFI e ME(Z

ZE—/‘\QE 417,000/ 70 ) M B
Bz B W ERERE(ZE

—NFCE) KM ETER
kg - BUFR 2 B NERE]

ZEREEMREZEETRE S
o MRBZEER ZTERR
ERARD BT BEREL B
SNRIERE -

R-_ZE—+FA=1+H"

R BER2EFREY
il 2 BRMEE 4 £90,957,000
Bt (ZZ—7RF : 85,870,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAMRREMT
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRI HERHE @

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and (a) BRITHEMRERE)

assumptions (Continued)

(i) Provision for impairment of (i) EWERR ZBERE
accounts receivable
The provision policy for accounts receivable of the 7S5 1B B MR BR B 2 B IR TY
Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability VA ¥ 5% 55 JE WOk IR AT Uk |
of those receivables and management’s EEZFEREEE 2 HE
judgement. A considerable judgement is RER - S HREFERWIAEZ
required in assessing the ultimate realisation SEAEREREEELAZ
of these receivables, including the collaterals HE - BRESAREFPZEES
amount, the current creditworthiness and the TR BREERBERRE
past collection history and repayment pattern EAREFEN - RARFE -
of each customer. During the year, impairment 10,470,000/ TR &7 & 2 H K
loss of HK$10,470,000 was recognised in mExNERBEBE(ZZE—X
the consolidated statement of comprehensive FE) MZEFEPZ2YB
income (2016: nil). If the financial conditions of MR E - RIRBEFAE L RS
these customers were to deteriorate, additional REREE R -_T—+tF A
provision for impairment may be required. As =18 BYRERFZREER
at 30th June 2017, the carrying amount of £333,859,000/8 7L ( — & — X
accounts receivable amounted to approximately F 1 224,739,000/ 7T) °

HK$333,859,000 (2016: HK$224,739,000).

(iii) Estimated valuation of investment (i) REW R 2 EEHEE

properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based REEAFER  SEAE
on property valuation techniques which involve, RYREET A BEFRFR
inter alia, certain estimates including comparable (ﬁEF'@%)%\ijgf FBER
sales in the relevant market, appropriate discount *E Eﬁﬂ?%,‘zﬁfﬁtt@ﬁﬁ% ‘E/E'\
rates and expected future market rents. In ;@E’\]E\Ef,\%%&i‘ﬁi,ﬁﬁ%%m%ﬁﬁ
relying on the valuation report, management & ERBEEEREN B2
has exercised their judgement and is satisfied Eﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ#lj%ﬁjﬂg,@qﬁ% &
that the method of valuation is reflective of the B R RERRIRET TR 5/\\:
current market condition. As as 30th June 2017, T—tHFRNA=TH &EY
the carrying amount of investment properties X 2 B EE#) /25,560,000
amounted to approximately HK$25,560,000 TL(ZF— /R4 + 25,560,000/
(2016: HK$25,560,000). L)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRI HERHE @

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
(@) Critical accounting estimates and (@) AEgTHELER®
assumptions (Continued)

PREATHEHESHE

(iv) Estimation of fair value and (iv) 7

impairment assessment of equity
investments classified as available-
for-sale financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial assets.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets below its cost is an objective
evidence of impairment. In assessing whether
it is significant, the decline in the fair value is
evaluated against the original cost of the asset
at initial recognition. In assessing whether it is
prolonged, the decline is evaluated against the
continuous period in which the fair value of the
asset has been below its original cost at initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAMRREMT
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRI HERHE @

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(@) BREHENMERR®

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(iv) Estimation of fair value and

impairment assessment of equity
investments classified as available-
for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(iv) 2

PREATMHNESHE
EH’JH&‘*EEEH’J’A¥{E
B ROmE R4 (&)

During the year ended 30th June 2017, the HEZ—tFXHA=THL
management determined the investment in FE BHEEErAHLEES
available-for-sale financial assets is impaired and BEERERRRE  RES

an impairment loss of HK$89,643,000 (2016:
Nil) was reclassified from equity to consolidated
profit or loss. During the year, a decrease in fair
value of HK$88,565,000 (2016: HK$12,340,000)
was recognised in the consolidated other
comprehensive income. As at 30th June
2017, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets amounted to approximately

889,643,000/ L ( Z & — X
FoE)EHESETSESE
REBE RAFERELGAH

ﬁﬁzﬁuﬁzﬁﬁﬁ&:@ﬁwﬁm\
88,565,000/ L ( =& — /N ¢
12,340,000/87C) c RZE—+
FEXNA=Z1+H - AItHELR
BEZRMEXA155,693,000

HK$155,693,000 (2016: HK$85,802,000). HIL(ZZ— /<4 : 85,802,000
BIT) °
(v) Recognition of deferred tax assets (v) BREEHEEE

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised, and
it is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred
tax assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax
rate for each subsidiary of the Company at

RIERIEEER A A REHIRR
K& RR sk A AR 1 18R] 3
BMERMEERRHTEBRR
7T AR - BREREEE
EFSTHEERTEA A ZH
Z?—‘E‘I’% ° %fﬁﬂ#%ﬁ&um ZfEL
MEBER  EREARAR
AUNERBER ZEMBL
AlfEET A RE R 2 B & K& &M
BARZENES » AEEHR

each tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each HEBZBRBER - ZZ5H5
subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation HERER B EREE
of tax losses. Any difference between these ?/i‘ﬁﬁlﬁ/\?zm,a@%%/ﬁﬁ
estimates and the actual outcome will impact the MAZHEE RZT—tF X

Group’s result in the period in which the actual
outcome is determined. As at 30th June 2017,
the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$6,447,000 (2016: HK$365,000) and
HK$13,413,000 (2016: HK$2,229,000)
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

R E st & & H @)

(@) BREHENMERR®

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(vi) PEURE Fi R Hofth FE UL R

(vi) Impairment of loans receivables and

other receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment
of loans and other receivables based on
the estimate of the recoverability of these
receivables. Provisions are applied to loans and
other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of impairment
of loans and other receivables requires the use
of estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference
will impact carrying value of receivables and
provision for impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed. As at
30th June 2017, the carrying amount of loans
receivable, loan to an associate and financial
assets included in deposits paid, prepayments
and other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$75,900,000 (2016: HK$43,163,000),
HK$7,940,000 (2016: HK$5,000,000) and
HK$97,138,000 (2016: HK$52,179,000).

(vii) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. At 30th June 2017, the carrying
amount of goodwill at 30th June 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$28,064,000 (2016:
HK$59,447,000).

H2ZBE

NEBERIEE 3K & E b FE UK K
B HTAEREFHZS
JEWHIBORERE - BB
EHFRBRECEREBE

Al g ARl - BIZEBLE K

E@@Wﬁﬁﬁh%ﬁo%i
BER R EMEBGENRES
TEAMGE o MBS ERER
st EEZ%  AEEES
e ER BT LR EEE
MR R E W SR IEBR A KR E
EEREE N -_E—+F A
=tH BRER - RF—H
e nNa 2 BRI R AEN
Rl & TR 8 R H A B UK
BZeBMEEZEEENA
75,900,000/ 7L (=& — /R 4F ¢
43,163,000/ 7t ) * 7,940,000
Bt (ZZ— N4 1 5,000,000
7 7T) 97,138,000/ (=&
— 754 1 52,179,000 7)) ©

(vii) BT 2R E

ArEERIEFETHE

TRE - WA ES R EE
ZHeESBUZFEREEE
TfhEr - AEBEGEEAEE
EAHREEEEMN 2 TBHARK
iﬁ%muikfﬂﬁu‘l’ A K& 7R
AEBEE  UFEHE
;2@%@”.&2%% Ji—_——
—tFRA=TH BHERZ
T—+FNAZHHAZEERE
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—=—ragR BrEEemereRan 207

e e 0000000000000 00000 00



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(viii)Useful lives of other intangible

assets

The Group amortises its other intangible assets
with a finite useful life on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
lives reflect management’s estimate of the period
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the other intangible
assets. At 30th June 2017, the carrying amount
of other intangible assets at 30th June 2017
amounted to approximately HK$23,583,000
(2016: HK$14,231,000).

(ix) Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory
ageing analysis periodically, and makes
allowance on an annual basis for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for sale. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items through management’s estimation of the
net realisable value for such obsolete and slow-
moving items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At 30th
June 2017, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately HK$10,066,000
(2016: HK$14,304,000).
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(@) BREHENMERR®
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(ix) FEATSHFE

rEEERETHEMGEE
ZERESNT  WEEF AER
ATHBEANENRE RFHE
FTEHEEBFLEE HEHRE
R AEEeRESEER
LIFE - UEEBEEEX
Emﬁwﬁ% =B RIBITMS
BN ERE NS IEBE T
fEZ AR FEGT  ARE
REHBRELREE RZF
—tFRA=TH FEZE
H1E#) 410,066,000/ L ( - =
— N5 1 14,304,000/ 7T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRI HERHE @

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
(@) Critical accounting estimates and (@) AEgTHELER®
assumptions (Continued)

(x) FrSBRARZ NG

(x) Estimation of impairment of trading

rights held in the Stock Exchange

Determining whether the trading rights held in
the Stock Exchange, which are intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives have been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use
or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or changes in facts
and circumstances result in a downward revision
of future cash, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 30th June 2017, the carrying amount
of the trading rights held in the Stock Exchange
is HK$11,400,000. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAMRREMT
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRI HERHE @

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(@) BREHENMERR®

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

Fair value of contingent
consideration receivable and
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration
receivable and payable was determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates
and estimation of future performance. Changes
in assumption used could materially affect the
fair value of the balances and as a result affect
the Group’s financial condition and results of
operation. At 30th June 2017, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration receivable
and contingent consideration payable amounted
to approximately HK$15,737,000 (2016:
HK$10,930,000) and HK$19,568,000 (2016: Nil)
respectively.

Impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates
are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the associates and joint
ventures. Recoverable amount is the greater
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Management has evaluated the recovery of
the investments based on such estimates and
is confident that the allowance for impairment,
where necessary, is adequate. During the year
ended 30th June 2017, impairment losses of
HK$3,227,000 (2016: HK$18,421,000) were
recognised in respect of interests in associates.
As at 30th June 2017, the carrying amount of the
interests in associates amounted to approximately
HK$19,393,000 (2016: HK$25,730,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRI HERHE @
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgement in b) ERAEESETIRE A

applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series and films.
The Group has participating interests ranging from
5% to 90% (2016: from 5% to 90%) in these joint
arrangements. The Group has joint control over these
arrangements as under the contractual agreements,
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreements for all relevant activities. The Group’s
joint arrangements involve the joint control by the
venturers of the assets contributed to the joint
arrangement and dedicated to the purposes of the
joint arrangement. The assets are used to obtain
benefits for the venturers. Each venturer may take a
share of the output from the assets and each bears
an agreed share of the expenses incurred. These
joint arrangements do not involve the establishment
of a corporation, partnership or other entity, or a
financial structure that is separate from the venturers
themselves. Therefore, these arrangements are
classified as joint operations of the Group. The
determination of the relevant activities under joint
operations requires management’s significant
judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services). In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Chairman of the Company, being
the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
reportable segments.

oo o 0 0

Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,

licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical, watches

and jewellery products

Leasing of investment properties

Securities investments

Money lending

Securities brokerage and margin financing

Entertainment business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations. The profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing
operations except that gain on step acquisition of a
subsidiary, fair value change and loss on redemption
of convertible bonds, fair value change of contingent
consideration receivable, fair value change of
contingent consideration payable, impairment loss of
interest in an associate, impairment loss of available-
for-sale financial assets, impairment loss of other
receivable, finance income, finance costs, share of
profit/loss of associates, share of loss of and loss on
deregistration of a joint venture, realised loss upon
redemption of available-for-sale financial assets,
dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets
and unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other
intangible assets, interests in associates, interests
n joint ventures, available-for-sale financial assets,
unallocated cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, loan receivable from a joint venture, loan to an
associate, amount due from an associate, contingent
consideration receivable, tax recoverable and other
unallocated corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, unallocated
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, contingent
consideration payable and other unallocated corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable HE_Z—tFR_ZT—X"FXAH
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the “THLEFE RBETFAEETE
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of EIBERREREERSEMSEE
segment performance for the years ended 30th June WL o ANEER] 2w o FHE LW

2017 and 2016 is set out below: N
207
“5-tf
Continuing operations
HREERE
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
fiim distribution and retaifing
and exhibition, of optical, Securities
licensingand ~ watches and Leasing of brokerage Total for
sub-ficensing Jewellery investment Securities Money andmargin -~ Entertainment continuing
of film rights products properties investments lending financing business Elimination operations
BEET B EER
BYAR KRER
i BER 285 BHELR bt B
HREYAR HERRE  HERENR B5RE HE il RERH i | AHEE
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tr Tn TER TR Tn T TER TR Tn
Segment revenue
External revenue 138,805 46,607 1,058 - 5,859 35,927 3,368 - 231,644
Inter-segment sales - - - - 1,890 7 - (1,897) -
138,805 46,607 1,058 - 1,749 35,934 3,388 (1,807) 231,644
Seqment resuls P | 31315 (27768) 477 11985 7 11510 (1984 5 26317
Fai vilue change o contingent AR EZ AT EES
consideration receivable 4807
Fer vilug change of contingent~~ BEREAREZ ATERS)
consideration payable (8,638)
Impaiment loss of interestinan ~ RA-RBEAA 2 BERE
associae iR (3201)
Impaiment loss of avalable-for- &K ESBARHESE
sale financial assets (89,643
Impaiment loss of other EMRNSEREER
receivebles (1,53
Finance Icome HERA 2%
Finance costs b (6,091)
Reclised loss upon redemptionof - BE T i ESREERH)
avalable-or-sals fnancil BRERE
assels (6571)
Shareoflosses of associates A EEERASE (216)
Share of osses o ajoitventre 25 -HASATER 231)
Loss on deregistation of ajoint ~ iEE-THAS AT B
venture (2
Unallocated corporate expenses RAEAEER (26,922)
Loss before tax fom confining~ 52 EER 2 BHAEE
onerations (111,677)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

R SRR

. \ 7 Al S =
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (@ »EflE - K48 EENK
liabilities (Continued) BfEwm)
207
“3-tE
Continuing operations
REAERE
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
film distribution and retafling
and exhibition, of optical, Securities
licensing and watches and Leasing of brokerage Total for
sub-ficensing jewellery investment Securities Money andmargin~ Entertainment continuing
of fim rights products properties investments lending financing business Elimination operations
BEET %8 HEER
SXATR HEER
i BER 285 FHECR e
BRERNE HERSE  LERENR B5RE it fERE RERE it | AHEE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
TEn Tn TEn TEn Tn T TEn TEn Tn
Assets i
Seqment asses i 2563 24,276 25,595 233064 81,832 482,685 14,263 - 1,097,348
Inerests i essocietes BRI ER 19,383
Interests i oint ventures RAEDAZER 21
Avlleble-for-sa fnancil THELHAR
assels 185,693
Contingent considration BIEIRE
receliable 15,787
Deferred tax assefs 6,447
Tax recoverable %
Loan receivable from a joint
venture 8,595
Loan{o an associate 2940
Amount cue from an associate 94
Unalocated other intangible
assels 11,358
Unalocated cash and cash FARBLRRLEEN
equivglents 129574
Unalocated coporaeassets ~ AARLFEE 8,541
Total consoldated assefs GRAEgE 1,486,034
Liabilties 8
Segment liabilties ABEE 239,996 1,145 %9 15,163 - 83,625 8,295 - 354673
Tasaflon payable B 7648
Unalocated borowings FAREE 37900
Defneta s i 13413
Contingent considration e ]
payable 19,568
Unallocated corporate labiites ~ #AELEEE 10,205
Toi consolated lebles AR EEE 3407
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

. N2 Ally ) =
(@) Segment revenue, results, assets and (@ »EflE - K48 EENK
liabilities (Continued) BfEwm)
007
“3-tE
Continuing operations
REAERE
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
film distribution and retafling
and exhibition, of optical, Securities
licensing and watches and Leasing of brokerage Total for
sub-ficensing jewellery investment Securities Money andmargin~ Entertainment continuing
of fim rights products properties investments lending financing business Elimination operations
BEEG  xE EER
SXATR HEER
i BER 285 FEELR bt B
BRERNE HERSE  LERENR B5RE it fERE RERE it | AHEE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
TEn Tn TEn TEn Tn T TEn TEn Tn
Other information £fhEn
Additions o property, plant TENE BERAE
and equipment - kil 30 - - 106 - - 173
Aditons o unalocated RERAENE #B
property, plant and e
equipment 1,185
Total additions o property, plant~ FEN1E - #BRAE
and squipment % 1,358
Adaitons of fim rights and fims
n progress 10138 - - - - - - - 10,138
Addtons offim related depostts 16,332 - - - - - - - 15,332
Depreciafion 786 583 5 - 400 466 % - 2,065
Amortisation of fim rghts 2343 - - - - - - - 2343
Amortisation of brand neme - 148 - - - - - - 148
Unallocated depreciation 686
Total depreciation and
amortisafion from confinuing
operations 26,442
Impaiment loss of goodil - 2,%0 - - - - - - 2%0
Impaiment loss of accounts
Teceivable 116 134 - - - 8960 - - 10470
Fair value change of financial
assets at fair value through
proft of loss - - - 12679 - - - - 12679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EIERE @

> N 2 A ~
(@) Segment revenue, results, assets and (@ »EflE - K48 EENK
liabilities (Continued) BEwE
2016
3
Confinuing operations
FEIERR
Video Trading,
distribution, wholesaling,
fim distrbution and retaling
and exfibiton, of optical, Securties
licensing and watches and Leasing of Drokerage Totalfor
Subrleensing Jewelery nvestment Securies Mongy and margin Entertainment continuing
of fimrights products propertes invesiments lending financing business Eiminafion operafions
BERT 2B ERR
EFAMR EER
- RUER 85 LR e
EREINE HaREE  UEREMZ HRE i e BE2R {34 xheE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
TEL T T TEL TEL T T TEL TEL

Segment revenue

Extemal revenue & 56,171 61,712 1026 - 8450 16,072 7602 - 161,083

Iner-segment seles AUERE - - - - - 7 - o -

56,171 61,712 1,026 - 8450 16,099 7,602 el 161,033

Segment results Ak 8563 (2499 812 (143,586) 4 3994 834 - (153,567)
Ganonsiepacqustionofa  ARBUE-BHELE

subsidary bl 1571
Feinvdie cnangeendlosson - BETARERZATES

redemption of convertble bonds ~ BREE 1813
Feir vilue change ofcontingent~ BEEIAREZ ATERS)

consideration receivable 4080
Feir vilue change of contingent~~ EREAREZATERS)

consideration payable 60
Impamentloss ofnterestinan~ R-EREATELAE

associle & (18421
Finence income HEMA 8
Finance costs BERE 2269
Diidend income from avaleble- ~ I HESRER 2

for-sele inancil assets REMA 0473
Shareofpofisofassocites  AEBEATAN 3899
Share of osses ofajointventue S-ERELFER (224
Unallocated corporate expenses  RARAERR [20546)
Lossbefore taxiom confruing 5 ESEEH 2R E

operafions (166,453)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

> N 2 A ~
(@) Segment revenue, results, assets and (@ »EflE - K48 EENK
liabilities (Continued) EREAC
216
R
Continuing operations
fERERE
Video Trading,
distiouton, wholesaling,
fim distrbution and retaflng
and exfibition, of optical, Securties
ficensing and watches and Leasing of brokerage Totalfor
Sublcensing Jewelery nvestment Securites Money and margin Entertainment continuing
of fimrights products properties ivestments lending financing business Eiminafion operations
R8T B ERR
STAMR EER
i Bk 185 FHlEER 38
EREIMNE : HEREnE EHRE i HERE RERK it shiaE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
T TEn Thn Tin T TEn Thn Tin
Assets i
Segment assets AEE 161,345 54118 25510 262,898 9317 368,073 9,014 - 910,33
Inferests i associates MBeLA ER 25730
Inerests njont ventures HNARREZER i)
Avalable-forsal francid assels  TAHESBEE 8,802
Contingent considerafion e
receliable 10930
Defered tax assefs EitiaaE 35
Loaneceiablefomajont ~ ER-FASDAEH
veniure 8364
Assets assoclated wih disposal ~ AEER{EHE 2 HER
goup lasfied as held Bl Bz
forsde 6,381
Undlocated other manglle ¥ ARERERAE
assels 1858
Undlocated cashandcash ~— KAERERBEEEN
equivalents 80,108
Unalocated coorateassels ~ FAELEEE 20376
Totalconsoldated assets GREREE 1,150,731
Liabilties L1
Segment labilties BEtH 04259 3718 198 - - 256,300 6,815 - 361,356
Taxaton payable EABE 9,068
Unalocated boroings FOREE 9200
Defered tax iabilties EiERaE 220
Liabitis associated wth ARBRILELE
dsposal group lessfed HilzhEaE
as held for sale 9,59
Unalocated comorate lbes ~ FAELEEE 7359
Total consolcated lebiiies GeEkeE 38810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5

2 A4 AY ~
(@) Segment revenue, results, assets and (@ »EflE - K48 EENK
liabilities (Continued) BEE
216
R
Continuing operations
fERERE
Video Trading,
distiouton, wholesaling,
fim distrbution and retaflng
and exhibiton, of optical Securtes
licensing and watches and Leasing of brokerage Totalfor
Sublcensing Jewelery nvestment Securites Money and margin Entertainment continuing
of fimrights products properties ivestments lending financing business Eiminafion operations
R8T B ERR
STAMR EER
i Bk 185 FHlEER 38
EREIMNE HEREE  LERENZ EHRE i HERE fe= it shiaE
HK$ 000 HKS 0 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS1000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T T TEn Thn Tin T TEn Thn Tin
Other information EfrER
Addions of property, plantend ~ ENE - BERRE
equipment 13 816 3 - - R 1 - 1,062
Adtions o unalocated RERARNE BB
property, plant and e
equipment 510
Total aditions of property BENE  BELRE
plant and equioment % 1632
Addtions o fim ightsand fims ~ £BZ RS e
in progress /5% 19489 - - - - - - - 19480
Additions o fim relted deposts - ST 250 704 - - - - - - - 704
Addions of goodil tough ~~ FRAENBAFEN
aoquistions BE
of subsidaries - 46,021 - - - 28064 - - 74,085
Addiions of property, plantend - FRAENBAFFE
equipment tough acouistions 115+ BEREE
of subsidlaries - 1,169 - - - 19554 - - 2128
Addions ofother intangle ~~ ERMENBAFEN
asseishoughacquistions of 4 EVEE
slbsidiaries - 1,108 - - - 11400 - - 12508
Depreciation i 854 880 2 - 40 X Kl - 2,604
Amortisation of i rihts EmE R 8,891 - - - - - - - 8801
Amotisafonofbndname— RRAR 2B - 1% - - - - - - 1%
Unelocated depreciaton FAlE 500
Total depreciation and
amortisation from confinuing
operations 12,130
Impiment loss of goodtl EENEER - Ik - - - - - - 2135
Impeiment lossof fimights end - EFREREAREZ 2
fims n progress HEEE 4206 - - - - - - - 426
Fair vlue change of fnancial sEATENEZ
asvets t fai vale through SHEENTERY
proft or loss - - - (143,564) - - - - (143,564)
T +EER BFRRcRERERAT 219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 7EER @

(b) Geographical information (b) & *L
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s KRABINRES - XEBZEBE
operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, PRC and EMRES - PEKRF -
Macau.
The revenue information below is based on the VAT Y B R T DAAS & P AE b B
location of the operations. i
2017
—ZE—tF
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
EREBEE
(TEEsm
TARIEL
Wz HIEEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) SR (FrfEH) 85,507 184,106
Macau A 21 251
PRC and other Asian countries R B R B Ath 28 N B =X
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (BB KIBPIBRIN) 144,191 2,744
North America b &M 779 -
Europe B 982 -
Others EAth 164 -
231,644 187,101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 7EER @

(b) Geographical information (Continued) (b) HbiE R
2016
—E—RF
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
EMEVEE
(TEESR
T A NIRE
Was MIBEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) AR (FTEi) 83,778 214,397
Macau SEFY 209 482
PRC and other Asian countries AP R H R MBI R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (& EFIBRAN) 66,855 2,555
North America dEZEM 28 -
Europe E 67 -
Others Hh 96 -
151,033 217,434
(c) Information about major customers c) BEE=E %E\)E'Ziéf*ﬂr
For the years ended 30th June 2017 and 2016, there REBEE-ZZT—tFR= NER
is no single customer contributed 10% or more of the A=+HI1EFE - ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 2)5
Group’s revenue. AR B 2 WaSiE10% 3 A E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 6 Yk - HERRE
EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Machinery Furniture Office
improvements  and equipment and fixtures ~ Motor Vehicles equipment Total
HENERE EE BRREE RE WAERME a5
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn Tén T T Thn
Costs RA
At 1st July 2015 RZ5-1E
+A-H 9592 25,094 2282 1,039 9815 48722
Addtions TE 4 50 81 1,058 400 1632
Acquisttion of WERBAR
subsidiaries (Note 46) (fiiz46) 463 - 578 97 444 5755
Reclassffication as held ENpEARED
for sale (Note 42) E(Miz0) (3,750) - (176) - (344) [4.210)
Disposals i (197) 263) (15) - (1,005) (1480)
Exchange difference BiEE (721) - (114 (10) (56) (901)
At30hdune20t6and  RZFRE
Tt duly 2016 ~A=1H
RZE-RE
+A-H 9,603 25,781 2636 2,184 9,254 49,458
Addtions TE 839 - 214 - 305 1358
Disposals hE (1,249) U] 87) [13) - (1,756)
Exchange difference EiZE (182) - (32 £] (10) (227)
At 30th June 2017 RoE-t%
RAZTE 9,011 25,774 2,731 1,768 9549 48833
Accumulated ZifiE
depreciation
A 1st July 2015 RZZ-1F
+A-H 7,354 25,970 1936 784 7,449 43493
Depreciation charge nEER 2,401 18 344 211 1,002 3976
Reclassffication as held ENpEASED
for sale (Note 42) E(Mita) (1992 - ) - (102 2,139)
Disposals e (197) (263) 8] - 913 (1,376)
Exchange difference EiER (585) - (111) (1) (16) (723)
At 30th June 2016 and RZE—RE
1st July 2016 ~AZTAR
ZE5E
+A-H 6981 25,725 212 984 7420 43234
Depreciation charge nEER 1296 16 298 401 940 2,051
Disposals hE (650) U] 82 (118) - (857)
Fxchange difference EiZE (161) - (30) () @) (197)
At 30th June 2017 RIF-tF
AR=TH 7,466 25,734 2,310 1,264 8,357 45,131
Net carrying amount REFE
At 30th June 2017 RZE—tE
NAZTE 1545 40 41 504 1,192 3702
At 30th June 2016 RZE-1
~AZtA 2622 5% 512 1,200 1834 6,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017, carrying amount of machinery and
equipment held by the Group under finance leases is
approximately HK$62,000 (2016: HK$97,000).

Depreciation of approximately HK$10,000 (2016:
HK$489,000) has been charged to “cost of revenue”
and approximately HK$2,941,000 (2016: HK$2,615,000)
has been charged to “administrative expenses” of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
During the year ended 30th June 2016, depreciation of
approximately HK$872,000 had been included in the loss
for the year from discontinued operation in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

R SRR

6 Y% - #BIRZE@

NZE—+EXA=1TH  FEEIRER
EHRERFBEIRERREZERABNS
62,0008 7L( =ZF—/~F 97,000/ 7T) °

PFTEX10,000/8 7T ( ZZF—754F 489,000
BIT)ERERES 2 EME R 2 WE K
A - 492,941,000 T ( —ZF— <
F 12,615,000 70) ERERE 2 EMEE
ZITTHERIFRNRG - REEZZT—~F
NAZ=ZTHIEFE - TEX872,0008 T
ERGE2ERERANZFRNREBELRIE
ORI REIEARR o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 7 BREWE
2017 2016
—E—+tF TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At fair value BRAFE
At the beginning and at the end of the year F#]MFXK 25,560 25,560

—T R BEFEERemERERAF 223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR
7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment
Properties

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment

Properties (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value

R SRR

7 REWEm

SEYE T NFEGE )

(@) 2FESEHR@E

measurements at 30th June 2017 categorised into

R-B-tFAA=TAAVEFERER

Fair value at
30th June 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB—t&
~A=tH
ZOYVHE #1E #oE 238
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAT
Recurring fair value BEEATENE
measurement
Investment properties: RENE
— Residential - Hong Kong -FE-FH 25,560 - - 25,560
Fair value measurements at 30th June 2016 categorised into
RZB—RFRA=Z+TEATEAEREA
Fair value at
30th June 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZE—RF
NA=tRZ
ANFE 1 E2ME E3E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL FAL FAL
Recurring fair valug BREATERE
measurement
Investment properties: REME
— Residential - Hong Kong -FE-FH 25,560 - - 25,560

During the year ended 30th June 2017, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer
into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil). The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

BE_Z—tFRNA=Z+tHLHF
B EF1IERF2E  HMERE
% FIENMEBAZEL(=F
—NEF ) o REBEMBORE
ARBEHRBFLENDFESRF
EERENER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment
Properties (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

All investment properties of the Group were revalued
as at 30th June 2017. The valuations were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited, who have among their
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued. The management of the
Group has discussions with the surveyors on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each annual reporting date.

(b) Information about Level 3 fair value

7 REWEm
SEME T N FET=E @)

(@) 2FESEHR@E

AEBERBREMEON _FT—+t
FRNA=ZTHETER - HETHE
B BRNTT — I B IRIRET (A A
BRABET  ZoR#HB2BELIR
FEREMBEEE - HAHED
E R PTEHAN PT B AE B R AT B
BER NREBXFERSEBET
MER  AEEEEECD RASA
At ERERAEER -

(b) EBEEIBAFEFTEZ

measurements &5
Range of
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
FABEEABE
fhER % THEEZBAHE Z®HE
Investment properties REBZREWE
in Hong Kong
— Residential properties  Direct comparison Discount on quality of 1%-15% (2016:
approach properties 12%-27%)
—FEWE BELEE HYEERIETE 1%-15% (ZF—7"F :

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong
Kong is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted
for a premium or discount specific to the quality of
the Group’s properties compared to recent sales
on the comparable transaction. Higher discount for
lower quality properties will result in a lower fair value
measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REYX @)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment SEYEZ N FERE @)
Properties (Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value (b) BRAEIEATEHFTEZ
measurements (Continued) B @)
The movements during the year in the balance of FAEIBATEFEEBRNE S
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Investment properties REWE
- Residential - Hong Kong —-FE-FE
At the beginning and at the end FRFR
of the year 25,560 25,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

oo o0 00

8 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HttEFEE
Trading
rights held in
Trading rights ~ The Chinese
heldin  Gold & Silver
the Stock Exchange Club
Exchange Society  Brandname  membership Total
2]
FEERG SHELEA5
X518 X518 mEER g% a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T TEL
Cost A&
At 1st July 2015 R-Z-nF+A-H - - - 1,858 1,858
Acquisition of Winston Asia Limited & Winston Asia Limited [z £
and its subsidlaries (“Winston B ([Winston£ 8 ) (fifz
Group’) (Note 46(a)) 46(a)) - - 1,108 - 1,108
Acquisition of China Jianxin Financial ~ WEEIRELBRK
Senvices Limited (‘CUFS) fomery  BRAT([PERE)
known as “Win Fung Securities (pifE K EEEERAT])
Limited”) (Note 46(0)) (GEZE) 11,400 - - - 11,400
At 30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016 R=E-~"FRA=TAR
—Z-EtA-H 11,400 - 1,108 1,858 14,366
Additions during the year (Note a) ERARE (W) - 9,500 - - 9,500
At 30th June 2017 RZE—tE/A=1H 11,400 9,500 1,108 1,858 23,866
Accumulated amortisation RitE
At 1t July 2015 R-E-R%+A-H - - - - -
Amortisation for the year FREH - - 135 - 135
At30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016~ =E—RERAZTHR
“E-7"%tA-H - - 135 - 135
Amortisation for the year FREH - - 148 - 148
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+F/ A=1H - - 283 - 283
Carrying amount REE
At 30th June 2017 RS-t A=1H 11,400 9,500 825 1,858 23,583
At 30th June 2016 RZE-RERA=TH 11,400 - 973 1858 14,031

Note: HiE -

(@ During the year ended 30th June 2017, the Group acquired @ #HE-_Z—tFA=1+HIFE &
the trading rights that confer eligibility of the Group to trade E@FHLAR(E9,500,000/8 TEBBYE=FH
on The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society from an W T AREBERREEEZEFEE
independent third party at a consideration of HK$9,500,000. BIRSREF o
The recoverable amount of the trading rights held in the REREZSHERENT SN WG
Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society was based on its SHEEREATFTERHEKAN - £ER
fair value less costs of disposal and was determined with (LA RE AT (BAAREEN MmEE Y
the assistance of Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, an BYBEEABSRMGER) MR FERE
independent professional qualified valuer not connected with HEMEXSWFRATELEEAET -
the Group, using market comparison approach by reference EWHErkoeEs AFEIIDES
to relevant market transactions. The fair value on which the F=MitE -

recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a Level 3
measurement.

Particulars of the impairment testing of trading rights held in
the the Stock Exchange and the brand name are set out in
Note 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

9 GOODWILL 9 m/E
HK$’000
FHET
Cost 5%
At 1st July 2015 R-E—RF+A—H 1,314
Acquisition of Winston Group (Note 46(a)) Wi Winstonss B (I 5F46(a)) 46,021
Acquisition of CJFS (Note 46(b)) W B 3215 (M9 51 46(0)) 28,064
Acquisition of AP Group Investment Holdings W E B &£ BIER AR A7)
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AP Group”) REWBAB(TEHER])
(Note 46(c)) (Mi5E46(c)) 13,971
At 30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016 RZE—RFAA=ZTHE
—E—RFtHA—H 89,370
Disposal of AP Group (Note 47) HEEHER (MizF47) (13,971)
At 30th June 2017 RZZE—+FRA=TH 75,399
Accumulated impairment losses ZEREEE
At 1st July 2015 R-E—HRFtAH—H -
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 29,923
At 30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016 RZE—RFRAA=ZTHK
—E-RF+HA—H 29,923
Disposal of AP Group (Note 47) HEEPEE(MHE47) (5,568)
Impairment losses recognised EERBEREE 22,980
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+FA=+H 47,335
Carrying amount REE
At 30th June 2017 R_ZE—+FRA=TH 28,064
At 30th June 2016 MR_ZE—RFARA=TH 59,447

—T R EFEEemERERAF 229

© © ¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0000000000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 00000000 0000000000000 000000000 0000000000000 000 00000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following CGUs.

Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
(“Division A”)

Trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches and
jewellery products (“Division B”)

—  Securities brokerage and margin financing business
(“Division C”)

Training and coaching business (“Division D”)

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 30th June 2017 and 30th June
2016 allocated to these units are as follows:

HEERREARENTSREATRS
PR -

- REBERBS HERZTE(HH
Al)

- ERRAREERES  HBERTE
%5 (1088

- BEREMAFRBEEH(2EC)

— BIIEWMEXEB(DED))

RZE—+EXNA=TARZE—EX
A=1H »pEREZEEM2EHEZER
BEIREFDRAEBE)INT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FET

Division A DERA - 1,314
Division B 2 EBB - 21,666
Division C 2EC 28,064 28,064
Division D 228D - 8,403
28,064 59,447
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below.

Division A

The recoverable amount of CGU of trading, wholesaling
and retailing of optical products, which is included in the
segment of trading, wholesaling, and retailing of optical,
watches and jewellery products, of HK$Nil was determined
based on value in use calculations. Those calculations
used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a period of 5 years,
and cash flows beyond 5 years were extrapolated by
assuming growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%) and discount rates
of approximately 19.8% (2016: approximately 17.7%).
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant CGU. Another key assumption
for the value in use calculations was the budgeted gross
margin, which was determined based on the CGU’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. As at 30th June 2017, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$1,314,000 (2016: Nil)
on the goodwill due to deterioration of operating results.

R SRR

bBiReELBEMZANESERIEER
HF ZHAMMBKRBInT -

ZBA

REBERBS HERTEZRSELS
MLz A& BEET(FIAKXLSBER -
BEREGKEEMRES  HERTEHH)
REREBEMEETE - HEFEHFAK
AERKEREBHR EZ AFHYKESE
ZHREREBAFE  MAFHEZR
SRETIEI%(ZT—/RF : 3%) BRI
EER419.8%(=ZF—XF : £917.7%)
BRI o FTARIRE ATIATRLIR XK -
WikMERERCESLEMNEBZETR
R EFEREBEZS HEERRATE
HEFNE  MBEEEMNEDREBREES
BRI ZATREALREBEEHTBEHRZTE
HET R-_ZE—tFA=+H &%
ERGEEEE=MERBEREER
1,314,000 TT(ZFE—RF - &) o

S
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GOODWILL (Continued)

Division B
For the impairment testing, goodwill arising from acquisition

of Winston and brand name classified as “other intangible
assets” are allocated to the Group’s CGU B.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of trading, wholesaling
and retailing of watches and jewellery products business,
which is included in the segment of trading, wholesaling,
and retailing of optical, watches and jewellery products,
of HK$1,615,000 (2016: HK$23,855,000) was based on
its value in use and was determined with the assistance
of Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected with the
Group. The calculation used cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period, and at a discount rate of approximately
19.9% (2016: approximately 17.7%). The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU. Cash flows after the five-year period
were extrapolated using 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate in
considering the economic condition of the market. Another
key assumption for the value in use calculations was the
budgeted gross margin, which was determined based on
CGU’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. As at 30th June 2017, the
Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$21,666,000
(2016: HK$24,355,000) on the goodwill due to the further
deterioration of operating results and financial performance,
and the unfavourable changes in the market circumstance.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Winston Group because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth and future market
development of Winston Group. As at 30th June 2016, the
Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$24,355,000
on the goodwill due to the continuing weakening of the
retail market in Hong Kong and the PRC since January
2016, which led to a change to the expected growth
and market development of the trading, wholesaling and
retailing of watches and jewellery products business could
not be met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Continued)

Division C
For the impairment testing, goodwill arising from acquisition
of CJFS and trading rights held in the Stock Exchange

classified as “other intangible assets” are allocated to the
Group’s CGU C.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of securities brokerage
and margin financing business was based on its value in
use and was determined with the assistance of Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent professional
qualified valuer not connected with the Group. The
calculation used cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, and at a discount rate of 16.3% (2016: 17.1%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU. Cash flows after the five-year
period were extrapolated using 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate
in considering the economic condition of the market. The
cash flow projection and the growth rate of the margin
financing business has already taken into consideration
of the instruction from the SFC to CJFS to refrain from
providing further margin lending or other form of financial
accommodation to clients until it has fully complied with
the applicable Code of Conduct requirements, and CJFS
board of director’s assessment of timing of implementing
measures required by the SFC to satisfactorily addressing
the identified deficiencies and risk concerns and thus not
resulting in the SFC taking further action which may include
the imposition of conditions on the CJFS’s licence.

Division D
On 1st July 2016, the Group disposed of its 51% equity

interest in a subsidiary, AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited. Please refer to Note 47 for details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M
10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 10 EXMERBEPZER
PROGRESS
Films in
Film rights progress Total
Bl
= RAE pA-4-2 Fok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEx FET
Cost 3N
At 1st July 2015 R-_Z—HFEHA—H 897,146 12,187 909,333
Additions RNE 6,710 42,779 49,489
Transfers R 2,637 (2,637) -
Write-off of DVD preproduction IS IR EERTHER
cost RS 2 38 (381) - (381)
Write-off of expired film rights FIH %?;H&%ZW% (3,718) (849) (4,567)
At 30th June 2016 and RZE—RF
1st July 2016 /\H +ER
—E—R"FtA—H 902,394 51,480 953,874
Additions NE 4,951 5,187 10,138
Transfers s 21,797 (21,797) -
Write-off of DVD preproduction IS B AR R ERTHR
cost FAS 2 3 (429) - (429)
Write-off of expired film rights EI| BB E S MRAE < i SH (4,049) - (4,049)
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+4F
SNA=1H 924,664 34,870 959,534
Accumulated amortisation and Rt EERRE
impairment
At 1st July 2015 RZE—RFLA—H 890,578 849 891,427
Amortisation for the year (Note 34) ksl (M5E34) 8,891 - 8,891
Impairment losses BIEBE 4,226 - 4,226
Write-off of DVD preproduction YIS B L RIERTH
cost B 2 H g (381) - (381)
Write-off of expired film rights FIH EE%#&%ZW% (3,718) (849) (4,567)
At 30th June 2016 and 1st July RZZ—RF
2016 7~ ﬂ =+tAK
—E—RFtA—H 899,596 - 899,596
Amortisation for the year (Note 34) G EES (MF:E34) 23,343 - 23,343
Write-off of DVD preproduction G S R ERTER
cost &$ZW§¢J (429 - (429)
Write-off of expired film rights FIHAE bt 2 H8H (4,049) - (4,049
At 30th June 2017 AT —+F
/\ﬂ_"l—El 918,461 - 918,461
Carrying amount IREE
At 30th June 2017 RZZ—tF
NA=+8 6,203 34,870 41,073
At 30th June 2016 RZTE—RF
NA=TH 2,798 51,480 54,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN

PROGRESS (Continued)

Amortisation of approximately HK$23,343,000 (2016:
HK$8,891,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment test for film rights and films in
progress

The Group observes whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights segment
are subject to any impairment indication, in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 2 of these
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the cast
or scale of each films, current market condition, the trade
history, current financial position and popularity of film
outline stories. Management has further performed an
assessment on the recoverable amount of the film rights
and film in progress based on each film sales forecast.
No impairment has been made for the year ended 30th
June 2017 (2016: HK$4,226,000) on the film rights and no
impairment (2016: nil) has been made on films in progress
for video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights segment in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

R SRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN

PROGRESS (Continued)

Disposal of Film Library

On 9th January 2017, Universe Films Distribution Company
Limited (“UFD”) and an independent third party purchaser
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Film Library
Disposal Agreement”) to dispose of 202 feature films (“Film
Library”) conditionally at a consideration of approximately
RMB178,895,000. The cost of the Film Library has been
almost fully amortised in previous years and the carrying
value of the Film Library is approximately HK$3,708,000
as at 30th June 2017. The management estimates that the
disposal, after taking into account of all relevant expenses
and exchange differences, allowed the Group to realise an
one-off gain of approximately HK$180,472,000 from the
disposal and provide the Group with the opportunity to
capture the residual value of the old films. This transaction
was not completed during the current year and UFD
has received part of the consideration of approximately
HK$108,806,000, after deducting withholding tax, as at
30th June 2017 which was included in other payables
and accrued charges (Note 32). The Film Library Disposal
Agreement was completed on 21st September 2017
(“Completion date”). Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, UFD has received approximately RMB53,669,000
in September 2017. The remaining portion of the
consideration of approximately RMB17,890,000 will be
settled no later than 60th day after the Completion date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 11 ETERBLFE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th LNTARZE—tFRA=THZEZM

June 2017. BARIRE -
Proportion of
Proportionof  Proportion of ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares  ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued  Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERMBAR mEE  AFERER
HRRL/ RIBHR BENEER KAENBER  BANEZER
8 EERRER BRITRAFE TEXBRERNY Ee (%) £ (%) £ (%)
Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong 100% - -
Limited* liability company Kong
RERAAME BREALA EBRRA100ET RERR BB
Universe Laser & Video Co. Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$1,000,000  Distrioution of fims in various - 100% -
Limited company videogram formats in Hong
Kong
EFATRYERAR % ERELAT LERRA1,000000  HAREEHARAGES
BT &E
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Sub-ficensing of film rights - 100% -
Company Limited company and television series, film
exhibition and leasing of
investment properties in
Hong Kong
ERYRBEAERAR &2 BRALAT EERRAET BREYERERE 8Y
HBAREEREE -
EE
Unique Model Limited* Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in Hong Kong - 100% -
company
&8 BREELT EERRAR100ETT BERRE &
Universe Digital Entertainment Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 5%  Distrioution of fims in various - 100% -
Limited company deferred HK$10,000 videogram formats in Hong
Kong
ERUBREER AR 2 BRELAT EERRARI100008T  UARSEHRENER
S%EERBAI0000  FE
BT
Universe Management Services  Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 5%  Provision of management - 100% -
Limited company deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group in
Hong Kong
ETREERERAR &2 BRALAT EERRA10000BT  WASBRAEERS B8
5%EFEARAR 410,000
BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EZE i &2 5 (a0

Proportion of
Proportionof ~ Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued ~ Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERARLAR mEE  AFERER
ERRL/ RIBER BENEER KANEER  BANEZER
8 EERRER BRITRAFE TEEBRERDE EeAl(%) Eefl(%) £ (%)
Universe Entertainment Limited The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$2 Investment in films production - 100% -
liability company and licensing of film rights in
Hong Kong
ERREERAA RERLAE  BREMAR ERREA2ET REASYAERRLEIR
B BE
Universe Pictures International The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$2 Film acquisition agent for the - 100% -
Limited™ liability company Group in Hong Kong
RERANE  BREAAH ERRBA2ET KRBz FRWERE - B8
Universe (China) Development Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding in Hong N 100% -
Limited company Kong and investment in
television series production
in the People’s Republic of
China (‘PRC")
EF(PE)RRERLA &8 ARELAT ERERBRA2ET REZR B8 REARME
BREEE  hEARLA
(&)
Globalink Advertising Limited* Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Advertising agent for the Group - 100% -
company in Hong Kong
2 BRELAT LRRRAET TEEZEERE  BE
Century Creator GCompany Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Investment in films production - 100% -
Limited company in Hong Kong
HEEEERRAR &8 BREELT LRRRA2ET REEFAE BE
Matrix Productions Company Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Investment in films production - 100% -
Limited company in Hong Kong
HEREERAR % ERELAA ERRRA2ET REBYAE BE
Digital Programme Production Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Production of infotainment N 100% -
Limited company programme in Hong Kong
YiBH A RHFER AR B ARELAT LRRRAET RIEREEMSE BB
Universe International Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Purchasing agent for the Group - 100% -
Technology Limited company in Hong Kong
EFARMBERAR &8 BREELT LRRRA2ET REE RBRE 55
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EZE i &2 5 (a0

Proportion of
Proportionof ~ Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued ~ Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERARLAR mEE  AFERER
ERRL/ RIBER BENEER KANEER  BANEZER
8 EERRER BRITRAFE TEEBRERDE EeAl(%) Eefl(%) £ (%)
Universe Artiste Management Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$10 Management of contracted - 100% -
Limited company artistes in Hong Kong
RTEANERERAA 2 BRALAT EBRRA108ET ERGNEBA - BE
Films Station Production Limited™  Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Films production in Hong Kong - 100% -
company
2 BRALAT LRERRAET EYHEBE
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Licensing and sub-ficensing - 100% -
company of music programme and
investment in concert in
Hong Kong
EFELBRAT 2 BRALAT LRERRAET RIERERSEHA REIR
REZ%E Bk
Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$2 Sub-ficensing of film rights in - 100% -
Limited™ company Hong Kong
% ERALATA ERRBRA2ET BRIYNE BB
Grant Talent Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$1 Films production in Hong Kong - 100% -
company
KEEBRLA &8 BREELT ERRRAET EYRIEBE
Wide Avenue Holdings Limited”  The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in the 100% - -
liability company British Virgin Islands
KBRS BREALH ERRRAET RERR RERSES
Universe Martix Films Investment  Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$1 Investment in films production - 100% -
Limited company
ETHEIZRABRLT 2 BRALAT LRRRAVET REEFRUE
BRI EETET(LR) PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000 Distrioution of films in the PRC - 100% -
BRARS
T8 BRAEAT AB#1,000,0007C EGEE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EZE i &2 5 (a0

Proportion of
Proportionof ~ Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued ~ Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERARLAR mEE  AFERER
ERRL/ RIBER RANEER  BANEER  KENEER
8 EERRER BRITRAFE TEEBRERDE EeAl(%) Eefl(%) Eefl(%)
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in the British 100% - -
Cutture (Holdings) Limited liability company Virgin Islands
BIREXC(BR)ERAT  KERZES EREALA ERREA100%T REZR RERSES
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100% -
liability company
K RRERAT RERZME BREALA ERRBEAIET Epl
Fragrant River Finance Group The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited liability company Kong
EIHBERERAR EBRAEE  EREALA ERRRA100%T REAR BB
Fragrant River Asia Investment The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited liability company Kong
BIENREERAR RERAAME  BREALH EBREAI100ET REBR B8
Urban King Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong
BOERERAA RERABE  EREMLLA EERRA100ET REAR BB
Precise Reach Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong
REEEERAT EBRAEE  EREARA EBRRA100%T REAR BB
Valiant Power Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong
BRHZRERAR RERAAE  BREALH LBREAI100ET REBR B8
Great Harbour Enterprises The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited liability company Kong
EALFARAT RERAEE  EREMLA ERERRA100ET RESR &5
Gold Summit International The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited liability company Kong
BEERERAR EBRAEE  EREALA ERRRA100%T REAR B8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EZE i &2 5 (a0

Proportion of
Proportionof ~ Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued ~ Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERARLAR mEE  AFERER
ERRL/ RIBER RANEER  BANEER  KENEER
8 EERRER BRITRAFE TEEBRERDE EeAl(%) Eefl(%) Eefl(%)
Rising Fame International Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong
ARERERAR RERAAE  BREAAH EBREAI100ET REBR B8
Galaxy View Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$1 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong, British Virgin Islands
and the PRC
ETEEERAR RBRAER  EREARA ERRRAET REBR B8 HBRLE
BR%
Honest Novel Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong
BAARERAR RERLME BREMAR EBREAI100ET RERR B8
Universe International Holdings Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited (formerly “Universe company Kong
International Financial Holdings
Limited")
EFERERERLR(HTE B ARELAT ERERRA100%T RERR BE
RISFERSRERERL
al)
China Jianxin Credit Services Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$100 Money lending in Hong Kong N 100% -
Limited (formerly “Universe company
Asia Finance Limited”)
PEEEEEERAAGIES  FE BREEAA EERRAI100%ET e FE
[RFTNBHERAR)
Fragrant River Culture Investment - Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in the PRC N 100% -
Limited company
FIUREERAT B ARELAT EBRRAI100%ET REZR - &
Fragrant River Entertainment Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Investment Limited company Kong
BTRERABRAT &8 BREELT ERERRAI100%ET REHR B8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EZE i &2 5 (a0

Proportion of
Proportionof ~ Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued ~ Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERARLAR mEE  AFERER
ERRL/ RIBER BENEER KANEER  BANEZER
8 EERRER BRITRAFE TEEBRERDE Ee (%) £ (%) £ (%)
Rising Fame Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$3,000,000  Securities investments - 100% -
company
AERERRAT 2 BRALAT LRRFAS0000008T FHRLE
Fine Ocean Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$5,000,001  Optical shops - 90% 10%
company
BUARAT &8 ARELAT LBREARS000001  BREE
BT
Winston Asia Limited™ The British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary US$3,319 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
liability company Kong and the PRC
RERAAE  BREAAH EERRA3310%T  REBR BERTH
Universe Watch and Jewellery Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$73,944,225  Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Group Co Ltd company Kong and the PRC
ETBRAEREARLA B ARELAT LERRAT3044,005  REBR BERT
BT
MM EEFERAF PRC, limited liability company Ordinary Wholesale and retail of watches - 100% -
RMB27,500,000 inthe PRC
HE - FRELAT ERRRAARY HENTEEE
27,500,000
ERBS(RIBERAF PR, limited liability company Ordinary HK$9,000,000  Wholesale and retai of watches - 100% -
inthe PRC
PE - BREEAT LERRA000000 HEMTEERK
BT
Garona (HK) Limited™ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$300,000 ~ Wholesale and retal of watches - 100% -
company in Hong Kong
% BRALAT LRERRA00000ET HEMTEER £F
Garona Worldwide Limited* Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 Trademark holding - 100% -
company
&8 BREEAT LERRA100008T  HERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

11 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11 EZE i &2 5 (a0

Proportion of
Proportionof ~ Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held by non-
establishment and kind of legal Particulars of issued ~ Principal activities and place directly held by held by the controlling
Name entity share capital of operation parent (%) group (%) interests (%)
ERHEAR BEE  AEERER
ERRL/ RIBER BENEER KANEER  BANEZER
8 EERRER BRIRAKFHE FTEERREXBE Ee (%) £ (%) £ (%)
World Time (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$100,000  Trademark holding - 100% -
company
BEtRERAT 2 BRALAT ERERIRAR1000008T BERE
China Jianxin Financial Services ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary Securities brokerage and - 100% -
Limited (formerly “Win Fung company HK$335,300,000 margin financing
Securities Limited”)
PEEEERRBARARNG  FE BREAAA LBRRA335,300000 EHELRARRE
BAKEEFERAT) fion
China Jianxin Precious Metal Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary HK$5,500,000  Holding the trading rights held - 100% -
Company Limited company in The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society
PEREEERARAA 8 BREELT EBRRA5500000 HESHREEHAIHER
BT
* No registered Chinese name for the companies * ZENRWEELPEE
*  No registered English name for the companies # ZENTW B LR ETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN

12 REBERT 2R Bl
(FEfY) —EHBE N T 2 RIE

ASSOCIATE
(@) Interests in associates ERN VNG
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cost of investments in associates, WEBENT 2K
unlisted FEET 42,314 40,455
Share of post-acquisition profits FEAG U BB 12 3 T 3,480 3,696
Less: Accumulated impairment loss & : 25T RIEEE (21,648) (18,421)
Less: Dividend received W B E (4,753) -
19,393 25,730

Details of each of the Group’s associate at the end of

RBERRAEESHERRZF

the reporting period are as follows: B
Principal
place of Proportion of registered
Name of entity Place of incorporation business capital held by the Group Principal activity Note
ERER RlAEE TEERNE  AREREZHEMEALH TEXR Mz
2017 20 6
8-t _TF
Glory International British Virgin Islands(‘BVI")  Hong Kong 49% 49% Advertising, promotion, i
Entertainment Limited provision of public
(“Glory International”) relations services, holding
and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts,
film production and other
cultural events
VRARREERLE  EERLES &k BERME HE  RELH
([FRErR]) R - %ﬁ%&zﬂ#%é/
it E4e - BYRER
3D
Hong Kong Optical Hong Kong Hong Kong 28% 28% Trading, wholesaling and (i), (i
Company Limited retailing of optical products
("HK Optical’)
EARERFEROA B i 85 BERTEXZER
(xERE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 12 R NTI 2% EW
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN (E) —RBBE QAT 2B
ASSOCIATE (continued) (&)

(a) Interests in associates (Continued)
Notes: M5E

On 28th August 2015, Fragrant River Entertainment
Investment Limited (“FREI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party vendor,
pursuant to which the Group acquired 49% equity
interest in Glory International, a company incorporated
in BVI with limited liability, at an initial consideration
of HK$36,750,000. The final cash consideration is
subject to adjustment and a cap of HK$55,125,000 in
accordance with the formula stipulated in the sale and
purchase agreement dated 28th August 2015 which
detailed as follows:

FC =NP x 7.5 x49%
Where:

“FC” means the amount of the Final Consideration
subject to a cap of HK$55,125,000;

“NP” means the audited consolidated profit after tax
of Glory International and its subsidiaries for the period
from 1st July 2015 to 30th June 2016

On 5th May 2016, FREI and the independent third
party vendor entered into a supplemental agreement
pursuant to which the terms of the consideration as
stated in the sale and purchase agreement dated 28th
August 2015 has been amended. In accordance with
the supplemental agreement, the amended terms
include (i) the final consideration will be capped at
the amount which is equal to the initial consideration
(i.e. HK$36,750,000); (ii) the consideration will only be
subject to downward adjustment in accordance with
the following revised formula:

FC = NP x (12/15) x 7.5 x 49%

R-E—RFENA-+/\H &
RARIZZEMBRAR T T IREE
EERAR([EIRELE|)HE
— BB E A EARFIMNEE W
FBHAEERBYRBEERE(—
MR EBELHEFMKRIZE
RAR])A9% 2 etk - MIHNRER
36,750,000/ 7T © LM RER]
BERHA-_Z-—HFNA-TN
Az BERHME AR EITHE
M~ 15 18 8 55,125,000 7T 2 +
R BREAANFIBOT ¢

FC =NP x 7.5 x49%
e

[FCIE&EXRRERE  LRA
55,125,000 T :

INPHE=B—RFtA—RE-F
—REAAS+EHMTRERE
HMBRR 2 GBS A BREE
il

R-ZT—XNFREARR  BITRE
RERBYF =B
#oBEK - BAE-ZT—RHFNA
—Z+NBZEEREMIIREZIE
REEER - REHTHE &
BRI ZERBRENREREZ LR
HER ¥ 2R (E (B136,750,0007%8
JL) ¢ (VBB ERRIBEATEER
DRAEH T -

FC = NP x (12/15) x 7.5 x 49%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

12 REBERT s Bl
() —EBE QT 2 KA

(&)

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a) Interests in associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BiaE - (48)
) (Continued) )y (&)
Where: Hep

“FC” means the amount of the Final Consideration
subject to a cap of HK$36,750,000;

“NP” means the audited consolidated profit after tax
of Glory International and its subsidiaries for the period
from 1st July 2015 to 30th September 2016

No downward adjustment is needed in accordance with
the audited consolidated financial statements of Glory
International and its subsidiary for the period from 1st
July 2015 to 30th September 2016, and accordingly,
the final consideration is fixed at HK$36,750,000.

Glory International operates in Hong Kong and is
a strategic partner for the Group in developing the
business of advertising, promotion, provision of public
relations services, holding and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film production and other
cultural events.

During the year ended 30th June 2016, in view of
the financial performance of Glory International,
the Group has performed impairment assessment
on investments in Glory International whereby the
recoverable amount of HK$22,852,000 of Glory
International was determined based on value in use
calculation, with reference to the estimated cash flows
in the coming five years and cash flows beyond five
years were extrapolated by assuming 3% growth rate
using pre-tax discount rate of 18.9%. Following the
impairment assessment, amount of HK$18,421,000
was recognised as impairment loss in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year
ended 30th June 2016.

No impairment is made for the year ended 30th June
2017.
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[FCIHE&KBREDR
36,750,000 7T :

ERA

INPfE—ZE—RFELA—RE_F
—RENA=TRHRERERK
HMB QR 2 EEZGE BB
F

BRIEFRBERREMRBEATR S
—AFtA—HEZZE—XRFNA
—“+tHHENLECEZGEE TR
*] BETHA WEEREEBTEAH
36,750,000 7T ©

TIRBEBERBEBEEERE  RA%
BRERESRE  #E  REHA
IR - ABREREFESEL  F
g BRREEREMXLEDE
BLZBEEERHE -

RBE-Z—XR"FA=+HLF
B ERTRERZBBRER &K
EEHRTRBEBRZIEEEITR
B E  PRBEE TR E SR
22,852,000 7L Ty R EFE A EE
K2 ERT AR EA18.9%:TE 2
ARAFHHBRERERBHRIG
ERAEIRMEE > AFEB SR
EMETE - WBEFTHE  RE
E-E-RENAZTHILEFEEZ
BAZEAWERANERREERE
18,421,0005 7T °

BE_Z—tHFRA=THLFE
BUEEHRAE -

© © © 0 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 0000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

12 REBERT s Bl
() —EBE QT 2 KA

(&)

(a) Interests in associates (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) BiaE - (48)

i

i)

On 21st May 2015, Precise Reach Group Limited
(“Precise Reach”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired 11% equity interest in HK
Optical at a consideration of HK$1,603,000. On 1st
February 2016, Precise Reach further acquired 17%
equity interest in HK Optical at a consideration of
HK$2,042,000 after which the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over HK Optical. The 11% equity
interest previously held by the Group in HK Optical in
the amount of HK$1,603,000 was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to investment in
associate on 1st February 2016 when the Group is able
to exercise significant influence over HK Optical.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, Precise Reach
further injected HK$1,859,000 as capital injection to HK
Optical.

During the year ended 30th June 2017, in view of the
financial performance of HK Optical, the Group has
performed impairment assessment on the investment
in HK Optical whereby the recoverable amount of Nil
of HK Optical was determined based on value in use
calculation, with reference to the estimated cash flows
in the coming five years and cash flows beyond five
years were extrapolated by assuming 3% growth rate
using pre-tax discount rate of 16.4%. Following the
impairment assessment, amount of HK$3,227,000
was recognised as impairment loss in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year
ended 30th June 2017 due to the continuous operating
loss.

)

RZEBE—FRERA-+—H AR
Az BB RARIBEEEBRA
AI(HBE]) WIEXERE11%MK
# - 18 /A1,603,0008 7T c =
E-RNE-A—B BEAKRE
2,042,000/ L — P REX SR
T17%MMHE - Nz - A%
EAHEERBITEEATESN -
AEBANNEERERESEA
1,603,000 T 11% i E K =
E-RNE_A-BAEFETHKSE
RBITFEEATZENFRATHEE
CREEENDEERE L QR
ﬁ °

BE-_Z-—tFXNA=THLHF
B REE-SREKERETA
1,859,000/ 7T ©

RBE-Z—+tFA=1+HLF
B ENXERBEZHBERE - A
SEENEKERE ZILEEITRE
FE - KEREZAINESETE
TTIRIBE A BB ZRTATE,
REABA%ETE 2 KRR AFHFHR
EMELBREREAEINMES
JEFRREREMET - REE
FhE% - ARFECEBRMRNE
E_T—+EXRNAZTHLEEEZ
ETEARERAERRESE
3,227,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

12 REBERT s Bl
() —EBE QT 2 KA

(&)

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a) PEEE AT 2=
TEBE QT ZHEE R

(@) Interests in associates (Continued) o (%)

Summarised financial information of

material associates =
Summarised financial information of the material REFTERRLENERNEZEEDLH
associate, adjusted for any differences in accounting B WEREAEMBREPHOERD
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in BETHENEZBERRNBE
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed AERENT
below:
Glory International F et
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Gross amounts of the associate’s /NI kS FET BT
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,443 1,628
Current assets MENEE 13,223 16,981
Non-current liabilities EmBAE - (10)
Current liabilities MEEE (11,006) (6,880)
Dividend received from the associate £ R 2 W B & A 7
during the year HIRZ B 4,753 -
Revenue Uz 20,448 25,856
Profit for the year/period from FRWEBRSRE
acquisition date to 30th June 2016 ~ —Z—~XFNA=1H
HAR 2w 2,641 9,108
Other comprehensive income for the FR,EHHE —Z
year/period from acquisition date —NFENA=ZTHEM
to 30th June 2016 Hth 2 E M E - -
Total comprehensive income for the  “E A, UBE A #AE
year/period from acquisition date —E-XFARA=+A
to 30th June 2016 R mkas i 2,641 9,108

e e e 000000000000 00

oo oo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 12 REtE AT 2w Bl
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN (B —REE QAR 2 RIE
ASSOCIATE (continued) (1#)

(@) Interests in associates (Continued) () REFERE 2= ®)
Summarised financial information of FEBENR 2 EER
material associates (Continued) E(#)

Glory International (Continued) FAEERE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EOBRi 2 B RSB R B RN AR A B RS
information to the carrying amount of the interest in WMERERNRBE N 2 RE
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial BRI
statements:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T
Net assets of Glory International TR 2 BEFE 4,660 11,719
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  AEBREREE 2 S
interest in Glory International MR L) 49% 49%
2,283 5,742
Goodwill Bk 35,531 35,531
37,814 41,273
Impairment Loss BB R (18,421) (18,421)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBENRFRERR 2
interest in Glory International ZHRHEE 19,393 22,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M
12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 12 RN T 2w YW

AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN (B —REE QAR 2 RIE

ASSOCIATE (continued) (&)

(@) Interests in associates (Continued) EN G HYNCIE - 2
Aggregate information of associates & B 3k B KBt & 1 7] Z fE 48
that are not individually material &8

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
The Group’s share of loss and total ~ AEE 7 E(REERE2HE
comprehensive income W s 4R s (1,510) (564)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERZEBRERNRZ
Group’s interests in these associates #&z5 7 IREI{EAE %R - 2,878
All of the associates are accounted for using the equity NS ﬁﬂ‘%i&% A FTEE S A A
method in these consolidated financial statements. ) ARE SR A S BR

(b) Amount due from/(to) an associate (b) FEU / ( FEAT) — B E D

Gl
The amount due from/(to) an associate is unsecured, i uﬁz/(ré 1) —RBEBE AT 2%
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance THEEEE - T B RAKRENRE
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximate B oo ERTIABTEIEREER
to their fair value. FERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VENTURE

(a) Interests in joint ventures

R SRR

13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 13 REERNTIZER W —
LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT BEE AT ZER

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Cost of investments in joint ventures, &E& & QA ZKA
unlisted JELET 1,147 1,147
Share of post-acquisition losses FEIG U BB 1R 518 (896) (665)
251 482

Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

RBEHREAEEBZ/EQFLZ
(RN

B

Principal
place of Proportion of registered
Name of entity Place of incorporation business capital held by the Group Principal activity
BRER Bl E TREXRY  ARERAEMERLH TEEH
2017 2016
Bt _TF
Sun Billion Property Macau Macau 40% 40% Investment of land and property in
Limited Macau
BREXARAR ol i RANUNEF z T RDE
Topworld Victory Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong - 50% Deregistered
(Note )
BB AR (Fra) &R &R T
Note: s -

@  On 7th April 2017, Topworld Victory Limited, a
former joint venture of the Group, was successfully
deregistered. Upon deregistration, the Group recorded
a loss on deregistration of joint venture of approximately
HK$24,000.

All of these joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

oo 00 00

() R-ZTE—tFmAtH AEE—
MATE & AR EIARARKINGE
8 o REEiNE - AEESBEHEE
BN A58 424,000 7T ©

EZERERAY UER
EMHHRENE

SRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

P25

\Y

13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 13 REENTIzRER ER—
AN
e |

LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT &
VENTURE (Continued)

Al ZE X

=L

(@) Interests in joint ventures (Continued) N RNl

o

(#)

N2

= ()

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not ERFEEREE AR ELER

individually material:

2017 2016
—E—+tF e ANCS
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
The Group’s share of loss and total ~ AN&EBE 7 ELEEREE
comprehensive income Wes e zE (231) (224)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBERZEEE AT
Group’s interests in these joint R REERRE
ventures 251 482
(b) Loan receivable from a joint venture b) EU—FEEERARIZERK
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Loan receivable from a joint EBR—EEE AT ZER
venture
At the beginning of the year F4 8,364 8,140
Accretion income for the period HRZ 2FBWA 231 224
At the end of the year FR 8,595 8,364
The loan receivable from a joint venture is unsecured, EW—BAEARIZERAEIR
interest free and repayable in 5 years from the date of . B NAERE B EESFEANE
agreement. R o
The loan receivable from a joint venture was neither RNRZE—RNEN_ZET—+F,NHA
past due nor impaired as at 30th June 2016 and =+B BR—HEEERRIZER
2017. The management of the Group believes that no WARBMEBIINKRBE - AEBEEE
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of this RE - ARZEEARIZEEE=E
balance as there has not been a significant change in TWimE KNEH  WHABRZGESRIE
credit quality on the joint venture. HIR B -

252 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

© © ¢ 0 0000 0000000000000 000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 0 00000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS

R SRR

14BN AAREREM

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES PE W Rk IE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
Non-current portion JERNHRER %
Rental deposit Heile 191 363
At 30th June RA<BA=1+H 191 363
Current portion BNERE o
Prepayments TES 0B 4,214 8,059
Interest receivable eI 2 566 387
Advance payment to joint operation SRAEEH 28R
partners 4,218 12,149
Rental deposits and other deposits HerTehHMET 2 9,469 8,254
Other receivables HAth UK IR 82,207 39,643
At 30th June HANA=+H 100,674 68,492

The amount of the Group’s deposits paid expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense after more than one
year is HK$191,000 (2016: HK$363,000). All of the other
deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

The other receivables mainly relate to a number of
independent debtors that have good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoveraple.

AEBEFARHR —FRKCIHER R
MENFT SN2 A191,0008T(=F
— 754 1 363,000/87T) © FIBEME S
Rl & FARFOA R E A EUGRIRS TEER
—FAREEERBFHX

HihRUGRIBET BRE T RN AEEEA
RIFEBRHEZBIBEEARHE - RES
TR AR 2R E - IR A
EHES ER RS ERELRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

15 EBPBBRDAFEARZE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS RmEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Listed equity securities — held for trading ~ _tHIRABZE A HEE S 232,629 247,444
Market value of listed securities @S cmE 232,629 247,444

The listed equity securities in the amount of HK$59,566,000
(2016: Nil) are pledged to a securities brokerage firm to
secure margin loans payable obtained during the year (Note
28).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within ‘operating activities’ as part of changes in
working capital in the consolidated statement of cash flows
(Note 45).

The fair value of the equity securities is based on their
closing prices as at 30th June 2017 in an active market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

R SRR

16 AItHESHMEE

ASSETS
2017 2016
—ZE—+t5F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T
Listed equity securities, at fair value R ARES - BATE 73,461 -
Unlisted investment funds, at fair value FELEMIEEES -
BRATFE 24,898 79,467
Unlisted limited partnership, at fair value ~ 3F LT AR AZLE -
BRATE 57,334 6,335
155,693 85,802
During the year ended 30th June 2017, the net loss in fair HE-Z—+FA=ZTHLFE £

value of the available-for-sale financial assets recognised in
the consolidated other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$88,565,000 (2016: HK$12,340,000). During the
year, there was a significant decline in fair value of certain
unlisted investment funds and listed equity securities and
the directors consider that such decline indicates that these
unlisted investment funds and listed equity securities have
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$89,643,000
(2016: Nil) was reclassified from equity to the profit or loss
during the year.

The listed equity investment in the amounts of
HK$73,461,000 (2016: Nil) are pledged to a securities
brokerage firm to secure margin loans payable obtained
during the year (Note 28).

Hib 2B AR Al ﬁ%ﬁpﬂaéé
NEERFEIE A88,565,0008 L (ZF
— 734 £ 12,340,000 7L) - FR - BT
ELMREES R ETRAFHFNRATFE
KK - EFRAEBEEKKRAZEHE
ITHREES M EFTTREESDRE I
A A #: (B 5 18.89,643,000/8 7T (= F
—NF o EINEREN O EEER -

FA - ETRERE AE73,461 ooo;‘%fn
—E-RF B BERTESLL
RIS ENTFRES (WuIQS)
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CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

As at 30th June 2017

Financial assets

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

7 BE
T~

ERlE8oceMTA

—+tF
E

SBIANEEED
NA=TH

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BRRERAVEARZEREE

Available-for-
sale financial Contingent Held for Loans and
assets  consideration trading receivables Total
e EXR
THEE FARE BIFEE JEW5og o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AR TiEn T TiEL
Available-for-sale finencial assets ~ IHEHESHEAE 155,693 - - - 155,693
Financial assets at fair value through ~ EBBHRATEARZ
profit or loss SHEE - - 232,629 - 232,629
Accounts receivable YR - - - 333,859 333,859
Amount due from an associate il =N oA - - - 964 964
Financial assets included in STAIBRETS  BRFER
“deposits paid, prepaymentsand  EEWFE 2 £BEE
other receivables” - - - 97,138 97,138
Loans receivable EWE - - - 75,900 75,900
Loan to an associate BF-HEHER uZ%% - - - 7,940 7,940
Loan receivable from a joint venture BN —FIAERFE - - - 8,595 8,595
Contingent consideration receivable M A B - 15,737 - - 15,737
Bank balances and cash - trust ROBRRES - GEEP
account - - - 93,014 93,014
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLZEN - - - 228,22 298,229
155,693 15,737 232,629 845,632 1,249,691

@ e e 000000000000 00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017 (Continued)

17 #ERE s z2E€m T Eum

RZE—EFNA=1THuwm

Financial Liabilities TRBAE
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through
profit or loss
EBRG
RAFEA
EHEmEE
Financial
Contingent liabilities at
consideration amortised cost Total
LA 88 P A 5 B
HARE ZERAR ok
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET FET TET
Accounts payable FEFTIRR - 92,447 92,447
Financial liabilities included in -~ &1 Al EL A & 58 R fE =T
“other payables and THIRIBYGI& 28
accrued charges” and BE
“deposits received” - 124,593 124,593
Borrowings fEE - 53,063 53,063
Obligations under finance lease  F8 & H S & - 63 63
Contingent consideration JERNSARE
payable 19,568 - 19,568
19,568 270,166 289,734

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016

Financial assets

7 RENEs2EM I Em

RZZE—RFNA=TH

ETREE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BRERRATE AR EREE

Available-for-
sale financial ~ Contingent Heldfor ~ Loansand
assets  consideration trading  receivables Total
ARNE Bk
PREE HARE FIEEE FEYER ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHEL THEL THEL
Avalable-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 85,802 - - - 85,802
Financial assets at fair value ﬁﬁiﬂéﬁn&A TEARZ
through profit or loss tREE - - 247 444 - 247 444
Accounts receivable MR - - - 224,739 294,739
Financial assets included in SAIEFAETE - BAZERE
“deposits paid, prepayments HEBGE S BEE
and other receivables” - - - 52,179 52,179
Film related deposits -2 HEA - - - 5,542 5,542
Loans receivable FERER - - - 43,163 43,163
Loan to an associate Sl =N - - - 5,000 5,000
Loan receivable from a joint Elh-HAERT ER
venture - - - 8,364 8,364
Contingent consideration EUHARE
receivable - 10,930 - - 10,930
Bank balances and cash - trust ~ SR{TEH LR E - EHEP
account - - - 116,667 116,667
Cash and cash equivalents RelReEED - - - 101,173 101,173
85,802 10,930 247,444 556,827 901,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 #ERE s z2E€m T Eum
CATEGORY (Continued)
As at 30th June 2016 (Continued) RZE—RNENA=TH®
Financial Liabilities cTEmes
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LA SRR AR
HERZ
Ea =N Rk
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accounts payable JETBRFX 254,722 254,722
Amount due to an associate JEfT—RE & R E) 2 5B 1,941 1,941
Financial liabilities included in “other &F Al E b FER FOB K EET 2 1 ]
payables and accrued charges” kEdETelzcemas
and “deposits received” 64,121 64,121
Borrowings BE 9,200 9,200
Bank overdrafts RITEX 4,020 4,020
Obligations under finance lease BbE M E R IE 98 98
334,102 334,102
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute four television
series (2016: four) and sixteen films (2016: thirteen)
respectively. The Group has participating interests ranging
from 5% to 90% (2016: from 5% to 90%) in these joint
operations. As at 30th June 2017, the aggregate amounts
of assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements relating to the Group’s interests in
these joint operation arrangements are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

18 BEXEKER

AEBECDFIYETEEEBLH - UD
RIBMER BTHUMEREEBR(—FT—X
FmE) R RBEX(ZT—RF -
T=8) ARERZFALEBTHER
NFE5%ZEI0%(ZFE—71F : 5%ZE90%)
Z2HERE N _F—tFAA=TH"
BRASERNESREXH R Z#R
T ERGEMBRRTHRAZEENE
EAREEIT -

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&xT FHET
Assets EE
Film rights and films in progress B RohRAE M BEF
ZEF 26,094 52,780
Film related deposits EXEBET 2 10,012 758
Accounts receivable and other JE UK BR SR R EAth R Uk
receivables FRIE 70,181 9,774
106,287 63,312
Liabilities =R
Accounts payable and other payables FEAT R R I FL At A~
RIE 566 640
Deposits received BUWETE 4,486 20,380
5,052 21,020
2017 2016
—®—tE T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Revenue Wz 116,418 36,115
Expenses =92 (60,364) (9,658)
Profit after income tax FrPT1SH1& A 56,054 26,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

19 INVENTORIES 19 78
2017 2016
—E—+F —EFE—REF
HK$°000 HIK$’000
F#ET T
Raw materials JR# 202 1,062
Finished goods RURK i 9,864 13,242
10,066 14,304
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAAREY M AGAELERKEFERNZTE
an expense and included in consolidated statement of EFEZ OO ¢
comprehensive income is as follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —ERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET &L
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZEERE 31,507 36,608
Write down of inventories FEMR 1,501 1,709
Reversal of write-down of inventories 5 & Mo B = (B aEi)
(Note i) (508) (817)
32,500 38,000

Note i: The amount resulted from the utilisation of obsolete
inventories that were written down in prior years.

HREFE -

izt FESEREDAERBEFEHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

20 FEW AR

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZEREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET

Accounts receivable arising from BHERERFTRAEE
securities brokerage and margin EEZEWEN :
financing business:

— Clearing house and cash clients —#HEMRASER 69,560 188,157
Less: Impairment loss (Note c) W BEEE (M 5Ec) (827) -
Net (Note a) FRE(Mf7ta) 68,733 188,157

— Margin clients —HfREP 197,284 16,250
Less: Impairment loss (Note c) W BB R (M FEc) (8,133) -
Net (Note b) FEE (M 3Eb) 189,151 16,250

257,884 204,407

Accounts receivable arising from HEBEE ZEWRR :
other businesses:

Accounts receivable — others JE U BR 3k — E A 77,627 20,474

Less: Impairment loss (Note e) B REEE (FiEte) (1,652) (142)
Net (Note d) FEE(MI5Ed) 75,975 20,332

Accounts receivable — net FEWERR — F5E 333,859 224,739

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate
their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 20 EWE’E;—E&(E)

Notes: 5T
(@  Accounts receivable arising from clearing house and cash @ HBHERMESEPEEZEUER
clients

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from clearing
house and cash clients which are past due but not impaired as
of the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BERESHR  CABERREZER
HEMEBRESEPRIZREROITAOT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Neither past due nor impaired I R iE BRI AR A 59,500 132,375
Less than 1 month past due B R DR E A 411 23,713
More than 1 month past due B ERER A 18 A 8,822 32,069
68,733 188,157

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
clearing house and cash clients, which arise from the
securities brokerage and margin financing business, are two
days after trade date. Accounts receivable from cash clients
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously. Details
are set out in Note 3.4.

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. These receivables are secured by their portfolio
of securities. As at 30th June 2017, the total market value
of their portfolios of securities was HK$22,036,000 (2016:
HK$163,511,000). Included in the Group’s accounts
receivable are cash clients with carrying amount of
HK$9,233,000 (2016: HK$55,782,000) which are past due
at the end of the reporting period but for which the Group
has not provided for impairment as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality. The Group believes
that the amounts are still considered recoverable given the
amount is fully secured by the listed securities of the cash
clients or the substantial settlement after the end of the
reporting period. Accounts receivable due from past due
cash clients of approximately HK$827,000 (2016: Nil) which
are not fully secured by the listed securities of the respective
cash clients, are considered impaired as at 30th June 2017.
Accounts receivable due from cash clients bear interest at
commercial rates when it becomes past due.

EFRERARRERBEL Z B
HERRASEFEPRIERREERRRS
REMA - BRRESTPHRAAREE
RRRRELEE -

BN B IR 55 A A TE R T HE MR
MREE T EIAFRAEE - RS IBRR
B RIS BEEEE T EAGRIR RN
BRX - FHIBENMIFES.4 -

BUBSRFPEREZ LTI EED
MBI EFAR ZSEUIRRARSE
BEAAER - R _ET—+E A=+
B HEEHMEAETER22,036,000
BIL(ZZ—7<F 1 163,511,000 7T) °
BeEPHALREEHEWRE  HE
B £9,233,000/8 7t (ZZ — /N F
55,782,000/ 7T) + R EEARE @ E -
A EE I EELRERE  RA
ABEEEEVEHIBEAREE - MRZ
LESHEARSEFP EMESFEBERK
REHESERBERREEE  AEH
HEZSESBMPRETRE - BUE,
B ERIR & K PR 3K 49827,000/8 T (=&
—ANF - E)TAHBARESES ETE
FEREER R-_T—+tF~A=+H
WRERE - EUIRS T F RN 8 H
IR FIRET B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Accounts receivable arising from margin clients

Accounts receivable from margin clients, which arise from
the securities brokerage and margin financing business, are
repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities collateral
to the Group in order to obtain credit facilities for securities
trading. The amount of credit facilities granted to them is
determined by the discounted value of securities accepted
by the Group. Additional funds or collateral are required if
the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value of
securities deposited. The listed securities of the margin clients
can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any margin
call requirements imposed by their respective securities
transactions. The pledged securities are substantially listed
securities in Hong Kong as at 30th June 2017 and 2016. At
30th June 2017, margin loans were current and repayable
on demand (2016: current and repayable on demand except
for HK$2,695,000 where the margin loans were past due
for less than 1 month). Margin loans that were past due
but not impaired relate to a number of independent clients
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. As at
30th June 2017, the total market value of their portfolios of
securities was HK$456,052,000 (2016: HK$92,620,000).
Accounts receivable from margin clients are repayable on
demand and bear interest at commercial rates.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are margin
clients, with carrying amount of HK$189,151,000 (2016:
HK$16,250,000) at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality. The Group
believes that the amounts are still considered recoverable
given the amount is fully secured by the listed securities of
the margin clients or the substantial settlement after the end
of the reporting period. Accounts receivable due from margin
clients of approximately HK$8,133,000 (2016: Nil) which are
not fully secured by the listed securities of the respective
margin clients are considered impaired as at 30th June 2017.

No ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from margin
clients is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of this business.

264 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

20 FEWBRFN (@)

Mt - (A&

(b)

FREPELZBYWHRR

REBF L RAFRBEEZBERST
REPRINBEEARIRERERE -

HEEFARNASEERESKER
FAEBSBEARGZEEME - HEE
B EERMBEENRAEEES &
FANEEEET - WHaAEESHEBS
TRz BHZAERRESER  AF
DN ECHIRITFR - FREFN L™
BEUBRAEERBLE  NWEERS
BEEEBEHFRDBMMTMAEBINRES
ER - RZTFE—EFRZFT—RFNA
=+H BERAEFRIEH>AEEELT
BE - R-ZT—+HFXA=+H HE
ERABRBRZERER(ZT—RF
MB) RIZESKEE - 12,695,000 7T
BREZRCBELA1ERRIN - E@mE
BRBREZFRER S REXREBES
RIFFBERS 2 EABLEF - BIER
ek TEERABAZEEHE
HRERE  RAAEEERTEEX
FE) L B RAESIDER AR EERE -
RZE—tFRA=1TH BEBLHE
A K 48T 8 A 456,052,000 7T ( =&
—7NE 1 92,620,000 TT) - EWHRE
FIERBREREE  WiIRmEM R
B o

HEBEFFARNEEBUKRR - R@RE
B R H BRI (E/5189,151,00008 T (=&
—7NE 1 16,250,00087T) © Bhitt ANEE
WEEHBRERE  RRAEELEEY
EHBEEREH  c AN ZESERITRE
EELIMBS2HERIKRNITH SR
MEBKEZREE  ~EEHEE%ESHE
MR AR E - BIRFREFERD
8,133,000/ 7L( —ZT— 74 : &)W KA
FBEFESPLETMESFE2HER K=
T+ ERNA=ZTBBEARE -

mRARAEFRA - EREEY L&
TEMEE - BN ) 170 48 2 AR B
B A 51 1 T R 5 PR B T B
B -

© © © 0 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 0000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 20 EWE’E%&(E)

Notes: (Continued) MiEE - (&)
()  Impairment of accounts receivable arising from securities ) BHELLERARMEEBES ZEWEK
brokerage and margin financing business FORE
Movements in the allowance for impairment are as follows: WEREZESHOT :
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year FEXEEER - -
Provision of impairment of accounts FEUER FUR B R
receivable
- Clearing house and cash clients —HEMEREEP 827 -
- Margin clients -HFREF 8,133 -
At the end of the year RER 8,960 -
The Group has a policy for determining the allowance NEBFZIETREREORE - E
for impairment based on the evaluation of collectability W BR SR A BT B0 14 I BR e o0 AT BT A (403
and ageing analysis of accounts receivable if applicable BINKEEENHE AER  BIEEH
and on management’s judgement, including the current EPZEREZE KRR RBELRRE
creditworthiness, collateral and the past collection history of o
each client.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

20 FEWERF @)

Mt - (A&

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(d)  Accounts receivable arising from other businesses (d) EfthZEREE 2 EUERR

UNTRZZFAHEI 2 EMEBESE

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable

arising from other businesses, presented based on the Z TEWR TR BRER D AT -
invoice dates:

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
110 90 days 1£290H 65,682 10,963
91 days to 180 days 91HZE180H 1,926 7,026
Over 180 days 180H A 8,367 2,343
75,975 20,332

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from other

BEHERRE AEBFEEZEIR

businesses, which are past due but not impaired, are as BRI ZEBRBR AT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Neither past due nor impaired I K48 B IR AR B 57,541 10,297
Past due but not impaired BafERRE
Less than 1 month past due BH DR E A 7,073 942
1 to 3 months past due BHI1E3E A 419 943
3 months to 1 year past due BHBEAE14F 9,637 7,972
Over 1 year past due B AR R A 1,305 178
18,434 10,035
75,975 20,332
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Accounts receivable arising from other businesses
(Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable from other businesses,
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. Receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7 days
to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights are on open account terms. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash or via major credit
cards. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
Note 3.1(b).

Impairment of accounts receivable arising from other
businesses

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable arising
from other businesses are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against accounts receivable directly (see Note
2.12).

R SRR

20 FEWBRFN (@)

Mt - (A&

(d)

H AT 2 EWURR ()

MARBEMEBZEKRERME @ K
B HR TR AR E 2 JE YRR S % 5 B D
BEOLENEPEM - DRHERR
BZREFIREE T AN AEEES R
FRELHRZBITFEH - RIBBHE
RE ENEEORTESAES - M
B DER AR 2R E - HEEE
BIEBERZSEREHRERS -

HERBRERZEEHATEZE608T
L oBYRMR BRHREREZREZ
EEH UG NET - AZERF
EYUBReFANERETEEAFRE
17 REBCHTRRBRENEZED
CEMEEDNNEASRTEALENT
FiEL  AREHERFETTEHER
B -

ERAEBEERRN#E —SHBRN
B7E3.1(b) ©

HA R ELE 2 EURF ZRIE

EREMEREL 2 ERRERZRER
BIE R BERLS  BRIEAREERE
W B RTBO R B EERE - RZEBER
T BEREEESEERERERS
s (R FE2.12) »

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts REEBE &
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
At the beginning of the year REA] 142 142
Impairment of accounts receivable FEUEBR FORE 1,510 -
At the end of the year RER 1,652 142

Impairment of accounts receivable arising from other
businesses of approximately HK$1,510,000 (2016: Nil) was
recognised by the Group due to long outstanding receivable
from debtors, and no impairment (2016: Nil) was written off
from the allowance account during the year ended 30th June
2017.

BHE-Z—+HFNAZTHLFE K
EEAERESAFTERBAEEMRE
RHEMEBELE 2 BWRERZBREYD
1,510,000/ (=T — "G : #) » WE
BE(ZZ—RNF « )R BERAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M
21 LOANS RECEIVABLE 21 EWER
(@) Loans receivable from third party (@ EWE=FRFER
customers
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Loans to third party customers BRYE=-ZARFZER 75,900 43,163
As at 30th June 2017 and 2016, RZE—tFR TN
the maturity profile of the loans FRAZTH - RIEE
receivable, based on the maturity HRZ27 2 ERERE
date is as follows: BRI
— Non-current —JEBNER 45,500 20,000
- Current —BNEA 30,400 23,163
75,900 43,163
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as EWERNEEEEZoWHT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Neither past due nor impaired A 18 BA Sl R (B
— Unsecured loans — BRI E R 59,400 43,163
- Secured loans —BIEEER 16,500 -
75,900 43,163
The Group’s loans receivable from third party AEBZERE=ZHARFPER(RE
customers, which arise from the money lending R E EISFTE L) ThLAB TTaTE ©
business in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.
Except for loans receivable of HK$16,500,000 (2016: Br FE I & 5% 16,500,0008 7T (=&
Nil), which are secured by unconditional personal —NEF o E)NEGEEEAERE
guarantees, bear interest and are repayable with fixed B FrEMREREFHEREEF
terms agreed with the customers, all loans receivable HEEIN  FERKEREER -
are unsecured, bear interest and are repayable with T EMIZEEFHEREEFHE
fixed terms agreed with customers. ® o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b) Loans to an associate

The loan to an associate, HK Optical, in the amount of
HK$5,000,000 (2016: HK$5,000,000) is unsecured,
bearing an interest at 7% per annum and repayable
on 23rd March 2017. The loan was granted to the
associate through the normal procedures of the
money lending business of the Group during the year
ended 30th June 2016. On 13th March 2017, the
Group signed a supplemental loan agreement with HK
Optical to extend the repayment date of the loan to
23rd March 2018.

Another loan to an associate, HK Optical, in the
amount of HK$2,940,000 (2016: Nil) is unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed term of repayment.

The loans receivable are neither impaired nor overdue
as at 30th June 2017 (2016: same).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each balance sheet
date is the carrying amount of the loans receivable.

All the loans receivable are entered with contractual
maturity within 1 to 2 years. The Group seeks to maintain
tight control over its loans receivable in order to minimise
credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’
financial positions.

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
7% to 20% per annum (2016: 7% to 12% per annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$5,859,000 (2016:
HK$8,450,000) has been recognised in ‘revenue’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

R SRR

21 BEWER @)

b) HT—REEERFIZERK
By —HBBEARKEREZER
£ %05,000,0008 T (=& — /R 4F -
5,000,000/ 7T ) B EEH - LEF
E7%itBAEARZZZE—+tF=A
ZT=HEE ZEEXRIREZE
TE-XNEXNAZTHILEFEEB
AEBHEEBNEERFRTZ
AT - RZE—+E=A+=
H AEERXERBEZEMTE
FHE EREFNEFHE=T
—\F=HA=-+=8-

M—EBERARKERERTZS
—EE R AEH2,940,0008 T (=F
—NF E)RBEERE - TR ERE

RZZBE—tFRA=1+H " BKE
RAABESBH(ZF—RF :
)

REEERBRAMSRANEERRSE
W& BREE -

PrBERKRESRMIAMEIBMEN F122
FA - AEEH B BEHNERALIER
AR ISR - 455 S U E R B AR R
# o BRBEERRRERE

JEWE FIRN F7%E20% 2 FHET 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

22 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 22 EIRSHANRE

RECEIVABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the acquisition of AP
Group during the year ended 30th June 2016 as detailed
in Note (i) below. Contingent consideration receivable is
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The movement of the fair value of contingent consideration
receivable is as follows:

WS AREZ A FEEERBEE_T
—RERNAZTHIEFERBEEHEERY
REZHABERZANER(FHNTX
FIEE() - BMEARERREHRRA
FERE - BRSAREQXHEZZE BN
T~

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
At fair value: BAFEE
At beginning of the year EEFT) 10,930 -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries UG BB B AR FTE £
(Note 46(c)) (Ff5E46(c)) - 6,850
Fair value change N EEE) 4,807 4,080
At end of the year RER 15,737 10,930
Note: BIaE -
()  Adjustment to the consideration () REZFAE

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered in
relation to the acquisition of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, the vendors shall, and the
guarantors shall procure the vendors to, pay to the Group the
adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in accordance
with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:
“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and

“NP” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable as
at 30th June 2017 are based on the valuation performed
by Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Details
of fair value measurement are set out in Note 3.3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BANK BALANCES AND CASH -

TRUST ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds monies deposited by
clients and other institutions in the course of the conduct
of the regulated activities of its securities brokerage and
margin financing business. These clients’ monies are
maintained in one or more trust bank accounts. The Group
has recognised the corresponding accounts payable to
respective clients and other institutions (Note 31). However,
the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to
offset those payables with the deposits placed.

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R SRR

23 RITHEBRRBRE —FFERF

AEBEETEESFELCMATRBERH
ZEBEFRHBET  WBRRFEEF K
HEBF R HIA - ZEEFRAFE
R—EzZEEERITHRPA - XEED
BREN TP RS (FHE31)
ZHARERRE o AT - NEEIRE L EA R
BIBIT RN ATE R IEE R F RN 5O

24 RERBEEEY

2017 2016

—E—+tF —EFE—RF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

F#ET T

Cash at bank H|ITER 227,536 95,599

Cash held with custodians AERFBEERS 435 5,454

Cash in hand FERE 251 120
Cash and cash equivalents in the RABERBRAZES

consolidated balance sheet MRS EEY 228,222 101,173

Less: Bank overdrafts (Note 28) B SRITIE S (FIE28) - (4,020)
Cash and cash equivalents in the HERERERAZRS

consolidated statement of cash flows NIBE&EEY 228,222 97,153

Included in the cash and bank balances at 30th June 2017
were a total sum being the equivalent of HK$29,315,000
(2016: HK$24,876,000) which was maintained in
mainland China and is subject to foreign exchange control
regulations.

—E—FRNA=ZTHZESRIRTTER
FE4AREHE E 7229,315,0008 7T (=T — /X
F 1 24,876,000/ 7T) FIE - FTERF
BIARE - ZOMNEE HIEBIFTER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 IR
2017 2016
—F-tf —EAF
Number of Number of
shares  Nominal value shares  Nominal value
REE AfE B AE
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
TR TR i T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of FRR0.01BTZ
HK$0.01 each TIEA 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER -
Ordinary shares of FRR0.01E L2
HK$0.01 each ik 853,302 8,533 177,774 1,778
Movements in the issued share capital of the Company RKAFREE-ZE—F+FN T —7RNFEN

during the years ended 30th June 2017 and 2016 are as

A=TRIFFENSEITRAZEMT

follows:
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
LEREE HfE
Note HK$'000
izE T
At 1st July 2015 R=Z-nFtA—A 298,380,307 2,984
Issue of new shares in July 2015 RZE-REtABTIRG (a) 586,350,000 5,863
Issue of new shares in August 2015 RZE—-RENRABTHRG (b) 596,760,614 5,968
Capital reorganisation in March 2016 RZE-RFZ ATRAZA ) (1,333,341,829) (13,333)
Issue of new shares in April 2016 RZE—NEMAETIRG (d) 29,625,000 296
At 30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016 RZE-R"ERAZTER
2 RFtA-A 177,774,002 1,778
Issue of new shares in October 2016 RZE—RE+ARTHRG ©) 355,548,184 3,555
Issue of new shares in February 2017 RZE—tEZ AETHRG ] 106,660,000 1,067
Issue of new shares in March 2017 RZE—t45= AETHRG © 213,320,000 2133
At 30th June 2017 RZE—tF,A=+H 853,302,276 8,533
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

e e e 0000000000000 000 00

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the
Company, China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited and Jun
Yang Securities Company Limited, independent third parties,
on 26th May 2015, the Company issued, on 28th July
2015, an aggregate of 586,350,000 new shares at a price
of HK$0.3411 per placing share to not less than six placees
who were independent of, and not connected to the Group.
The gross proceeds from the said placement amounted
to approximately HK$200,004,000 and the related issue
expense was approximately HK$7,216,000.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 26th May
2015, the circular of the Company dated 24th June 2015
and the prospectus of the Company dated 24th July 2015,
the Company proposed rights issue on the basis of two
rights shares for every one existing share at HK$0.202 per
rights share (the “2015 Rights Issue”). A total of 596,760,614
shares were issued under the 2015 Rights Issue on 13th
August 2015. The gross proceeds from the 2015 Rights
Issue are approximately HK$120,546,000. The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and other
related expenses of approximately HK$4,195,000 were
approximately HK$116,351,000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 17th March 2016, the capital reorganisation
(the “2016 Capital Reorganisation”) became effective on 18th
March 2016. The 2016 Capital Reorganisation involved:

(i) the consolidation of every 10 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company into 1 consolidated share (the “Consolidated
Share(s)”) of a par value of HK$0.1 each (the “2016
Share Consolidation”);

(i) the reduction of issued share capital of the Company
of HK$13,333,000 whereby the par value of each
Consolidated Share was reduced from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.09 of the paid up capital
on each Consolidated Share and any fraction of a
Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the 2016 Share Consolidation
was eliminated in order to round down the total number
of Consolidated Shares to a whole number;

@iy the capital reduction of HK$13,333,000 was credited to
the reorganisation reserve of the Company;

(iv)  the sub-division of each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Shares of HK$0.10 each into 10 shares
of HK$0.01 each.

R SRR

25 PR 7N ()

fia -

(@)

BRIBEAQG - FEXKESH(BB)E
RARIMEGEFBRAR (M ABIL
FE=H)R-_ZE—AFRAA-+~A
VUWEERE  ARFR-ZZE—AFt
ARZ+ N \BESRESRKRKH0.3411%
TTRERATLDRANEBINAERR
HAEEBERAENARAZETAHE
586,350,000 A% {7 o il fid & AT{S 5Kk
18 48 5 49200,004,0007 7T - ABEIE1TH
X 497,216,000/ 7T °

BEARGDRAHA-_ZT—AFHA
—+RBZAM - ARRBHBEAE=-Z
—hAFANAZt+WHBZAERKEARATH
HMAE-_E-—AFE+A-_THAZBKES
B AREESREEE —REERH
T B R R IR A (D 2 B LA B IR AR AR
B0.202B L ETHBR ([ Z T — A FH#
) - BE—_Z—AFHEN T —F
FNA+=ZHA £317596,760,614 0% f%
B —E—RFEHRBAMSHRBLENA
120,546,000/ 7T ° &R BHEEE R E
BRI L 494,195,000/ 714 » Frig sk
TBSREEX) 116,351,000/ 7T °

BER-_Z—-RNF=ZRATHHBTHR
REFIRE DBBONFIDRESR - AR
ER(ZZE-RFRAEEADR_F
—REZATNBER - —F-RER
REEFK

() ARFRAFZ10REFREEOC.01
BILHE 1T RAEITRMD G E 6
([ZZ2—RERHEH]) BIRE
MREEOABITE F G ([ & 5%
%])

(i) BRTHEBREHAROOEHRAR
0.098 7T © BERAHFRMHMEE
F0.10/8 JTTHIR Z=0.018 7T » BUfE
RN A B BT AR AN B 5913,333,000
HBIT - Wik AR R B EITIR AT
A-Z—ARERDAEHFMAEEES
BT & BF B D BE AR A & BEAR 1D B
BETHEEEY

(i) BRAEI 13,333,000 L5t AR D
RIMEAAREE

(v) #HE—-BREREE0A0EITHNEE
BRBEITHAHENFARI0RE
AR E{EO.01 B LR A

—T R BEFEEReRERERAF 273

© © 0 0 00000 0000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 00000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

25 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

Upon the 2016 Capital Reorganisation became effective on
18th March 2016, the issued share capital of the Company
became HK$1,481,491 divided into 148,149,092 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each. Further details of the 2016 Capital
Reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated
23rd February 2016.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company, SBI China Capital Financial Services Limited,
independent third parties, on 23th March 2016, the Company
issued, on 13th April 2016, an aggregate of 29,625,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.779 per placing share to not
less than six placees who were independent of, and not
connected to the Group. The gross proceeds from the said
placement amounted to approximately HK$23,078,000 and
the related issue expense was approximately HK$810,000.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 12th July
2016, the circular of the Company dated 12th August 2016
and the prospectus of the Company dated 9th September
2016, the Company proposed rights issue on the basis of
two rights shares for every one existing share at HK$0.60 per
rights share (the “2016 Rights Issue”). A total of 355,548,184
shares were issued under the 2016 Rights Issue on 5th
October 2016. The gross proceeds from the 2016 Rights
Issue are approximately HK$213,329,000. The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and other
related expenses of approximately HK$6,400,000 were
approximately HK$206,929,000.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Gransing Securities Co., Limited, an
independent third party, on 18th January 2017, the Company
issued, on 7th February 2017, an aggregate of 106,660,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.519 per placing share to not
less than six placees who were independent of, and not
connected to the Group. The gross proceeds from the said
placement amounted to approximately HK$55,356,000 and
the related issue expense was approximately HK$1,933,000.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Gransing Securities Co., Limited, an
independent third party, on 18th January 2017, the Company
issued, on 29th March 2017, an aggregate of 213,320,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.519 per placing share to not
less than six placees who were independent of, and not
connected to the Group. The gross proceeds from the said
placement amounted to approximately HK$110,713,000 and
the related issue expense was approximately HK$3,875,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted
on 2nd December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the share
option schemes include the Company’s directors, including
non-executive directors, other employees of the Group
or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or services to
the Group or any invested entity, customers of the Group
or any invested entity, shareholders of the Group or any
invested entity, holders of securities of the Group or any
invested entity and persons or entities provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any invested entity. According to the provision of the
Share Option Scheme, share options granted during the
term of the Share Option Scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to the end thereof shall continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant
notwithstanding the expiry of the Share Option Scheme.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
the Share Option Scheme adopted. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company and is settled in gross shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the dates of
approval of the Share Option Scheme unless approval for
refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s shareholders
has been obtained. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) within any 12 month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 26 Eﬁﬂﬁ%(ﬁ)

Under the Share Option Scheme, a share option granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12 month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
dates of adoption of the Share Option Scheme subject
to the provisions for early termination set out in the Share
Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the
directors at their sole discretion, there is no requirement of
a minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 26 Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%ﬁ)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their weighted average exercise prices for the years

REBE-T—tFR-_T-RFRA=T
RIS - HARTTEBAREEE MEmE

ended 30th June 2017 and 2016 are as follows: FIEITEEZZFWT
Weighted No. of shares
average issuable under
exercise price  options granted
REERH
BREART
mEFHITEE RGEA
HK$
(B7T)
At 1st July 2015 R=-ZF-HEFtA-AH 1.738 15,088,400
Adjustment arising from: MATIEHAE
- 2015 Rights Issue ——E-RFHK 9,260,382
Granted during the year REAET 0.106 118,513,880
Lapsed during the year RERKK 1.077 (3,343,673
Adjustment arising from: MATEHAE
- 2016 Share Consolidation —ZE-NEROHEH (125,567,090)
Outstanding and exercisable at RZBE-RXEXA=TAK
30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016 Z2-RFEtA-BHERTRE
RAFTHE 2.518 13,951,899
Lapsed during the year RERKK 10.773 (2,100,511)
Adjustment arising from: MATERAR
- 2016 Rights Issue — T RFk 1,594,068
Outstanding and exercisable at RZE—t&EXA=+H
30th June 2017 o RATHE R A FATHE 0.930 13,445,456

No share option was exercised during the years ended

30th June 2016 and 2017.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the
outstanding share options is 0.6 years (2016: 1.37 years).

All share options are immediately vested from the date of

grant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M
26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 26 Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%ﬁ)
Share options outstanding as at 30th June 2017 and 2016 RZE—tF R =T R"FA=+HMH
have the following expiry dates and exercise prices: RITFBERENEMBBARITEEDT ¢
As at 30th June 2017 R-ZZE—tFXA=1+H
Outstanding
Adjusted options as at
exercise price 30th June
per share 2017
R=ZE—+F
AA=t1H
FEE 1 RATHE
BRITEE fERE
HK$
BT
Exercisable period TERFAR
30th September 2015 to 29th “Z-AFNAZTHEZZ—+tHF
September 2017 (Note iii) FLA =+ LB (i 3 1.489 2,351,799
4th March 2016 to 3rd March 2018 ZE-RFZAMNHAZEZE-N\F
(Note iii = A =B (K& 0.811 11,093,657
13,445,456
As at 30th June 2016 RZTZ—RFARA=TH
Outstanding
Adjusted options as at
exercise price 30th June
per share 2016
RZZE—REF
~NAZTH
BRE H AT
BRRITHE g
HK$
AT
Exercisable period TERR
21st July 2014 to 20th July 2016 —E-NELAZ+—REZE—1F
(Note ) + A=+ 8 (KE) 10.773 2,100,511
30th September 2015 to 29th “E-AFNAZTHREZE—+HF
September 2017 (Note ii) NLAZF B () 1.690 2,072,088
4th March 2016 to 3rd March 2018 ZE-AFZAMAEZE-NF
(Note ii) = A= B (fsEi) 0.920 9,779,300
13,951,899
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2016 has been
adjusted with the effects of 2015 Share Consolidation on
17th March 2015 and 2016 Share Consolidation on 18th
March 2016 and 2015 Rights Issue on 13th August 2015.
Further details are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2016 has been
adjusted with the effects of 2016 Share Consolidation on
18th March 2016. Further details are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2017 has been
adjusted with effect of 2016 Rights Issue on 5th October
2016 and 2016 Share Consolidation on 18th March 2016.
Further details are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

(i)

Share options granted on 30th
September 2015

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme granted
on 30th September 2015 were estimated by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The fair value of the equity-settled share options
granted on 30th September 2015 in the amount
of HK$1,327,000 was recognised as share option
expense during the year ended 30th June 2016. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Share price on the date of grant* HK$0.1610
Exercise price* HK$0.1690
Risk-free interest rate 0.953%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 78.99%
Dividend vyield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to employees HK$0.0640

* Before adjustment of 2016 Share Consolidation and
2016 Rights Issue

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

26 R AE @)
B A 2

26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions NBE LA R R ER (
(Continued)

(i) Share options granted on 4th March (i) R=F—R"E=ZANAKEH

2016

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme granted on
4th March 2016 were estimated by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The fair value of
the equity-settled share options granted on 4th March
2016 in the amount of HK$2,249,000 was recognised
as share option expense during the year ended 30th
June 2016. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Share price on the date of grant* HK$0.0770
Exercise price* HK$0.0920
Risk-free interest rate 1.104%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 68.07%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to directors HK$0.0230

- granted to employees HK$0.0230

*

Before adjustment of 2016 Share Consolidation and
2016 Rights Issue

Expected volatility was determined by using the
annualised standard deviation of historical share price
daily movements of selected comparable companies
in same industry. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

27 R RE - HttfEEREE

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER .
BR(RFER)

RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED

(@) Group (@ A&EE
Other reserves
Hfbd
Available-
Reserves for-sale Share-based Unlisted
Share arisingon Reorganisation ~ investment  Translation ~ compensation warrants Retained
Premium  consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Sub-total eanings Total
Bake e i kL .
RHEE k& EE RERE Eids BHEE IRERGRE it REEA ]
(Note ) (Note ii; (Note vii{ (Note iii; (Note iv; (Note v;
(M) (Hsii (K (Mt (G (Makv
HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSDO0  HKSODD  HKSDO0  HKSODD RSO0 HKBOND RSO0 HKBOW
T T T T T T T Tin T T
Attst July 2015 R-E-1%rA-R 213630 821 47,244 8312 (1) 10,143 81,961 148,463 206943 569,036
Issue of new ordinary shres EEEE ingak
from placing 216928 - - - - - - - - 216923
Transacton coss afirbuteble ~ FEEHTHTERR
toissue of new ordinary BlEZRA0A
shares from placing 8,026) - - - - - - - - 8,026)
Rights ssue of shares HRETRA 14578 - - - - - - - - 114578
Transacton costs afrbutable Eﬁﬁﬁxﬁ?ﬂ Exi
tolssueof odnary shares S ZRGRA
fromrights issue (419) - - - - - - - - 4,195)
Capttal reorganisation - - 13333 - - - 13333 - 13333
Issue of share options - - - - 3576 - 3576 3,76
Lapse of share options - - - - - (3,048 - (3048) 3,048 -
Net change in fai value of
avallable-for-sale financial
assets (Note 16) - - - (12,340 - - - (12.340) - (12,340)
Lepseof unisted warants 3£ - - - - (81.961) (81.961) 81,961 -
Currency ranslation difierence  EXHEEE - - - - 722 - - (722) - (722)
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (140,790) (140,790)
At 30th June 2016 2nd fst
Ly 2016 *
tﬂ—ﬁl 532910 821 60577 4,028 (740) 10,671 - 67,301 151,162 751373
Issue of new ordinery shares~ ERVERTH SR
from placing B 162,870 - - - - - - - - 162,870
Transacton cosisafirbutebe ~ REEHTHEAR
toissue of new ordinary Elb 2B
shares from placing (5,808) - - - - - - - - 5,808)
Rights ssue of shares HREARR 29773 - - - - - - - - 29,773
Transacton costsatirbutable ~ BARE 728K
foissueof ordnary shares ~~ FEfEZ R B
from rights issue ) (6,400 - - - - - - - - (6,400
Lapse of share options ERIEXH - - - - - (7,09) - 7,09) 70% -
Net changes i fair value of WEMQEZ
avalable-for-sale financiel LTEEYEE
assets (Note 16) (His16) - - - (88,965) - - - (88,565 - (88,565)
Redlassification adjustments ﬁ”’@?ﬂ”%‘
foramounts ransferedto: M TEBHEE:
Impaiment loss BEEE - - - 80,643 - - - 80,643 - 80,643
Realised loss Upon B
redemption of avalable- ERNDEREE
for-sale financial assets ) - - - 6,571 - - - 6,57 - 6,571
Curency ransiation ERpEEE
dfferences ‘ - - - - 4 - - 4 - 4
Acapistion of additonal Y- R ARM
interest in a subsiciary EilEa - - - - - - - - (315) (315)
Release of tendationresene. At EFIEAARAR
upon disposal of subsidary ?ﬁ;fﬁﬁ - - - - 29 - - (29 - (29
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - - (114,328) (114,328)
At 30th June 2017 RoT-+E
AAZTH 893,345 821 60577 3621 (728) 3576 - 67,867 43614 1,004,826
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

27 BIDHE -  Ht#ERRE
BR, (RFEE) @

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER
RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED

LOSSES) (Continued)

(b) Company (b) A7
Other reserves
AfbGE
Share-hased Unlisted
Share  Contributed Reorganisation ~ compensation warrants Accumulated
Premium Surplus reserve reserve reserve Sub-total losses Total
Rt ELmdk
RHEE BiEs BARE G ERRE N BiEE L
(Note ) (Note vi) (Note i) (Note iv) (Note v)
(Hiati) (Kivi) (M) (Kiskiv) (Hv)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
ThR Tin ThR Tin Thn Tir ThER Tir
At 1t July 2015 RZT-TEtA-A 213,630 51,862 47,244 10,143 81,961 191,200 (96,057) 308,773
lsueofnewordnay  EREEFHLER
shares from placing 216923 - - - - - - 216,923
Transaction costs RRERMILRRER
aftrbutable oissueof B
new orainary shares
from placing (8,026) - - - - - - (8,026)
Rihtsissueof shares ~ (EREIRH 114578 - - - - - - 114,578
Transaction costs RiRErLahEl
atirbutable tolssue of  RHFA
ordinary shares from
rights isse (4,1%) - - - - - - (4,1%)
Capital eorganisation ~~ FRAEA - - 13,333 - - 13,333 - 13,333
lssue of share options /78 i - - - 3576 - 3576 - 3576
Lapseof shareoptions BB - - - (3,048 - (3048) 3048 -
Lapse of unlisted warrants 3 ETBRERLM - - - - (81.961) (81,961) 81961 -
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (16,560) (16,560)
M30thJne2016and  HZF-RERA
1st July 2016 ZTRRCE-AE
tA-A 532,910 51,852 60,577 10671 - 123,100 (27,608) 628,402
lsueofnewordnay  RRERAHEER
shares from placing 162,870 - - - - - - 162,870
Transaction costs RRESTH LR
airbutable oissueof  ERZRBRA
new ordinary shares
from placing (5,808) - - - - - - (5,808)
Rihtsissueof shares — (RE(IRH 209,773 - - - - - - 209,773
Transaction costs RERETEAREL
atfbutabletoissueof  XBHA
ordinary shares from
rights issue (6,400) - - - - - - (6,400)
Lapseof shareoptions ~~ BIRIEX - - - 7,09) - (7,09) 7005 -
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (16,127) (16,127)
At 30th June 2017 RIE-tE
A=TA 893,34 51,852 60,577 3,576 - 116,005 (36,640) 972,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER
RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
owners of the Company in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the reduction in share capital
of the Company pursuant to 2015 Capital
Reorganisation and 2016 Capital Reorganisation.

(iii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2.7.

(iv) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted
to directors of the Company, employees of
the Group and all other eligible participants
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments set out in Note 2.25(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER
RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves
(Continued)

(v) Unlisted warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds
received from the issue of warrants of the
Company. The reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium account upon
exercise of the warrants.

On 16th September 2013, the Company issued
342,000,000 non-listed warrants at an issue price
of HK$0.0025 per warrant by private placement.
Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe
for one ordinary share at a subscription price
of HK$0.25 per warrant share. The warrants
were expired on 15th September 2015 and the
unlisted warrant reserve was credited to retained
earnings during the year ended 30th June 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

27 R RE HttEERRE
BR, (RFEE) @

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER
RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves (c) IS MH% @)

(Continued)

(vi) EFREER

(vi) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued shares of Universe Films
(Holdings) Limited and the value of net assets
of the underlying subsidiaries acquired on 28th
June 1999. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
shall not be distributed to the shareholders if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

()  the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

At Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its components of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

(vii) Available-for-sale investment

reserve

The available-for-sale investment reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets held at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

28 BORROWINGS 28 B &
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Bank borrowings: RITEE :
Bank overdrafts, secured (Note a) R1TEY - BRI (MEa) - 4,020
- 4,020
Other borrowings: HaEF :
Coupon notes, unsecured (Note b) FPEEE - S (D) 25,900 9,200
Other borrowing, secured (Note c) HfEsk - BE(sEe) 12,000 -
Margin loan payable, secured FENFRER - BiEH
(Note d) (M5Ed) 15,163 -
53,063 9,200
53,063 13,220
The bank borrowings and other borrowings are repayable as RITEE R EMETERIN NEEES
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank borrowings: RITHEE :
Within 1 year or on demand —FRNHRIZEK = 4,020
- 4,020
Other borrowings: HibfE -
Within 1 year or on demand —FRAHIZENR 43,063 9,200
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 10,000 -
53,063 9,200
53,063 13,220
Less: Amounts shown under current & : REBBEE FFIREEE
liabilities (43,063) (13,220)
Amounts shown under non-current  JEREIBEE NTREHE
liabilities 10,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

28 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, all of the Group’s banking facility letters contain
clauses which give the lender the rights at its sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants and met
the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and does not consider it probable that the bank
will exercise its discretion to demand repayment so long as
the Group continues to meet these requirements. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in Note 3.1(c). As at 30th June 2017, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2016:
Nil).

All of the bank overdrafts, including amounts repayable on
demand, are carried at amortised cost.

As at 30th June 2016, the bank overdrafts of the Group
are secured by the trading securities held by the former
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company and corporate
guarantee of the Company.

The coupon notes bear fixed interest rate at 6.25% per
annum (2016: 6.5% per annum) and are not secured.

On 9th March 2017, the Group entered into an agreement
as the borrower for a revolving credit facility up to
HK$12,000,000 with a financial institution as the lender. The
revolving credit facility is secured by the corporate guarantee
executed by the Company and bear a fixed interest rate at
10% per annum.

The margin loans payable is repayable on demand if it is
subjected to margin call from the financial institution and
carried a variable interest rate. As at 30th June 2017, the
margin loans payable are secured by the Group's listed
equity investments recognised in available-for-sale investment
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
fair value of HK$73,461,000 as disclosed in Note 16 and
HK$59,566,000 as disclosed in Note 15 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28 B E @)

The Group has un-utilised borrowing facilities of
HK$63,000,000 as at 30th June 2017 (2016:
HK$53,980,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The fair values of the
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts as at 30th
June 2017 (2016: same).

AEBR _ZE—t&EXA=+HXREAE
B R & A63,000,0008 0 ( ZF— /R F -
53,980,000/ 7T) °

KEI%
SRS
EERE

é‘zﬂﬁﬁfﬁl«x/ﬁnﬁufﬁ o fBE
(= 55 N AR o

29 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 290 phEHERIE
LEASE
Total minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payment
=gk BRERSHNEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-t5 ZTRF “E—tF “E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR T TR T
Amounts payable: BT % :
Within one year —FR 35 35 35 35
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEBRER 19 35 19 35
After 2 years but within 5 years REBERER 9 28 9 28
63 98
Less: Finance charge B MBER = -
Present value of finance lease  JEN AR EMNEE
payable 63 98
Less: Portion classified as B SERE R GRS
current liabilities (35) (35)
Non-current portion FEnshas 28 63

The finance lease obligations are interest free and secured
by photocopiers of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$62,000 as at 30th June 2017 (2016: HK$97,000). No
arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payment for the year ended 30th June 2017 (2016: same).

MEMERELARE - ARAAEEN=-Z
_tﬂz/\)ﬂ*+aﬁﬁﬁ@7§362000§%ﬁ
—Z—XF 1 97,000/ 7T ) By R ENHE
B - NEE_T—tEFARA=THILF
B SRS AME N RET LA < BE
—E— /\E *EH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

30 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 0 EEMEEENRAR
LIABILITIES
(@) The movements in deferred tax liabilities (@) Ei AFE Wﬁ; IR IR B
and assets during the year are as ENEEIEEMT :
follows:
Deferred tax assets EEHRBEEE
Tax losses Total
HIEEE FEEL]
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
At 1st July 2015 RZE—RAF+HA—H 380 380
Charged to profit or loss S i=Etaabitliz (15) (19)
At 30th June 2016 and 1st July 2016 R-ZE—XFEA=1+HX
—E-RFEHA—H 365 365
Credited to profit or loss RiBzmFETA 9,482 9,482
Gross deferred tax assets RZZE—tFNA=1TAKN
at 30th June 2017 RIETIIE & AR ER 9,847 9,847
Deferred tax liabilities FEFHIEEE
Temporary
difference relating
to unrealised fair
value gains of Amortisation
financial assets at of other
Accelerated tax fair value through intangible
depreciation profit or loss assets Total
BEBRR
BRATEAER
SHEEY
FERATE
syl HitEHEE
MERERE BREES 2B ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr THER TR TR
At 1st July 2015 R-B-RELA-A (357) (29,456) - (29,813)
Credited/(charged) to ~ FMEZHEFA/(31%)
profit or loss 9 29,456 (1,881) 27,584
At30th June 2016and  R=F—"E A=TH
1st July 2016 k=E-r"E+A-H (348) - (1,881) (2,229
Credited/(charged) to ~ RMBEFEF A/ (F1)
profit or loss 156 (14,740) - (14,584)
Gross deferred tax RZE—+E A=18
liabilties at 30th NEEHES ERE
June 2017 (192) (14,740) (1,881) (16,813)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(@)

R SRR

OEEHBEEREE®

The movements in deferred tax liabilities (@ MAFENAN  ELEHIBEE
and assets during the year are as BENEEZE Z@JQDT (4)
follows: (Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets MEFRENME BETELEHEE
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated ERBBEERGEEEEARRAK
balance sheet. The following is an analysis of the He TRAMYBREENMEN
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial REERELERIBASRDNT
reporting purposes:
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Net deferred tax assets recognised ~ WirAEEBBRNHER
in the consolidated balance sheet B IE R I8 & 2 5 5 6,447 365
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4R é& B E B ERNER
in the consolidated balance sheet EERITA B &R (13,413) (2,229)
(6,966) (1,864)

Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax
losses carried forward are to be recognised to the

extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of tax losses of HK$113,392,000 (2016:
HK$179,704,000) as at 30th June 2017 due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
the above tax losses of approximately HK$16,979,000
(2016: HK$12,775,000) which can only be carried
forward for a maximum period of five years. Other
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

(b)

BREEARSAMEAREE 2 BTEHR
HEEEZESNARKE BRTE N

AREEASATEBERZER
T SR o

AR R EFR AR - NEE
YA =_ZTE—tFAA=Z+HZ
i T8 K518 113,392,000 T ( = &
— 754 1 179,704,000 7 7T ) #E R
EEBIBERE - LR EEF
#916,979,000 7L (=& — X &F -
12,775,000 T ) {E e MR EZ R
F M o At BB ER A
L °

—T— R BFERemERERAF 291

oo 00 00

e e e 000 0000000000000 00

LRI



oo

e o o

e o o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

31 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

31 EFERE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
Accounts payable arising from BHERERFTRAEE
securities brokerage and margin BEEZEMERN:
financing business:
— cash clients -BexP 61,928 231,264
— margin clients —HFREPF 19,692 19,056
81,620 250,320
Accounts payable arising from other HihEKREE 2 EFIRR
businesses 10,827 4,402
92,447 254,722

The settlement terms of accounts payable to cash clients,
except for margin loans, arising from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business are two days after
trade date. Accounts payable to cash clients are repayable
on demand subsequent to settlement date. Accounts
payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of this business.

Accounts payable amounting to HK$93,014,000 as at 30th
June 2017 (2016: HK$100,147,000) were payable to clients
in respect of the trust and segregated bank balances
received and held for clients in the course of conducting
the regulated activities. However, the Group does not have
a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017 and 2016, the ageing analysis of the
accounts payable arising from other businesses based on

invoice date is as follows:

R SRR

31 B R @

KRB FR=F-—AEXA=TA
A R D R A 2 RN TR
ZERATIMT

2017 2016

—E—+F —EFE—RF

HK$°000 HIK$’000

FHET FET

1 to 90 days 1£290H 513 1,416
91 days to 180 days 91HZE=180H 34 130
Over 180 days 180B M 10,280 2,856
10,827 4,402

All of the accounts payable arising from other business are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one

year or are repayable on demand.

32 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

AR EMEREENRMNRTEGERN —
FAENRERSRALBIZERER -

32 Hib B RIAR B i

CHARGES

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Amounts due to joint operators e & &N RBARIE 72,133 43,942
Accruals for employee benefits EEFImMIEFTE A 25,787 1,466

Other accruals and other payables HAbfErT 8 A R bR
TRIH 27,764 18,713
Temporary receipts (Note (i)) IR R (M 5E()) 108,876 -
234,560 64,121

Note (i): The amount of approximately HK$108,806,000
represented the partial consideration received from the
independent third party purchaser in relation to the Film
Library Disposal Agreement as disclosed in Note 10.

MIEE(): 4 %8/5%7108,806,0008 TTHIFIBIEE
WBYE=FEFEEEXELERH
HEER B (AT 10FTIRER) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

33 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the disposal of AP
Group during the year ended 30th June 2017 as detailed
in Note (i) below. Contingent consideration payable is
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The movement of the fair value of contingent consideration
payable is as follows:

33 BNHARARE

ENIAREZ A FEEERBEE_T
—tFERA=ZTHILLFELHEEHERY
REZFABRBE 28 MER (R T XHEE
(&) - BNRARBRBEPHRER
FIEHE - BERARBEAFEZ LB
T~

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At fair value: BAFEE

At beginning of the year EEFT) - -

Arising from disposal of AP Group HEEHEBRFES
(Note 47) (FF5E47) 10,930 -
Fair value change N EEE) 8,638 -
At end of the year RER 19,568 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE (Continued)

Note:

M

Adjustment to the consideration

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered in
relation to the disposal of AP Group, in the event that the
audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for the
period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017 is less
than HK$16,000,000, Fragrant River Entertainment Culture
(Holdings) Limited (“FRECH”), a subsidiary of the Group shall,
and the Company as the guarantor shall procure FRECH to,
pay to the purchaser the adjustment amount (the “Adjustment
Amount”) in accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and
“NP” means the net profit for the period from 1st January

2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable as at

30th

June 2017 are based on the valuation performed

by Royson Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Details
of fair value measurement are set out in Note 3.3.

R SRR

33 ENHARE @

X

M

REZHE

BERLEEHERTLZESHE -
WEHERE -_ZT—"F—A—HEE
T+ E+ A=+ -RAIHEZR
FZBR & AR E 5 F 272 16,000,000 4
T BIAREENE A R BT IREE S b (12
B)ARAT ([ FTIRE (L ]) ERA
NEEBERABIRE R TIRE L H
BAXNBETRARNFEZHESE
(T -

A = 20,400,000/ 7T~ (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Hep:

[AJIRABTAHEZ HRSEZHE &
INPJEE T —R"F-A—BRE_ZT
—tE+Z A=+ R LB ENF

B WENFEASRE RSN FEE
WGBSR -

ENRAREBR=_T—+tFA=+HZ
DR AR B R ERE 2 B H R
{ERME R A A AR ARETHHER
& o NPEREFBHNHESS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

34 LOSS BEFORE TAX 34 BRELBIE 1

BRBLRTE B TSGR,/ (GTA) T 3R RE

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

the following: 1§
Continuing operations: BELEET .
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
(a) Staff costs: () BIAA :
Salaries, allowances, and other benefits e R NEMER
(including directors’ emoluments (BEEEME (M
(Note 36)) 36)) 67,468 36,266
Contributions to defined contribution TE R RGRIRET I 3R
retirement plans 1,500 1,249
Equity-settled share-based payment AR B IR AEE
expenses A E {53 - 3,576
68,968 41,091
(b)Other items: (b)EfIER :
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN &
— audit services — 2B R 4,081 1,601
— other services — H b Bk 7% 350 650
4,431 2,251
Amortisation By
— film rights (Note 10) — BN (F7E10) 23,343 8,891
— other intangible assets (Note 8) —HMEREE
(FftE8) 148 135
Depreciation for property, plant and Vs - B REREITE
equipment (Note 6) (Pf5E6) 2,951 3,104
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses SNEE (WzR), B RIFEE (756) 644
Operating lease charges: KEHERS -
— minimum lease payments —ERERK 6,197 10,070
— contingent rent — A 3,277 4,049
Cost of inventories (Note 19) FERAR(FIEE19) 32,500 38,000
Available-for-sale financial assets: AfEESMEE -
reclassified from equity RiEmEN oA
— on impairment — RIBE R 89,643 -
— on redemption — i Bl 6,571 -
Write-off of film related deposit BRG] & 2 M = 417
Gross rental income from investment REWMHEBS WA BT
properties less direct outgoings of BB 2 #132186,000
HK$186,000 (2016: HK$181,000) BT(ZE—REF
181,000/ 7T) 872 845
#  The contingent rent of HK$3,277,000 (2016: HK$4,049,000) # AR ©3,277,0008 T (ZF — /5 F ¢

refers to the operating lease rentals based on pre-determined
percentages to realised sales less minimum lease payment of
the respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued)

R SRR

34 BRELATE B (|

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
(c)Finance costs (c) ARG R AR
Bank overdrafts interest RITEZFE 27 269
Interest on borrowings BEEFE 6,061 1,593
Other interest expenses HabF B X 3 401
Total interest expense on financial WIEEBBmE AT E
liabilities not at fair value through ARz eRBE2F
profit or loss BRI 6,091 2,263

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 35 {EERKEF

E R TR IRGT 2

REBBRBEESRFIERAESFEEH A
EEBRERFBEOIRE TXEMNEESRL—
HgH M AEeFTEI([RESETE]) - 8
HErE A~ HRBUXTAEENTER
HFGRIRETE - BIFRESHE - EEX R
EE % BEKREBHBAKRAKNS%RET
[#5% - & &5 A MU A %30,0007
o T BIEFANREERE o

N
/

ol e

AEERTENMBAREES2EGSD
BIBA R WBERE RGBS - &
FH B R RIBIRF &R TE B D AR
RAEHIEH B HFUAS S RBHI - AR Z
RIENF BN B I RELRENHR

ES
Moo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRMEE

36 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 36 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section RIBEEBCR BHER ) E383(1) & R A F]
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 (FEEEFRER)RANE —BHIFE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits MESMSLT

of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30th June 2017 BE-Z—tHFXA=1HLEE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Name of Directors Fees in kind contributions ~ Sub-Total ~ payments Total
E kA= 4:1 BRI URH A
Esps e REYNE  GHEMR et ERZAR #zm

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FER TER TER FER FER FER

Chairman and TE#

executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, MR A

Daneil - 14,335 18 14,353 - 14,353
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing EEERAE

(Note v) (Fi5Ev) = 130 = 130 - 130
Mr. Lam Kit Sun Y Sipits - 1,747 18 1,765 = 1,765
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu Hg=mrt

(Note (i) (PHZEG) - 1,663 8 1,671 - 1,671
Non-executive director ~ FEHi/7E %
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong BB L4

Stephen (Note (ii) (Bt 2k (i) 110 - - 110 - 110
Independent non- BT

executive directors EE
Mr. Lam Chi Keung mEHEE 130 - = 130 - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon ~ ZkBE4E 130 = = 130 - 130
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee YEEzt

(Note (ii)) (PraE (i) 65 - - 65 - 65
Mr. Lam Wing Tal MokRTE

(Note (iv)) (PI5E(v) 65 - - 65 - 65

500 17,875 44 18,419 - 18,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

36 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 36 EEME @
(Continued)
For the year ended 30th June 2016 BEZTRFAA=THLFE
Salary,
allowances,  Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Name of Directors Fees inkind  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
Fe o ORH BRI MR A
EENA we REWNG  EIRX PNt BERZAR R

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THET TET TATL TATL TAL THAT

Chairman and FEEHTEE
executive director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, MR
Daneil - 3,185 18 3,203 - 3,203

Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Hung Cho Sing MRS - 130 - 130 341 471
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu HEhzt

(Note (i) (P5EG) i 2,675 11 2,686 341 3,027
Mr. Lam Kit Sun S - 1,212 18 1,230 341 1,571
Mr. Yeung Kim Piu SRR LA

(Note (vi)) (PEE i) - 363 8 371 - 371

Non-executive director ~ F#i77Z%
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong  BREBY L4

Stephen 210 - - 210 341 551
Independent non- BUHATEE
executive directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tal MokREAE 130 - - 130 - 130
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WEBEE 130 - - 130 - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon ~ BkE 54 130 - - 130 - 130
600 7,565 55 8,220 1,364 9,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

36 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

)

(iv)

W)

(vi)

Ms. Cheng Hei Yu was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 8th December 2015 and resigned on
7th October 2016. Ms. Cheng Hei Yu is an employee of the
Group after her resignation as an executive director of the
Company on 7th October 2016. Total remuneration paid to
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu for the year ended 30th June 2017 was
approximately HK$3,492,000 of which HK$1,671,000 shown
in the above table represented the remunerations paid to
her before the resignation as an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen retired as a non-executive
director of the Company on 30th November 2016.

Ms. Cheng Lo Yee is appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 30th November 2016.

Mr. Lam Wing Tai retired as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 30th November 2016.

Mr. Hung Cho Sing resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 2nd June 2017.

Mr. Yeung Kim Piu retired as an executive director of the
Company on 30th November 2015.

During the year, no director of the Company has waived
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.
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(iv)
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ZAV/N

HERZTR _E—RAF+_FN\RAE
ZABARBNATEZER =T —X
F+ALtHBET HEHLIR_-Z
—ANETAEtBBRIARRNNITES
BEAEBNESRS - BE-_T—+HFX
A=Z+HIFEEMEEREZ L85
HERY) 53,492,000/ 7T © H E RN
#91,671,000/% 7T B BHEA R AIHBTT
EERCHETEH -

REBAEER —E—REFE+—A=1H
BREARBERITESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

37 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 37 BmEFAL
EMOLUMENTS
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest RENAEBRERRFTATRE=S
in the Group for the year included three Directors (2016: ZENFZR)EF WEZMEH
three) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis BER EXHIEI6 252 FHTAHKER -
presented in Note 36 above. The emoluments payable to HBME (2T —F  MB)ALTRER
the remaining two (2016: two) individuals during the year Z NS

are as follows:

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFHxT
Salaries and other emoluments e kEMe 17,068 3,585
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET IR 27 36
17,095 3,621
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HEEHBE NYEER -
The emoluments of the two (2016: two) individuals with the MAH(ZE—RNF : MB)EeHdATZH
highest emoluments are within the following bands: BE T EEA -
2017 2016
—®-tF T AR
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A A&
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00078 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 72
3,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0018LE
3,500,000 7C 1 -
HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 13,500,001/8 702
14,000,000/8 7T 1 -
2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M
38 OTHER INCOME 38 Hthig A
Continuing operations: BESEETR .
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Sponsorship income HEHIA 2,093 1,884
Rental income EEAON 125 -
Screening income Aug i A 153 172
Dividend income from available-for-sale AfHESRMEEIRE
financial assets WA - 20,473
Dividend income from financial assets at ~ BBEZEZAFEARZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEZREMA 211 297
Others HAtb 1,943 46
4,525 22,872
39 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET 39 Hih(FH) Wi — FHE
Continuing operations: HEREHER .
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Realised loss upon redemption of B HEESREER
available-for-sale financial assets B #IEEE (6,571) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - WS REREZ
equipment B (621) (95)
Waiver of accounts payable JERTER KB 244 622
Waiver of other payable Ao H A FE T FRIE 80 -
Reversal of bad debt EREE 24 -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) &N e (EB18)F 8 762 (644)
Others EAh, 34 268
(6,048) 151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

40 INTEREST INCOME 40 FIB A
Continuing operations: BESEETR .
2017 2016
—=E—+tF S ANCS
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Bank interest income RITH BUA 63 74
Interest income from a joint venture BERTFEERRZ
FMEBA 231 224
Finance income in consolidated statement A4 & 2EWEEER A2
of comprehensive income EURCT N 294 298
Loan interest income (included in total ERFIEWA (GTALRE
revenue in consolidated statement of FHKGERAZ BRI
comprehensive income) =) 5,859 8,450
Total interest income B A 425 6,153 8,748
41 TAXATION 41 Bi1E
(@) Income tax in the consolidated (@) sreé 2 HEWERAZTE
statement of comprehensive income i
Continuing operations: FEREER
2017 2016
—=E—+tF S ANCS
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Current tax BNERTR IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax FBNEMN
Charge for the year rEEZH 1,381 1,390
Under provision in prior year FFEERETR 336 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EFTSEL 100 -
Deferred tax (Note 30) EIERLIE (P FE30)
Origination and reversal of Ty ERENEE R
temporary differences e 5,102 (27,569)
Total et 6,919 (26,179)
The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated EBNEHREBEEDIEERNGEE
at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable B SE R H16.5% ( —F — N 4F -
profits for the year. 16.5%)5 & °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

41 TAXATION (Continued)

(@) Income tax in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income
(Continued)

Continuing operations: (Continued)

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
is calculated at 10% of the capital gains regarding
transfer in an indirect equity of a PRC subsidiary
following the disposal of AP Group as disclosed in
Note 47 in accordance with the relevant tax rules and
regulations of the PRC. Except for the EIT arising from
the capital gains regarding the disposal of AP Group,
no other provision for EIT has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits under EIT for the year ended 30th
June 2017 (2016: Nil).

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30th June 2017 and
2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 TAXATION (Continued)

41 BEIE (@)

R SRR

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses (b ) ﬁR 18 Eﬂ SE 1LE AR ET
and accounting profit at the applicable 25 /mﬂszﬁﬁ
tax rates:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Loss before income tax (from BrETISTRIE 1B (PR B 4%
continuing operation) BB ETS) (111,677) (166,453)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates & B BBERAH T
applicable to profits or losses in the EEIRE AR E
respective countries KT ERMHIE (18,904) (29,248)
Under provision in respect of prior BEFEREBDNE
years 336 -
Income not subject to tax EEGR WA (1,400) (4,964)
Expenses not deductible for tax TT?D%RZ%‘?H@
purpose 38,921 8,348
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  {# 3 2 Al ARMER 2 Fi18
tax losses Jgi] (6,226) (4,843)
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 BIEEE 3,718 13,429
Tax effect of previously unrecognised  B2IREFRERR ST BT R FER
tax losses now recognised KRS E BT
R E (9,616) -
Others HAmh 90 (8,901)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrSRimRx(E%) 6,919 (26,179)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 13th June 2016, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, FRECH, and Lucky Famous Limited, an
independent purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which FRECH agreed to dispose
to Lucky Famous Limited of its 51% equity interest in
AP Group Investment Holdings Limited. Pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement, the initial consideration of
HK$20,400,000 is subject to downward adjustment. In
the event that the audited consolidated profit after tax of
AP Group for the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st
December 2017 is less than HK$16,000,000, FRECH shall,
and the Company as the guarantor shall procure FRECH
to, pay to Lucky Famous Limited the adjustment amount in
accordance with the formula set out in Note 33.

The disposal of AP Group was completed on 1st July 2016.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the operations in
AP Group as at 30th June 2016 have been classified as a
disposal group held for sale and are presented separately
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 42 CRIEREXER R I EAF
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS EHEZHEAR 3
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The loss for the period from 14th December 2015 (date of B-E—RFT-ATHBERERR)ZE
acquisition) to 30th June 2016 and the year ended 30th ZE-RFERAA=THIEHEAEEE-Z
June 2017 from the discontinued operation is analysed as —tFRNAZTHILEFE REEKRLEL
follows: EEBBEINOT
AP Group
EHEE
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Revenue Weas - 10,429
Cost of revenue & D®N - (3,136)
- 7,293
Administrative expenses THRER = (8,477)
Other income HAb A = 1
Other losses HibEs1a = ©)
Finance income BRgA - 2
Loss before tax for the period HARBRFL AT &S 18 - (1,180)
Income tax expenses FrigBif X = (422)
Loss after tax for the period HINRR B B 18 = (1,602)

Gain on disposal of operation (including EBHEWRR(BRERE
HK$29,000 reclassification of translation & %75 & M 7EA%

reserve from equity to profit or loss on REBRHEH DL

disposal of the operation (Note 47)) 29,000/ 7T ) (MI5E47) 4,075 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued R B 24 I & & 25K

operation wmA(E1E) 4,075 (1,602)
Attributable to: AR TT el -

Owners of the Company PiN/NEIETZ SN 4,075 817)

Non-controlling interests VN = (785)

4,075 (1,602)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 12 CRIEREEBR P EAF
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS EHEZHEA R (a3
HELD FOR SALE (continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal RZE—RERZT—tFA=1+H"
group held for sale classified as held for sales as at 30th DEAFELECHEAINETEEER
June 2016 and 2017 are as follows: BEENT

AP Group
EHEE
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment N Y = 2,134
Accounts receivables JE W AR 3K - 103
Amounts due from directors JEMEE IR - 27
Deposits paid, prepayments and other aNETSE - ENFUERAE
receivables ftb FE LU R IE - 2,758
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY - 1,359
Assets associated with disposal group SHERBIELE ZHEH
classified as held for sale Rz HBREEE - 6,381
Liabilities =R+ -
Other payables and accrued charges Hh S sRE R RS - 1,345
Deposits received BET® - 7,566
Taxation payable FEBTIIE = 687
Liabilities associated with disposal group D iEAFEHE 2 HEH
classified as held for sale Rz BB aE - 9,598
Net liabilities associated with disposal PEAFBIELEZLEHE
group classified as held for sale Rz REEEFE - (3,217)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by AP Group for the period
from 15th December 2015 (date of acquisition) to 30th
June 2016 and the year ended 30th June 2017 are as

R SRR

42 BRIEREERR D EAF
EHE 2 HEAR @)

—hFt= H%ﬁﬁ(ﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)i
/\i/\ﬁ +EIL}:HHFI?&@
—tFRA= —i-EJtil*x?ﬁ’iIFE
ZREMEFREMAT

follows:
AP Group
EHEE
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net cash outflow from operating activities 4 &EE) 2 IR & n HF 5 - (264)
Net cash outflow WEm b FE = (264)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

share from the discontinued operation are based on:

KREERIEEEEB 2 BREANEER
M/ (BE)TERTIIREAE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
(As previously
stated)
(W% RI25))
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of HE_Z—+tF A=+
the Company from the discontinued HIEFE WEABZE
operation for the year ended 30th June ZE-RFRA=+H
2017/the period from the acquisition IFERRSAN A R B A FE
date to 30th June 2016 (HK$’000) EREERIEREER
2w/ (EE)
(F%7T) 4,075 817)
Weighted average number of ordinary STEERERAF /JEH‘E
shares in issue used in the basic FrEf 2 BT E @R
earnings/loss per share calculation NI B (I E43(a))
(Note 43 (a)) 543,123,874 143,724,624
Earning/(loss) per share: BRAN A -
- Basic, from the discontinued — B ke gie
operation (HK$) AR (BT 0.007 (0.006)
— Diluted, from the discontinued —8E - kaBERILE
operation (HK$) TG (BT 0.007 (0.0006)

o o
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42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

RERIBERBRIERE

EHE 2 HEAR @)

2016
—E-RF
(Restated)
(5&E51))
Loss attributable to owners of the Company R HEIE —F—R"F /XA =+ B M
from the discontinued operation for the RAREB AEERE KL LA
period from the acquisition date to 30th o EE(TET)
June 2016 (HK$’000) (817)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 21T & 3@ A% 2 N5 E
in issue 163,086,490
Basic loss per ordinary share from the BRIEREEBRSREBRERESE
discontinued operation (HK$) (%) (0.005)
For the years ended 30th June 2016 and 2017, the HE_T—R"FR-FT—+tFA="+H

weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings/loss per ordinary share from the
discontinued operation has been adjusted with the effect
of bonus element of the rights issue in October 2016 on
the basis of two rights share for every one existing ordinary
share.

The computation of diluted earnings per ordinary share
from the discontinued operation for the year ended 30th
June 2017 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options during the year ended 30th June
2017 since their exercise prices are higher than the average
market prices of the shares during the year. Accordingly,
diluted earnings per ordinary share from the discontinued
operation is the same as basic earnings per ordinary share
from discontinued operation for the year.

Diluted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operation
for the year ended 30th June 2016 was the same as
the basic loss per ordinary share from the discontinued
operation because the exercises of the Company’s share
options, warrants and convertible bonds outstanding during
the year would have an anti-dilutive effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

43 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic loss per ordinary share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

43 FREE
(@) FEAK

FREBREXREBERIRA DA
BEAREEBERUNFABEETER
Pz g FIIHEE -

2017 2016
(As
previously
stated)
Y A
(F5ERI251)
Loss attributable to owners of the RREHB AEREER
Company (HK$'000) (F&m)
— from continuing operations —REFELEER (118,403) (139,973)
— from discontinued operation —RADKRIHEE
=% 4,075 817)
— from continuing and discontinued —REFEREKIE
operation KBTS (114,328) (140,790)
Weighted average number of ordinary & 217 & 3@A% 2 At
shares in issue FI98 543,123,874 143,724,624
Basic loss per ordinary share (HK$) T RREAREE
(BL)
— from continuing and discontinued —REFEREKIE
operations KBTS (0.211) (0.980)
— from continuing operations —REFELEER (0.218) (0.974)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

43 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a) Basic (Continued)

43 BREE @)

(@) EA#)

2016
—E-RF
(Restated)
(F&=35)
Loss attributable to owners of the RAREE AELEE(THET)
Company (HK$’000)
— from continuing and discontinued —REFER DRI EET
operations (140,790)
— from continuing operations —REFELEES (139,973)
Weighted average number of ordinary BB ITERM 2 I8
shares in issue 163,086,490
Basic loss per ordinary share (HK$) SR TR EAEE (BT
— from continuing and discontinued —REFENR DRI EET
operations (0.863)
— from continuing operations —REBERLEER (0.858)

For the years ended 30th June 2017 and 2016, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic loss per ordinary share has been

HE_Z—tFR_F—XEXA
ZTHLFE  AUTEEREE
IEREGEZ ZBRINEFTE -

adjusted with the effect of bonus element of the rights BT —R"F+ALKSHE1RR

issue in October 2016 on the basis of two rights share

for every one existing ordinary share.

BB OB R A 1 LA T
M 2 A A R BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted

The computation of diluted loss per ordinary share for
the year ended 30th June 2017 does not assume the
exercises of the Company’s outstanding share options
during the year ended 30th June 2017 since their
exercise prices are higher than the average market
prices of the shares during the year. Accordingly,
diluted loss per ordinary share is the same as basic
loss per ordinary share for the year.

Diluted loss per ordinary share for the year ended
30th June 2016 was the same as the basic loss
per ordinary share because the exercises of the
Company’s share options, warrants and convertible
bonds outstanding during the year would have an anti-
dilutive effect.

R SRR

43 BREE @)
(i

BE_T—+tFRA=+tHILF
B AEESREBEREEERLR
SRANBHE_T—EF XA
ZTHEUEFEZHRITEBREE
78 REAERFZTEERNF
AR FEITE - Bt - FRTK
TR ERERSR T BREN
EEER -

BE_Z-R"FAA=THLEE
BREBRBEHEATREAK
EXEEER  RARFARITEA
RBHARTTEBRE - RBEE
ABRREFEEELREERE

44 Hﬁ/%\

EFEeTEBREHE_T—LFH
ZtHLEFEZREBRE(ZF—RF:
) o

44 DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2017 (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRMEE

45 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING 45 EEFZEFTACER S
ACTIVITIES
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before tax for the year FRZBRBIRT
(E518),/ &= F
From continuing operations REFELCEER (111,677) (166,453)
From discontinued operation (Note 42) REERIEEEER
(Ft3F42) 4,075 (1,180)
Adjustments for: FTHISEIEL A
— Dividend income from available-for-sale ~ — A/ HESREE 2
financial assets (Note 38) A B A (B EE38) - (20,473)
— Depreciation of property, plant and —nE - B R
equipment (Note 6) Z e (MizEe) 2,951 3,976
— Amortisation of film rights (Note 10) — BRI 2 SR
(M#3E10) 23,343 8,891
— Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ —HE b EF A ~ #i5
(Note 8) (Ffi5E8) 148 135
— Fair value change on contingent — RS AREBZ AT
consideration receivable (Note 22) EZE(fiE22) (4,807) (4,080)
— Fair value change on contingent —ERSAREZRAF
consideration payable (Note 33) EZE)(FT:E33) 8,638 (60)
— Impairment losses of interests in an —R—fEEERRZ
associate (Note 12) R EREE
(BFzE12) 3,227 18,421
— Impairment losses of film rights and —BMREREER 2
films in progress (Note 10) B RERE
(M$3E10) - 4,226
— Impairment losses of goodwill (Note 9)  — R R {E F518 (Hi559) 22,980 29,923
— Impairment loss of deposits paid, —BfFI& - BB
prepayments and other receivable N B e SR IE
BIEER 1,532 -
— Impairment loss of available-for-sale — A ESREER
financial assets (Note 16) EEE(EE16) 89,643 -
— Impairment loss on accounts — FEWEBRFOR B 518
receivable (Note 20) (FFzE20) 10,470 -
— Reversal of bad debts —ZRE L (24) -
— Write-down of inventories (Note 19) —FE M (HEE19) 1,501 1,709
— Write-off of film related deposit — BB 2 M - 417
— Reversal of write-down of inventories — B BT &
(Note 19) (F45E19) (508) (317)
— Share based payment (Note 26) — AR D BERR
(Mi3E26) - 3,576
— Net loss on disposal of property, plant —EYE - WS RE
and equipment (Note 39) B2 BEFE
(M45£39) 621 95
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

45 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING

ACTIVITIES (Continued)

45 EEFTEBMAZER @

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FHET
— Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary — — 7 B E& L B8 — RE1Fft B
(Note 46(a)) NEZ Was
(KizE46(a)) - (1,571)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HERBAR W
(Note 47) (FF5E47) (4,075) -
— Finance income (Note 40) — B R (F5E40) (294) (298)
— Finance costs (Note 34(c)) — BARS RN (BY7E34(0)) 6,091 2,263
— Realised loss upon redemption of —EERAIHEESHE
available-for-sale financial assets ERNDEIREE
(Note 39) (Ff¥5E39) 6,571 -
— Waiver of accounts payables (Note 39) — B R ER R (FMTEE39) (244) (622)
— Waiver of other payable and accrued — e HMENFIER
charges (Note 39) FEETE A (M17E39) (80) -
— Share of losses/(profits) of associates — B E AR
B8,/ CaRl) 216 (3,899)
— Share of losses of a joint venture —Eh—EaERREE
(Note 13(a)) (B5E13(0) 231 224
— Loss on deregistration of a joint venture —BUEBR—HEEAF
(Note 13(a) Z E1E(MEE13(a)) 24 -
— Fair value change and loss on —BEABRES 2
redemption of convertible bonds N EEEREE - 1,813
Changes in working capital: LEEe®Y
— Inventories -FE 3,245 11,240
— Accounts receivable — YRR (119,566) 26,684
— Amount due from a joint venture —ER—EEERARFIE - 10
— Amount due from an associate — EY— B & A RIFUE (964) -
— Loans receivable — R ER (32,737) (6,163)
- Loan to an associate — BT —EBEARZ
B3 (2,940) (5,000)
- Deposits paid, prepayments and other —B2F7] & BEHER
receivables Hh fEURIR (33,768) 6,991
- Accounts payable —ERTERR (162,031) (107,118)
— Amount due to an associate — RN —EsE ARz
B (1,941) 1,941
— Other payables and accrued charges — HAb B 5RIB M BT
S 170,395 (8,363)
- Deposits received -BETE (21,168) (5,347)
- Financial assets at fair value through —FEBEREATFEAR
profit or loss JERMEE 14,815 67,665
- Bank balances and cash —IRITEHR LIRS
— trust accounts —{=7RF 23,653 51,724
Cash used in operations LEMACES (102,454) (89,020)
Tax paid [ G (3,004) (11,884)
Net cash used in operating activities EEEABAA TR (105,458) (100,904)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M
45 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING 45 EEEHAZRERE @
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
a. Disposal of property, plant and a HEME WERRE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) BRmEE(KEEs) 899 95
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - HEZRERE L
plant and equipment (Note 39) & 18558 (FI7E39) (621) (95)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  MBERBREZ
plant and equipment FT{S3UE 278 -
b.Obligations under finance leases b. B & & RiE
At the end of the year FR 63 98
Less: At the beginning of the year B EA (98) (132)
Capital element of finance lease BEHENRZER
payments o (35) (34)
46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 46 WHEMI B 2 A
For the year ended 30th June 2016 HE_T—RFA=THL
FE
(a) Step acquisition from associate to () KBMEQTEMBEATND

subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered into between Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“FRECH”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the other
shareholder of Winston (the “Other Shareholder”) on
7th May 2015, the remaining 79.99% equity interest
of Winston, a then associate of the Group, was
acquired by the Group from the Other Shareholder
(the “Step Acquisition”). Winston and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in trading, wholesaling and
retailing of watches and jewellery products. The total
consideration would be settled by issuing convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$64,000,000. The Step Acquisition was completed
on 31st July 2015. The Group considers that the step
acquisition provides a good opportunity to diversify
the Group’s business and broaden the income source
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(a) Step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited
(Continued)

The following summarises the acquisition date fair
value of the total consideration transferred:

R SRR

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE-_ZT—R"FA=+tHIt

FE @

() HBEARNIMBATNS
P& EX UL B8 — Winston Asia
Limited (&)

THRER RIS DR SR B (E
BYATAE -

HK$’'000
FHET
Fair value of convertible bonds issued BERITAMKRES 2 AFE 62,994

The Group has engaged Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers,
to assess the fair value of the convertible bonds at
initial recognition. The fair value of convertible bonds
is determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. The convertible bonds were fully redeemed on
28th June 2016.

The following summarises the total consideration
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as the amount of intangible assets
and goodwill arising from the acquisition recognised at
31st July 2015 (the date of acquisition):

AEBECDEREBIEXMGEMTH
B AR ARG AR ESFR
N HERR Z X FE - ATRERES
ZRFETGER_EAHEEER
TETTEE - TRBRESFCSR-F
—ANERAZT\BEEED -

THRELAR —_F—AFEtA=1—
BB A ERNARE - FTik
BEEMMAZEABNESE UK
AEBELNETYEERHESH

HK$’000
FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - e REE 1,169
Other intangible assets — brand name Hibh\m & E — mhg & (MEEs)
(Note 8) 1,108
2,277
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T7E 21,095
Accounts receivable FEURBR IR 5,243
Deposits paid, prepayments and other BRI € « TR R R E A EUGRIE
receivables 3,085
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRSEEY 1,471
30,894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(a) Step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE-_ZT—R"FA=+tHIt

FE @

(a) HBEARNIMBEATNS
P& EX UL B8 — Winston Asia

(Continued) Limited (&)
HK$'000
FET
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accrued charges E AP B R ERT S (4,427)
Taxation payables FEREIR (2,975)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (2,000)
(9,402)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value IR AFEE Z Al iR F B EHE 23,769
Fair value of the equity interest held EESREBKER AT ERE, A TE
immediately before the Step Acquisition (6,796)
Goodwill arising on Step Acquisition DRI EE 2 BB (HE9)
(Note 9) 46,021
Total consideration BRE 62,994

The fair values and gross contractual amount of
accounts receivable and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$5,243,000
and HK$1,061,000 respectively. No accounts
receivable and other receivables were expected to be
uncollectible.

IR LA B 73R K L At R WAL R TR X K B
HORFEMEEHNTED NG
5,243,000 7T % 1,061,000 7T °
JEA LA A @ 2 U AR R K B
i FEYURIR

HK$’000
T

Net cash inflow on Step Acquisition: SEBRVBEEZRSRASTE
Net cash acquired from Step Acquisition DB ERES RS TR 1,471
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(a) Step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited
(Continued)

The transaction costs of approximately HK$1,313,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 30th June 2016.

The Group recognised a gain on step acquisition
of HK$1,571,000 as a result of remeasurement at
fair value of its 20.01% equity interest in Winston
held before the Step Acquisition. The gain on
step acquisition of a subsidiary is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 30th June 2016.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

Winston contributed approximately HK$54,333,000
to the Group’s total revenue and approximately
HK$614,000 profit to the Group’s loss before tax, for
the period between the date of completion of the step
acquisition and 30th June 2016.

R SRR

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE2-ZE—R"FAA=1+H1t
FE )
(@ RBEATIKBATND

B ER WX B8 — Winston Asia
Limited (&)

#71,313,000% 70 2 X S LA B 1
FTEgERERNR  EEEE=T
—RNENAZTHLEEEZHEAR
EWmRPIETTIRER] -

REBERIPBRKEBAAFEAR
Winston #920.01% & #E1E A FEE
FErE o MR -ESIRBBRKE 2K
7 /431,571,000 7T © %AD& UL
B-RHNEBAR WS AREZ
E—ARERNAZTRHLEFENGS
2EERE -

T B 2 7 B HE £ B B B DAL
5%t -

ROoBBEKRETKARBE_T—X
FRXAZTHIEEME » Winston¥f &
SEB W 2 B RA 754,333,000
B REAEERBAIEEER
S F49614,00078 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(@)

(a) Step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited
(Continued)

If the acquisition of Winston had been completed on
1st July 2015, the Group’s total revenue and loss
after tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$156,687,000 and approximately HK$136,653,000
respectively. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of the total revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1st July 2015, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

(b) Acquisition of CJFS (b)

On 21st August 2015, Rising Fame International
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with two independent
third party vendors to acquire the entire interest of
CJFS at a cash consideration of HK$73,000,000.
CJFS is a licensed corporation under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and authorised to engage in
the following regulated activities: (i) Type 1: Dealing in
securities; and (i) Type 4: Advising on securities. The
principal activities of CJFS are provision of securities
brokerage services and margin financing to clients.
The management considers that such acquisition
will enable the Group to diversify its business into
the financial services industry and broaden revenue
sources of the Group. The acquisition was completed
on 17th November 2015.
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HE2-ZE—R"FAA=1+H1t
FE )

RBEQTEMBLAEN D
B ER U B8 — Winston Asia
Limited (&)

fis & B Winston iR —ZE — HF + A
—HETK AEERAFEMNE
WaHARBRBREEBEEBEIALD
156,687,000 % 7T [ 49 136,653,000
BT o NMEZERHEERBRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of CJFS (Continued)

The following summarises the total consideration
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as the amount of intangible assets
and goodwill arising from the acquisition recognised at

HE_ZT—&F

FZ (&)

46 WHEMI B~ B (&

)

\A=1HIk

(b) BB EIRE )

TREER —F—
B (KA S ERNARE - FTik
BEENMPIAERENESHE UK
BREESHRLRARBEENRE

hFE+—A+t

17th November 2015 (the date of acquisition): T
HK$’000
&L
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE T Y 1,554
Other intangible assets — trading rights HivmpEE — X SR (KI7Es)
(Note 8) 11,400
12,954
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 231,776
Deposits paid, prepayments and other BENETE - EEIE R HE A E W EIE
receivables 982
Cash and cash equivalents He MReEEY 8,809
Bank balances — trust accounts RITEERR —(EFCERP 168,391
409,958
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable FERTER (357,631)
Other payables and accrued charges E e 5B MR (8,536)
Taxation payables FERTFRIA (1,809)
Borrowings BE (10,000)
(377,976)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAVEFE 2 HRFEERE 44,936
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 9) Wi EE A 2 B (Y 5E9) 28,064
Total consideration BRE 73,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of CJFS (Continued)

The fair values and gross contractual amount of
accounts receivable and other receivables as at the
date of acquisition amounted to HK$231,776,000 and
Nil respectively. No accounts receivable and other
receivables were expected to be uncollectible.

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE-_ZT—"FEA=1THIt

FIE ()

(b) WEEHEIRE @)
JFE L BR R K H b fiE UG FRIA A U BB B
HOAFTEREAENSED A
231,776,000/ T N Z - BT EA
A [ 7 FEUR BR 3k K H Ath R U R0 -

Net cash outflow on acquisition of WETHZEEELEZHS ML =5 : HK$’000
CJFS: T
Cash consideration paid BRNRESNRE (73,000)
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary HHB AW ERNIR S FRE 8,809

(64,191)

The transaction costs of HK$570,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred
and included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of CJFS
is attributable to the future growth and profitability
in relation to the provision of securities brokerage
services and margin financing to clients. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

CJFS contributed HK$16,072,000 to the Group’s total
revenue and approximately HK$2,509,000 profit to the
Group’s loss after tax, for the period between the date
of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

322 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

© 0000000000000 000000000000000000 00

e e e 00000

.

° o o

670,007 7T 2 52 5B AR Bt Fir i
REFING - REGSRERSE
R (TR -

WEPEEEELZEEDRER
EPRHESELERBRAIARRE
TERBRRERRANGES o HE
EERHERAAEMRASHA

PRULHE B B =3RS HAR LE HRE -
FEZEHANER LA KZEFB
16,072,000/ 7T * R RN EB R
BB EREF492,509,0008 7T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of CJFS (Continued)

If the acquisition of CJFS had been completed on 1st
July 2015, the Group’s total revenue and loss after
tax for the year would have been HK$161,157,000
and HK$139,614,000 respectively. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the total revenue and loss
after tax of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st
July 2015, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment

Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, FRECH, a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with four independent third party vendors to acquire
51% equity interest of AP Group for consideration of
HK$20,400,000 (subject to downward adjustment
in respect of the guaranteed profit as described
in the sale and purchase agreement). AP Group is
principally engaged in provision of education and
training programs in relation to self-improvement
and self-enhancement in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The management considers that such acquisition will
enable the Group to tap into the business of education
and training program and broaden revenue sources
of the Group. The acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.

R SRR

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE-_ZT—"FEA=1THIt
FIE ()
(b) BB EIRE )

()

WKBFEEZENR _T—AF LA
—HEZK  AEEBERAFEDN
BB ARBHEREBES DB
161,157,000 7T & 139,614,000 78
TCe ABEEREERBRE I
FT—EERZFHEER -_FT—0F
TtA—BRER  AREEREER
MBI R A R BR B B 1R - IR R
BAESI R EEHTRR -

BREEHEEEZERARQF

R_E—AF+A+=8 " ARQF
EE2EWBAR  BITREE
BB E = E L
NREE BHEES1%RE - REA
20,400,000/ 7T (AR F EE BEE]
AREREFNTHE) EHEEFE
REARTPEREREAEAE RN
ERBEBRREANSE RIFIIEE -
EEERA  ZRBHEINASEE
EEHERFINEEXHLIERR
REEBRRARR - WEER =T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 HE_ZT—RFA=THL
(Continued) FZ (&)
(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment (c) WBEHEEZRERLT

Holdings Limited (Continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable of HK$6,850,000 was estimated by
applying the discounted cash flow approach. The fair
value estimates are based on a discount factor of
10.6% and probability-weighted profit of AP Group of
HK$2,882,000 to HK$17,367,000. This is a level 3 fair
value measurement.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future
payments that the Group could receive under this
arrangement is between HK$0 and HK$20,400,000.

As at 30th June 2016, there was fair value increase
of HK$4,080,000 (Note 22) recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the contingent consideration receivable, as the
assumed probability-weighted profit in AP Group was
recalculated to be approximately HK$3,286,000 to
HK$10,035,000.

The following summarises the acquisition date fair
value of the total consideration transferred:

(%)

JE U sk AR (B 2 2 F{E6,850,0007%8
TAERFBRERESREEMBET - &
FEMETHERBE RZE10.6% RE
BHEE B 2 7] g2 1% N4 s F1 2,882,000
B ILE17,367,000/8 L5 E o LB
REZFAFEAE -

AL HEIE T AN E A] g BT B R
REFOBERBBRSEN T TB
7CZ20,400,000/ 7T °

RZZT—XNFANA=ZTH BER&
B 2 UL ES R R h S A B U AR (B e
A F A 514,080,000 7t (M 7
22) - REAE Bt B/ 0] g2 1% g
i ) R 493,286,000/ T EH 5T H &
10,035,000/ 7T °

TR BRI B AT B 1R
B ATAE -

HK$’000

FHT

Cash consideration HeRE 20,400
Contingent consideration arrangement SARELH(MFE22)

(Note 22) (6,850)

Total consideration HBRE 13,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 46 W EBHEE A Bl )

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 HE_ZT—RFA=THL

(Continued) FZ (&)
(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment c) WEREHEBERER A
Holdings Limited (Continued) (&)

The following summarises the total consideration
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as the amount of goodwill arising
from the acquisition recognised at the date of

TRB AR U B B R R R
B FUBEERAEABNS
B UREEEENEESE

acquisition:
HK$’000
FHET

ASSETS BE
Non-current asset kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment YIS - MBS RS 3,032
Current assets REEE

Accounts receivable FEU R X 324

Deposits paid, prepayments and other BENETE « EEIE R H AR EIE

receivables 2,638
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 1,623
4,585

LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBEE

Accounts payable FERTERK (642)

Other payables and accrued charges HAth fES 5B R FEET S (7,190)

Tax payable FESTIR 611)

(8,443)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value ~ RAFENEZ AR FEELE (826)
Non-controlling interests IR A 405
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 9) WehE EE A 2 i (FsE9) 13,971
Total consideration wRE 13,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment
Holdings Limited (Continued)

The fair values and gross contractual amount of
accounts receivable and other receivables as at the
date of acquisition amounted to HK$324,000 and
HK$589,000 respectively. No accounts receivable and
other receivables were expected to be uncollectible.

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE—
EE@

c) WEREHEBERER A
(#8)
JFE 5T AR R B L b WK TE P W B
HOATFTERLREHNSES A
324,000/ 7T & 589,000/ 7T © Fa&T
A 48 A~ ] [ U5 2 LA BR 3K R EL A e
WRIA ©

/\E/\H +E|JJ:

Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEEHEEELE 2 RESRHBE - HK$’000
AP Group: FHT
Cash consideration paid BERNRESNRE (20,400)
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary B AR EER IR & F 58 1,623

(18,777)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to the
non-controlling interests proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

The transaction costs of approximately HK$417,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 30th June 2016.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of AP Group
is attributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.
None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment
Holdings Limited (Continued)

AP Group contributed approximately HK$10,429,000
to the Group’s total revenue and approximately
HK$1,602,000 loss to the Group’s loss after tax, for
the period between the date of acquisition and 30th
June 2016.

If the acquisition of AP Group had been completed
on 1st July 2015, the Group’s revenue and loss
after tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$171,580,000 and approximately HK$141,205,000
respectively. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of the total revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1st July 2015, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

R SRR

46 Y HEE T B 2 B (m)

HE_ZT—RFA=THL
FE @
c) WEBEEHEEEZERAERAT

(%)

RUERIREE —T— NFEXA
= THILHA EHEEHAEE
U B B4 510,429,000 7T
M AREERTEEBETREERLY
£1,602,000/8 7T °

WK EEHERNR _Z—RHF LA
—HEZRK AEERAFEN
WaARBRBREEBEEBE AL
171,580,000 % 7T [ £9 141,205,000
BT o NMEZERHEERBRS -
WA —EBERZFMBER_ZFT—H
FtA—HEREK  AEBERE
BB EREEEE - P #
RIEE R IR ELERITEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

47 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 30th June 2017

On 1st July 2016, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in a subsidiary, AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited by allotment and issue of 40,800,000 Consideration
Shares by GET Holdings Limited at a fair value of
approximately HK$21,338,000, subject to a downward
adjustment in respect of the guarantee profit. The net assets

47 HE—EKEB AT

BHE-ZT—tFA=1HIt
FE

b\d\‘\:? /\ﬂz‘tﬂ H - $%.ﬁ El/\
RBRARIEHEEIERBER AFS1%
ZIHE - EBRE SHIERBRA AL R
740,800,000l B + R FELNR
21 ,338,0007% 7T + Al BLHE R K A T 3

cEHEENLEHBHMNEEFER

of AP Group at the date of disposal were as follows: T :
Consideration received: 2 WAE :
HK$'000
T
Fair value of Consideration Shares received BUWRERDAFE 21,338
Contingent consideration payable (Note 33) JERT S AR B (B FES3) (10,930)
Total consideration BRE 10,408
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which %k EZZEHIENEEREBDL :
control was lost:
Goodwill [EES 8,403
Property, plant and equipment YIEE - B AR 2,134
Accounts receivables FE U BR X 103
Amounts due from directors FEUNZE E3RIR 27
Deposits paid, prepayments and other BfES - FBNRE R EWEIER
receivables 2,758
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSFEY 1,359
Other payables and accrued charges Hofh e~ 58 M RS (1,345)
Deposits received Blkize (7,566)
Taxation payable PR IE (687)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 5,186
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—ENBEARWRE :
Fair value of Consideration Shares REBRHDAFEE 21,338
Contingent consideration payable (Note 33) FERT S AR E (FFFES3) (10,930)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (5,186)
Non-controlling interest IR 2 (1,176)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect TR A BB A B) 2 35 Il R EETE @
of the net assets of the subsidiary EFOEEER I MBR
reclassified from equity to profit or loss ,éffx/ﬂﬁz%uﬂ:ﬂ#%ﬁ
on loss on control of the subsidiary 29
Gain on disposal e 4,075
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHSRHFHE
Cash consideration received BUIRESNRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENHESMREEEY (1,359)
(1,359)

328 Universe International Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

oo o0 00

© © ¢ 0 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000o0

.

° o o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 BANKING FACILITIES

At 30th June 2016, the banking facilities of the Group
are secured by trading securities held by the former
shareholder of a subsidiary. Such banking facilities
amounted to HK$8,000,000 were utilised to the extent of
HK$4,020,000 at 30th June 2016.

49 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(@)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17th April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (“UEL”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue of
the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the “Movie”).

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the High
Court on 21st February 2003, UEL was ordered and
had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being part
of the licence fee of the Movie received by UEL from
Miramax Films (being the licencee of the Movie) and
which was also part of the sum claimed by Star.
Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable to pay Star
interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and some of the
costs of the application leading to the making of the
Order, all of which have been settled. As the Order
has not disposed of all the claims of US$935,872
(equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star, UEL is entitled
to continue to defend the claim by Star for recovering
the remaining balance in the sum of approximately
HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799 less HK$5,495,700).

R SRR

48 RITRLE

RZZ—XRERNA=1TH  AEEZRTT
BE Ty — K E R R AR B 2
HEFERER - ZFRITHEZSER

8,000,000 7T - HM=—&F—

NERNA=T

HE & M4,020,000/ 7T °

49 ARIREFER

(@)

R-ZEZ_FMA+ERE BYF
=HEEBMNERAR(IEEDY
ARA—HEEE2ENBLRAET
REFR AR ([EFREDREE
FrRITTIN R [R AR RS AE — TRRRAA ©

ik i ERERE TR
JE (A B 7 157935,872 =T (HBE R
7,299,799 Bir)  EADE—H%
BlIOMENIZEF([#ZEFZ]) 2

BESEIENR_TEZE=F_A
—t+t—BEBEZES((ZES])
EFREEFSREDMNEBTH
5,495,700 BT BN EFIRETZE
£ mMiramax Films(BEZEE 2 bR
BEAEAN) KRB BoIREE R 2B
REZIHBH & - BEZES T
FIRLIRE [ £ $E  (4 §8350,905
Bz MERBBELZIESHE
SERA FBREAYEXN - H
RZESTEZT2EEERB A
935,872 E T (#HE 747,299,799 &
TOZFTERE  WETFREFEE
BHEBHRRETIR - kE
#REEA91,804,009 77T (817,299,799
B ITIE5,495,700 BT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

49 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 30th April 2002, UEL issued a Writ of Summons
against Star for the latter’s wrongful exploitation
of certain rights in the Movie co-owned by both
parties. UEL claimed to recover all losses and
damages suffered by UEL as a result of the wrongful
exploitation.

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video Co.
Limited (“ULV”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued a Writ of Summons against Star
for the latter’s infringement of the licensed rights in the
Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all losses
and damages suffered by ULV as a result of the said
infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the said
claim made against UEL will have no material financial
impact to the Group for the year ended 30th June
2017.

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips Electronics
N.V. (“KPE”) issued a Writ of Summons against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), in respect of
damages arising from the alleged infringement of the
patent rights regarding Video Compact Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(©

On 8th January 2010, KPE issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company, ULV
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors),
in respect of damages arising from the alleged
infringement of the patent rights regarding Digital
Video Disc owned by KPE.

In June 2012, the action was discontinued against the
Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The claim
made against ULV has been agreed with KPE and
settled by ULV and appropriate legal costs provision
was recognised accordingly in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30th June
2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30th June 2017. Based on the consultation with legal
counsel, no further material outflow of economic

benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe Artiste Management Limited (“UAM”)
commenced Court of First Instance Action
against Kwong Ling and Oriental Prosperous Int’l
Entertainments Limited (collectively the “Defendants”)
on 30th June 2014 claiming inter alia for a declaration
that UAM is entitled to extend/renew the term of the
Artist Management Contract of the Defendants with
UAM (the “Artist Management Contract”) for 5 years as
from 3rd May 2014 to 2nd May 2019.

The Defendants filed their defence and counterclaim
on 29th September 2014. By such counterclaim,
the Defendants claiming against UAM inter alia for
a declaration that the Artist Management Contract
was void and unenforceable, the Artist Management
Contract to be rescinded, damages for breach of the
Artist Management Contract and for breach of fiduciary
duties, a declaration that UAM is liable to account to
the Defendants and an order for payment of all sums
found to be due by UAM to the Defendants.

o o

R SRR

49 FRIREFFA @)

LY

(©

WZZE—ZTF—A/\H ' KPEA(H
hEIE)ARAT - BFES RN
FEHEP—2ER)RHABRSR
THIZILKPERTH B SIS &2 & ik my
HREmMEL ZBRZENSH

RZT—ZFRA  HARF MK
NS A ZIRFAEERLL - HETF
B v RECEKPEEKBZENRE
HETENEE  LERBE_F
fziﬁﬂ—+5¢¢ﬁZFAﬁ

BHRRAEREEREENERE
PR -
BMERBE_T—+tFA=1H

ti&Zﬁé%%ﬁ%Wﬁﬁﬁ@
BiE - RBEZEERNBHAER
ETFREFTEmMBE - PHERL
BT -

R-ZTE—MEXNA=1+H " BF&
Aai%ﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁ%?%—é/\*éﬁj)
A R FA VK BE Bh T B 2 3R AF B R 4R 4%
BRAR(FBIEEDEFRA—EF
RRE(ETEE)EFEAEE
BERER /SEBEHREAEEFEA
EEUHBABTEANEAE
BENDWEHER - FHE-Z
—NFRA=ZHRE-_FT—NFH
AZHIE £AF-

RER—_FE-—MFEAA-_TNLEE
HRRERERFR - REGHEKR
FR - REREFEAEERHK(E
hEFB)EATESNBERNTA
BEIIT  BERBATEAL

HRERBAEEANMZEREELN

BRBLRE  TREFTEAETRE
FHWERR  YERASEFTEA

BN ENB A

—T— R ETEReRERERAF 331

LRI

@ e e 0000000000000 00000000 00



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

49 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d) (Continued)

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim against UAM.
The Board considers that the amounts of counterclaim
by the Defendants against UAM is insignificant to the
Group as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2017, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
directors to be pending against either the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

50 COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating leases commitments

As at 30th June 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

49 FRIREFFA @)

(d)

(&)

RIFZZEENER - REEEFER
HEFEAETEN LMREERE
BREBTE EFEAR WS
ETEAERRERPROBEY
AEEEBMEBMTRE -

B EXFREEEN R_T—LF XA
=t+B  BREEMA - AREHEEMRM

N

1»“-

8 °

A3 4 [ B (A ERRORFAAHR

50 H&iE
(@) EETHERIE

RZZBE—tFRA=1+H  A&H
RIFT A RGH 2 @ EME MR R
KM 2 SARHE MA@ T -

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T REF

Not later than one year THBA—F 6,274 8,609

Later than one year and not later than fBiE—FE R THRBRE
five years 2,046 6,506
8,320 15,115

Certain department store counters and retail stores
include payment obligations with rental varied
with gross revenue. The additional rental payable
(contingent rents) is determined generally by applying
pre-determined percentages to future revenue less
minimum lease payment of the respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments

As at 30th June 2017, the Group had commitments
contracted but not provided for in these consolidated

R SRR

50 A& @)

(b) EAhdE
RZT—+&X<A=+R  £4H
B ATHIE R B e 55 4 2 1 75 9

financial statements as follows: Bz EENT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Purchase of film rights and production B E &R & B 2 8k
of films (Note i) (B &ED 73,310 59,002
Licence agreement hiw i o ok 2,586 786
Note i: Included in the commitment of purchase of film rights Mzt RZE—+FNA=+HtAE

and production of fims, an amount of HK$690,000
is related to the joint operation arrangements
of film production as at 30th June 2017 (2016:
HK$13,633,000).

51 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

As at 30th June 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

BEUMEREEREAENS
RH690,0008 L (=T — /R F ¢
13,633,000/8 7T ) B EMEE 7
AETHEBR -

51 RREEHERH
RoB—tEXA=+A - AEBRET

A EH 2 A T E T A AR SRR 2 A
HEFRRENT

2017 2016

—E—tfF ZE—REF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Not later than one year THEB—F 1,202 743
Later than one year and not later than five B —F R THBBRE

years 774 126

1,976 869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR

52 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Tenancy Agreements

52 BEALTZRS
(@) FAEWZ

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
) Rental expenses paid to Universe ) MEFYERERR
Property Investment Limited which NA(BARA]—%
is wholly owned by a director of ER2EHB)XN
the Company (Note a) ZHeR (Mizta) 2,928 2,928
ii) Rental expenses paid to Sam Fung i) 1 =$§B AR AT
Global Limited which is wholly (BARRA—RES
owned by the spouse of a director 2B EER)
of the Company (Note b) STz HAERE
(Mi5ED) 323 740

Note a:

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment
Limited (“UPI”), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil, the executive Director of the Company, for renting (1)
an industrial unit and (2) 5 carparking spaces of an industrial
building for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses
in Kwai Chung from 25th February 2014 to 24th February
2017, with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) which were arrived at following arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and UPI with reference to
the rental valuation performed by Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent property valuer, as at 30th November 2013
which reflected the then market rent.

The Tenancy Agreement was renewed for the period from
25th February 2017 to 24th February 2018, with a monthly
rental of HK$244,000 being arrived at following arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and UPI with reference to
the rental valuation performed by Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited, an independent property valuer, as at 29th
September 2016 which reflected the then market rent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

52 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 52 BEALTZXRF @)

(Continued)

(@) Tenancy Agreements (Continued) (@) HEW®E )

Note a: (Continued)

As at 30th June 2017 and 30th June 2016, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments to UPI under non-
cancellable operating lease falling due as follows:

fizta : (%

RZB—+FRNA=Z+TARZE—RF
RNRAZ+B  REERETAHBELE
HERNEFNEREZARKERE
fskasa SRR T -

2017 2016
—E—+iF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Not later than one year THBiBE—F 1,952 1,952
1,952 1,952
Note b: MizEDb -

CJFS, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement with Sam Fung Gilobal
Limited, a company owned by the spouse of Ms. Cheng Hei
Yu, the former executive director of the Company and an
employee of the Group after her resignation for renting an
office unit in Sheung Wan, Hong Kong from 1st November
2015 to 31st October 2017, with a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (the “CJFS Tenancy Agreement”) which were
arrived at the arm’s length negotiation by the relevant parties
with reference to the market rent. Ms. Cheng Hei Yu ceased
to be a related party of Group following her resignation as an
executive director of the Company on 7th October 2017.

As at 30th June 2017 and 30th June 2016, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments to Sam Fung Global
Limited transactions under non-cancellable operating lease
falling due as follows:

ARAHEEZENBARPEREFEERN
AEANATEERBERDALNEER
BMBERL Lt 2EBREAEZAT =
BEARABARE-_FT—AFE+—A—
PRE_ZT—+F+A=+—HINA
H4:100,000/8 LA A EB LR —
M AEEMI G HE(TRERE
HEWH])  ZWHEABETOTES
EMSHSRAFHEREE - BEMK
ITR-_F—tFTALAREARTHR
TEFEITBAAEEBEAL -

RZE—tFRA=ZTARZZE—RF
NAZTB > AEERETAIHBELE
HERMN=Z#RRERAFZAKKE
HENFT@RE BT RIMT

2017 2016

—E—tF TE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FAT

Not later than one year TiBB—F - 1,200
Later than one year and not later than five B —FE R HBBRE

years - 400

- 1,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

52 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(0)

52 BBEAT ZXF @)

Details of key management b) TEEREE 15
compensation
Key management personnel are those management FTEEBRABRABEE - EBRR
with responsibility for planning, directing and EHAEEEE) L EIEE -
controlling the activities of the Group.
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Salaries and other short-term employee & & E (b 52 HAlE 8 12 7
benefits 18,375 10,195
Post-employment benefits 1B BRIREFI 44 72
Share-based compensation S =R EN - 2,993
18,419 13,260

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, no other material
related party transactions have been entered into by
the Group. The transactions were carried out after
negotiations between the Group and the related
parties in the ordinary course of business.

Transactions with an associate

During the year ended 30th June 2017, the
Group purchased optical products from HK
Optical at approximately HK$5,103,000, and sold
optical products to HK Optical at approximately
HK$1,413,000.
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53 COMPANY - LEVEL BALANCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

53 AAIEHEERER

A
SHEET
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZEREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B5E F&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ATKE 72,096 72,096
Property, plant and equipment Vs - MBS R ERE 843 -
72,939 72,096
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEURHIE A FIFKIE 936,292 573,043
Deposits paid BENETS 383 567
Prepayments and other TE B K H A U GRIE
receivables 1,371 198
Cash and cash equivalents REMRSEEY 3,044 656
941,090 574,464
Total assets HMEE 1,014,029 646,560
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to the AATHEE AEEER
owners of the Company
Share capital iE&N 25 8,533 1,778
Share premium [iegbapinti=] 27(b) 893,345 532,910
Other reserves EM#EE 27(b) 116,005 123,100
Accumulated losses REtEE 27(b) (36,640) (27,608)
Total equity AR 981,243 630,180
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities FHRBEE
Borrowings ge 10,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities BLEFIERE 82 -
10,082 -
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHT B AR FE 3,136 5,062
Accrued charges FEET S H 3,668 2,118
Borrowings =g 15,900 9,200
22,704 16,380
Total liabilities HmaE 32,786 16,380
Total equity and liabilities HERKAE 1,014,029 646,560
Net current assets RBEERE 918,386 558,084
Total assets less current HWEERARBER
liabilities 991,325 630,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR

53 COMPANY - LEVEL BALANCE 53 AEIEHEERBERM®
SHEET (Continued)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors ERZZE—tFNAZTNBEESEH
on 29th September 2017. R RT3 o
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun M/NEE MAEESR
Director Director BZE =
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
FIFRERBZEBYX

HONG KONG BB
Location Lot number Type Lease term
it B b £} B8 HEFH
Woodland House 1-5, Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential 2047
Woodlands Villa, part, 1511, 1516, 1518, 1519,
121 Tong Fuk Village, 1522 and 1523 in Demarcation
Tong Fuk, Lantau Island, District 328
New Territories, Hong Kong
VR AR N I HELE3284)H R F= —TMtF
YERRIERIT1215] SE16105% 709 » 161155 -
Wb Bl EERRHD B 1 255 1516%% * 15185% - 151958 -
152255 2 15235
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEMBRE

RESULTS ¥EE
Year ended 30th June
BEAA=THLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

2+t —T—RF ZT-1F Z—E-QKF Z—ET-=F%

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT T T TET THT

Revenue Ungs 231,644 151,033 70,265 197,299 79,106
(Loss)/profit before income tax P8R A (E512),/

ikl (111,677) (166,453 198,296 (18,472) (4,890)

Income tax (expense)/credit PR (BH),/o# (6,919) 26,179 (37,366) (5,859) 213
(Loss)/profit attributable to the AN FIEZREZE AR

equity holders of the Company 15 (E5#8) /7 (114,328) (140,790) 161,956 (4,327) (4,677)

Special cash dividend BRReRE - - - - -

Proposed final dividend BRRBRS - - - - -

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 30th June
RAB=1H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

2+t —“T-RF —T-1F —T-QNF —T-=F

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRET TET TET TET FHET

Total assets BEE 1,456,934 1,150,731 739,628 394,764 396,457

Total liabilities BEE (443,407 (398,810) (167,361) (94,865) (155,304)
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